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Sub: Notice of the 38th Annual General Meeting of the Company along with Annual 
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Dear Sir/Madam, 

This is in continuation of our earlier correspondence dated 9th August, 2024 informing about 
convening of 38th Annual General Meeting and related compliances. In terms of the provisions 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), 
please find attached herewith a copy of Notice of the 38th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 11 :00 A.M. (1ST) through Video 
Conferencing I Other Audio Video Means ("VC/ OAVM") facility alongwith Annual Report for the 
financial year 2023-24. 

As informed earlier, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall 
be closed from Saturday, September 21, 2024 to Friday, September 27, 2024 (both days 
inclusive) for the purpose of 38th AGM of the Company and Friday, September 20, 2024 shall 
be the cut-off date to determine the eligibility of Members to cast their vote through remote e­
voting and e-voting d~ring the AGM. The remote e-voting shall commence from Tuesday, 
September 24, 2024 (9:00 A.M. 1ST) and end on Thursday, September 26, 2024 (5:00 P.M. 
1ST). In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the facility fore-voting shall also be made available 
by the Company during the AGM. 

Further, please note that the Company has dispatched the aforesaid Annual Report along with 
annexure thereof to its eligible shareholders and other stakeholders on 5th September, 2024 in 
compliance of statutory guidelines. 

You are requested to take the above information on your records. 
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Sincerely Yours, 
For Liberty Shoes Ltd. 
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CS Munish Kakra 
CFO & Company Secretary 
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!!!!.r Credo 
To ensure that the method we use is the latest 

technology the world over. To fol low the highest 

standards of honest workmanship in w hatever 

we 111ake. To walk the extra mile to ensure 

customer satisfaction world-w ide. To remain a 

t rue cosmopolitan to the spirit. To remain a 

great corporation to associate w ith, to work for. 

To know that We are about people 



Our Leadership Team 

'We're in it together to create an atmosphere of fulfilment and a workplace culture of openness, 

innovation and respect to deliver the finest we have on offer to our team, our world of customers, 

business partners and our country. We would do this with an ethical fervour built under 

the guidance of our forefathers.· 



The Hind11stani Sensation 

Mera Joota Hindustani: India's Footwear Journey "Mera Joota Hindustani'' is a phrase that is derived from 

the song "Mera Joota Hai Japani" from the 1955 Bollywood classic Shree 420. The song's popularity is a 

testament to its resonance v.'ith the Indian psyche. It captured the spirit of a nation that was both eager 

to embrace progress and wary of losing its cultural heritage. It spoke to the aspirations of a newly 

independent India, a country that was confident in its identity and determined to carve its path in the wortd. 

The phrase "Mera Joota Hindustani" could be seen as an evolution of this sentiment, emphasizing the 

imprntance of self-reliance and the 'Make in India' spirit. It reflects India's journey from a consumer of 

foreign goods to a global manufacturing powerhouse. India's transformation mirrors the Asian Tigers, leveraging 

its demographic dividend, education, and economic openness. The nation has transitioned 

from an agrarian economy to a hub for technology, space exploration, and manufacturing, including 

footwear. This multifaceted growth story positions India as a global economic tiger. 

The footwear industry is a microcosm crf this transformation. Rich heritage, a growing domestic market, 

government support, cost-effective production, and design talent position India as a potential global 

fashion footwear caprtal. From the launchpads of ISRO to the factory floors producing world-class footwear, 

e.J India is demonstrating a multifaceted growth story. India is today poised to become a 

6f':~Af'1(:d.l'.5-1'f.J.; "'~·-
0:0 global fashion footwear capital. Several factors contribute to this promising future: ,, 
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Rich Heritage and Craftsmanship: India has a centuries-old tradition of exquisite craftsmanship, 
evident in its textiles, embroidery, and leatherwork. This heritage provides a solid foundation for 
creating unique and high-quality footwear. 

Growing Domestic Market: With a burgeoning middle class and increasing disposable income, the 
domestic market for fashion footwear is expanding rapidly. This provides a strong base for local 
brands to grow and innovate. 

Government Support: The 'Make in India' initiative and other government policies are creating 
a favorable environment for the footwear industry. 

Cost-Effective Production: India offers a competitive advantage in terms of labor costs and 
skilled wor1<force, making it an attractive destination for footwear manufacturing. Inspired by Indian 
doodle art, the packaging elaborates an unique and visually appealing design that resonates with 
the country's rich heritage, which is eco-friendly and sustainable as well. 

Design Talent: The country is witnessing a rise in young, talented designers who are 
blending traditional aesthetics with contemporary trends, creating a fresh and unique look. 

From the playful lyrics of "Mera Joota Hai Japani" to the confident stride 
of a global manufacturing powerhouse, India's footwear 
industry epitomizes the nation's transforrnative 
journey. With a rich heritage, a burgeoning market, 
and supportive policies, India is poised 
to become a dominant player in the 
global fashion footwear landscape. While 
challenges persist, the country's potential is 
undeniable but India continues to innovate 
and adapt. And Liberty is set to lead and 
show the way! 

From the vibrant hues of Madhubani art to the 
intricate patterns of Kalamkari, the Himalayan 
handloom weave, and the ancient technique of 
block printing, each pair showcases the diversity and 
beauty of India's artistic heritage. The collection not 
only highlights Liberty's commitment to 0 Make 
in India" but also serves as a testament to the 
enduring appeal of Indian craftsmanship. 



What are we known for 
Strong Brand Equity: 

Libe1ty's brand equity is built on trust, quality, and value. We continue to strengthen this by expanding 

our product range, enhancing customer experience, and leveraging digital platforms to reach a 

broader audience 

Innovation and Growth: 

Our commitment to innovation is evident in our product offerings. We blend global fashion t rends with 

"Made-in-India" quality, ensuring that we cater to both local and international markets. This strategy not 

only solidifies our market presence but also opens avenues for growth. 



Proven Track Record: 

With a legacy that spans decades, Liberty has consistently delivered high-quality, stylish, and 

comfortable footwear that resonates w ith a wide consumer base. Our brand is synonymous w ith trust 

and reliability. 

Market Leadership: 

Liberty is well-positioned in the Indian market, particularly among the young, aspirational middle class 

that is driving the nation's economic growth. We understand their preferences and are constantly 

innovating to meet their needs. 

Some of the popular influencers w ho have uplifted the Liberty Campaigns. 



Strengths & Opportunities 
The footwear industry, like many others, is constantly 

evolving, driven by technological advancements, 

changing consumer preferences, and the need for 

sustainability. To stay competitive in this dynamic market, 

brands have adopted innovative promotional and 

marketing strategies. 

Liberty is always staying ahead of the curve in the fast­

paced footwear industry and identifies and targets 

emerging trends and positions itself as a leader and 

innovator, capturing the attention of trend-conscious 

consumers pioneering its communication strategies 

and execution dynamics. 

We have been known for our manufacturing prowess 

and have over the years built strong capacities across the 

state-of-the -art Humantech Centers. This manufacturing 

capability is strength that we have built upon and have 

opened up a very solid and robust OEM vertical. This is 

leveraging the manufacturing fucilities developed over 

the years. The results are visible with us making footwear 

for leading brands like Zudio, First Cry, Metro, HRX, Mast 

&amp, & Harbourto name a few. 

OEM ON THE UPSWING 

Liberty is seeing a significant demand for "Made in India" 

products owing to the Indian government's 

implementation of BIS which has made it a compulsory 

standard for the footwear to be made and sold in India. 

This has made numerous Indian and foreign firms eyeing 

the Liberty manufacturing prowess to do business in the 

stuck-on EVA and PVC categories. This will enable Liberty 

to make optimum use of our capacity and in tum lower 

production costs, which may be noticeable in our financial 

statements. 

ti 
Our products match above standards mandated by the Go1-Bmment 

E-commerce 

Our online sales are showing very energetic numbers and 

growth. As the internet penetration grows and the young 

consumers across the nation are hooked on to tracking 

trends and brands online our strong visibility onllne is 

helping. We continue to invest and expand our online 

presence. Our own online store facilitates a very 

technologically efficient experience to the buyer. We 

are also available across the most popular online 

marketplaces. 

liberty's online business partners 

Flipkart ~ 

AJIO. Myntra 

B c[ia O snapdeal 8 
snapmint ,t'~ udaan 



The brand has a cool quotient of self-determination and 
a love for life. It's simple ways are very individualized 
not very expensive yet universally one of a kind. The positioning- Love you 
Zindagi - carries w ith itself a feeling of Fun and Freedom from the mundane 
and cliched. 

Key Contributors 

Shop by styles With the increase in awareness amongst the 
customers about the importance of w earing the right footwear and it's impact 
on the whole body, there was a huge scope & demand of health care footwear. 
This gave birth to the concept of "Healers''. 



leap>l 
__,,,, A footwear brand that gives people the confidence to wear the footwear 

through the day or should we say- from Am to Pm with the confident elan. The 
comfortable shoes with memory foam technology in the uppers and trendy sole designs 
is what makes Leap 7X the favourite choice of the youthful brigade. 

Lucy & Luke are a creation of the Liberty design 6l marketing team. Their adventures \MIi tel a 
story. These adventures weave engrossing tales that engage the young kids and keep them 
involved vvrth the brand. The collateral comics based on the characters are also extending 
stories of excitement with the brand. 

Look out for the comics and let your child into the stories!!! Each new season 
a new adventure becomes the storyline like Adventures in Space, Adventures / ~ 
under water , //;:i:-,Y 

a· ,1 _, ~ ✓.-=~ 
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Our Safety shoe brands are crafted with advanced protective features including 
steel toes. slip-resistant soles. and shock absorption technology. Designed to 
withstand the toughest conditions. these shoes ensure that you can focus on 
your work and stay comfortable over the long hours on the job. Our Safety 
Shoes are more than just protective footwear-they a1e a symbol of the 
indomitable spirit of the Indian worker. Made in India. for India, our Warrior & 
Freedom bn,nds stand as a testament to quality, safety, and nat ional pride 

Our Institutional Brands 

Prefect 
We have a special range of school shoes that are very pop1c1lar amongst the 
children as they play around and go through their daily school activities with 
enthusiasm and complete comfo1t. We make them to order as per school 
uniform and have an enviable record to maintain regular supplies for the 
growing up years. 
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A Scent of Freedom 

Lifestyle products are more than just possessions; they're extensions of our personalities. 

They reflect our tastes, preferences, and aspirations, enhancing our daily lives in significant 

ways. Our perfume range have scored high on factors like quality, style, functionality, 

versatality & budget. Alluring. Unforgettable. Luxurious. Magical. The fragrances that invite 

the lifestylers globally are made V\~th the finest ingredients and are certified by the IFRA. 

We have a dedicated team that is spearheading the growth of the division and is exploring 

newer markets and channels to enhance the division sales and rise to be in newer markets and 

exploiting greater opportunities. 



OUR ESTEEMED INSTITUTIONAL CLIENTS 
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LIBERTY 

Dear Shareholders, 

We are delighted to present to you the Annual Report for the recently concluded Financial year 2024. 

As India celebrates ' Swatantrata ka Amrit Mahotsav, • Liberty proudly walks alongside this vibrant nation. India's young, 

aspirational middle class is propelling economic growth, and at Liberty, we understand their desires-a fusion of global 

style Vliith top-quality "Made-in-India" products. Our latest campaign• Mera Joota Hindustani" is our befitting commitment 

to Govt. of India, initiative of Make In India and to demonstrate our core manufacturing competence to all our perspective 

customers. This commitment reflects in our Annual Report theme also. 

The year went by in a breeze punctuated by youthiul candour & innovations with people in mind. We saw success in the 

path we took. The collective decision making system at the top helped enjoin the whole team in taking responsibility and 

wcrk towards a focused goal in a transparent manner. There was also a let cf independent decision making with 

responsibilities defined down the line. The cohesive focus on the brand architecture has been showing positive rnsults. 

"Leap 7x", "Healers", "Lucy n Luke" & "Aha", new brands to the existing kitty have contributed handsomely to both the 

bottom lines and the top line. 

Our manufacturing competence comprehending well with cur ccmmitment for inncvation and quality. We infuse 

youthful energy into our designs, constantly innovating to deliver the perfect blend of comfort, style. and value. 

Understanding consumer choices and offering the best products at honest prices is our priority. We prioritize listening 

tc customer needs and incorporating that feedback into cur design precess. 

Our approach is straightforward: create high-quality, durable products using the best available technology in design 

and manufacturing, while fostering a culture of teamwork and collaboration within our company. In depth data collection 

and analysis combined with Al inputs have helped us innovate and bring successful products in the market. We pour our 

passion into crafting products that delivers on our promise of comfort and style, all at an accessible price. 

The perfume business has also been brought into a mainstream focus. Newer lines of sale are being tested and sear 

ched for. The established export potential is being looked at earnestly and the growth there is casual and steady. 

We want ycu tc see Liberty as the brand that truly understands your desires. We're here to deliver on that promise, every 

step of the way. For generations, Liberty has built a legacy of trust. This trust is what makes us forever about the people. 

Join us in celebrating India's journey and experiencing the Libe1ty difference! 

Last but not least, the management wished to assert its commitment for further strengthening of existing corporate 

governance practices and pleased to mention that the assignment in this regard entrusted to the leading 

consuttants is progressing as planned. 

We extend our heartfelt appreciation to the board tor their continued guidance, to our laborious team for their dedication 

and commitment and to our shareholders for their continued trust & reposing confidence. 

Your ManagementTeam 

0 



lioorty Shoes ltd, NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 38th (Thirty Eighth) Annual 
General Meeting ("381h AGM" or "e-AGM" or "AGM") of 
the Members of Liberty Shoes Limited {"the Company") will 
be held on Friday, 27th September, 2024 at11 :00 A.M. 
through Video Conferencing ("VC"')/or Other Audio-Visual 
Means ("OAVM") to transact the following businesses:-

The proceedings of the 38th AGM shall be deemed to be 
conducted at the Registered Office of the Company at 
Libertypuram, 13th Milestone, G.T. Kamal Road, Kutail, P.O. 
Bastara, Distt. Kamal-132114, Haiyana, which shall be 
deemed venue cf the AGM. 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

Item no. 1-Adop'tion of Financia.l Statements 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended on 
March 31, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

To consider and if thought fit. to pass the following 
Resolution asan Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of tlle 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2024 and 
the Reports of the Board of Directors' and Auditors, thereon 
as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered 
and adopted." 

Item no. 2-Appointment of Director 

To appoint a Director in place of Sh. Shammi Bansal (OIN-
00138792), who retires by rotation and being eligible, otters 
himself for re-appointment. 

To consider and if thought fit. to pass the following 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Sh. Shammi Bansal (DIN-00138792), who retires 
by rotation, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director liable 
to retire by rotation." 

Item no. 3-Appointment of Director 

To appoint a Directer in place cf Sh. Sunil Bansal (OIN-
00142121 ), who retires by rotation and being eligible, otters 
himself for re appointment. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the follov.~ng 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013. Sh. Sunil Bansal (OIN-00142121) who retires by 
rotation, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director liable to 
retire by rotation." 
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SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

Item no. 4-Re-appointment of Sh. Gautam Baid (DIN: 
00021400), as an Independent Director of the 
Company 

To consider and, if thought fit. to pass the following 
resolution as Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant tc the provisions of Secticn 
149, 150, 152, 160and otllerapplicable provisions, ifany, of 
the Companies Act. 2013 (the ';/let") and the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, 
read with Schedule IV of the Act and Regulation 16 (11 (b), 
Regulation 25 and Regulation 17 and other applicable 
regulations of the SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), 
(including any amendment(s). statutory modification(s) or 
re- enactment(s} thereof for the time being in force), and 
pursuant to the recommendations of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the 
Company ("the Board") given at their respective meetings 
held on 9th August. 2024, Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy and the Articles of Association of the Company, Sh. 
Gautam Baid (DIN: 00021400). who was appointed as an 
Independent Director for first term w.e.f. 1st April 2022 to 
hold office upto September 28, 2024and who being eligible 
for re-appointment for the second term and who meets the 
criteria of independence as provided in Section 149 (6) of 
the Act along with the Rules framed thereunder and 
Regulation 16 (1 ) (bl of SEBI Listing Regulaticns and who 
has submitted a declaration to that effect and in respect of 
whom the Company has received a Notice in writing from a 
member under Section 160 (11 of the Act proposing his 
candidature for the office of Directer, be and is hereby re­
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not 
liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for second term 
of 3 (three) consecutive years effective from September 29, 
2024 te September 28, 2027. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directers cf the 
Company or Committee thereof and CFO & Company 
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally 
authorized to do all such acts. deeds and things as may 
be necessary in respect of aforesaid matter." 

Item no. 5-Re-appointment of Dr. Sujata (DIN: 
09289128) as an Independent Director of the 
Company 

To consider and, if tllought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 



of Section 149. 150. 152, 160 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act. 2013 (the "Act") 
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of 
Directors) Rules. 2014. read with Schedule IV of the Act and 
Regulation 16 (1) (b), Regulation 25 and Regulation 17 and 
other applicable regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing 
Regulations"). (including any amendment(s). statutory 
modification(s) or re- enactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force). and pursuant to the recommendations of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board ot 
Directors of the Company ("the Beard") given at their 
respective meetings held on 9th August, 2024. Nomination 
and Remuneration Policy and the Articles of Association of 
the Company, Dr.Sujata(DIN:09289128), who was 
appointed as an Independent Director for first term cf 3 
years commencing w.e.f. from September 29, 2021 to hold 
office upto September 28, 2024 and who being eligible for 
re-appointment for the second term and who meets the 
criteria of independence as prcvided in Section 149 (6) 
of the Act along with the Rules framed thereunder and 
Regulation 16 (1) (b) of SEBI listing Regulations and who 
has submitted a declaration to that effect and in respect 
of whom the Company has received a Notice in writing 
from a member under Section 160 (1) of the Act proposing 
his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby 
re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, 
not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for second 
term of 3 (three) consecutive years effective from 
September 29, 2024 to September 28, 2027. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 
Company or Committee thereof and CFO & Company 
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be 
necessary in respect of aforesaid matter." 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: Friday, 9th August 2024 

Registered Office 

By order of the Board 
For libeny Shoes Ltd. 

CS Munl.sh Kakra 
CFO & Company Secretary 

M. NoACS 6262 

Libertypuram, 13th Milestone, Ii. T. Kamal Road, Kutail, 
P.O. Bastara, Distt. Kamal • 132114, HaT'/ana 
Tel.: (911-1748-251101- 03, Fa,: (91) -1748-251100 
E-mail: lpm@liberT)-woes.com, Website: www.libe~hoes.com 

. CIN: L19201HR1986PLC033185 
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NOTES: 

1. e-AGM: the Ministry cf Ccrpcrate Affairs {the "MCA") 
vide its General Circulars No. 14/2020, No. 17/2020. 
No. 20/2020, 02/2021. 19/2021. 21/2021. No. 
02/2022 and No 10/2022, dated April 8, 2020. April 
13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 
8, 2021, December 14. 2021. May 5, 2022. December 
28,2022 and No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 
2023 respectively (hereinafter, ccllectively referred 
as the "MCA Circulars") read with SEBI Circular 
No. SEBVHO/CFD/CMDl/CIIVP/2020/79, dated May 
12.2020, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 , dated 
January 15 2021, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62, 
dated May 13, 2022. SEBI/HO/CFO/POD2/P/CIR/ 
2023/4, dated January 05. 2023 and SEBVHO/CFD/ 
CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated Octcber 7, 2023. 
(hereinafter, collectively referred as the "SEBI 
Circulars") has allowed companies to conduct their 
Annual General Meetings through Video Conferencing 
("VC") or Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM"), 
thereby, dispensing with the requirement of physical 
attendance of the members at the venue of the AGM. 
Accordingly, the 38th Annual General Meeting 
(the "AGM" or the "Meeting") of l iberty Shoes Limited 
(the •company") will be held through VC or OAVM in 
compliance with the said circulars, the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act") 
and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the "Listing 
Regulations'1 (each as amended). Members attending 
the AGM through VC or OAVM shall be counted 
for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 
Section 103 of the Act. 

2. IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS AND SEBI 
CIRCULARS, THE REQUIREMENT OF SENDING 
PROXY FORMS TD HOLDERS OF SECURITIES AS 
PER PROVISIONS OF SECTION 105 OF THE ACT 
READ WITH REGULATION 44{4) OF THE LISTING 
REGULATIONS, HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. 
THEREFORE, THE FACILITY TO APPOINT PROXY 
BY THE MEMBERS Will NOT BE AVAILABLE 
AND CONSEQUENTLY, THE PROXY FORM AND 
ATTENDANCE SLIP ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS 
NOTICE CONVENING THE 38TH AGM OF TiiE 
COMPANY (THE "NOTICE"). 

However, in pursuance of Section 113 of the Act and 
Rules framed thereunder, the corporate members are 
entitled to appoint authorized representatives for the 
purpose of voting through remote e-Voting or for the 
participation and e-Voting during the AGM. through VC 
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or OAVM. Institutional Shareholders (i.e., other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy {PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant 
Board Resclution/Pcwer of Attcrney/appropriate 
Authorization Letter together with attested specimen 
signature (s) of the duly authorize<! signatory (ies) who 
are authoriied to vote, to the Scrutinizer through 
e-mail at legal2015js@gmail.com with a copy marked 
to investorcare@libertyshoes.com 

3. Since the AGM will be held through VC or OAVM, no 
Route Map is being provided with the Notice. 

The deemed venue for the 38th AGM shall be the 
Registered Office of the Company. 

4. In case of Joint-holders. the Member whose name 
appears as the first holder in the order of names as 
per the Register of Members of the Company will be 
entitled tc vcte during the AGM. 

5. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 ot 
the Act and Rules framed thereunder, in respect of the 
Special Business under Item No. 4 to 5 is annexed 
heretc. The reccmmendaticn cf the Board of Directors 
of the Company (the "Board") in terms of Regulation 
17(11) of the Listing Regulations is also provided in the 
said Statement. Necessary information of the Directors 
seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM as 
required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing 
Regulations and the Revised Secretarial Standard on 
General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute ot 
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) is also appended 
to the Notice. 

The Statement read together with the Annexures 
hereto and these notes form an integral part of 
this Notice. 

6. DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT THROUGH 
E-MAIL 

Pursuan1 to the MCA Circulars and the SEBI Circulars, 
the Notice along with the Annual Report of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31 , 2024, 
will be sent only through e-mail, to those Members 
whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 
Company or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
(the "RTA"). i.e., M/s. Link lntime India Private Limited 
er the Depository Pa1t icfpant(s). The Notice and the 
Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31. 
2024 shall be available on the websites of the Company 
viz., w,.vw.libertyshoes.com and of the Stock. 
Exchanges where Equity Shares cf the Company 
are listed. 

The Notice shall also be available on the e-Voting 
website of the agency engaged for providing a-Voting 
facility. i.e., link lntime India Private Limited, (UIPL) viz .. 
instavote.linkintime.co.in 

7. PROCEDURE FOR ATTENDING THE AGM 
THROUGH VC OR OAVM 
Members will be able to attend the AGM through VG or 
OAVM by using their remote e-Voting login credentials. 
The instructions for attending the AGM are annexed 
separately and form part of this Notice. 
In accordance with Section 103 of the Act. the 
presence of Members partaking in the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) by way of Video Conferencing (VC) or 
Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) will be deemed 
substantive and shall be accounted for, thereby 
contributing towards the fulfilment ot the mandated 
quorum requirement. 

8. PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E· 
VOTING DURING THE AGM 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 108 and 
other applicable prcvisicns, if any, of the Act Rule 20 cf 
the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 and amendments thereto. read together 
with the MCA Circulars and Regulation 44 of the Listing 
Regulations, tile C.ompany has engaged the services 
of Link In time India Private Limited to provide remote 
a-Voting facility and a-Voting facility during the AGM to 
all the eligible Members to enable them to cast their 
votes electronically in respect of the businesses to be 
transacted at the Meeting. The instructions to cast 
votes through remote e-Voting and through 
e-Voting system during the AGM are annexed 
separately and form part of this Notice. 

The voting rights of membeJs shall be in proportion 
to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital 
of the Company as on the cut-off date of Friday, 
20th September, 2024. The remote e-Voting 
period will commence on Tuesday, 24th 
September, 2024 (9:00 A.M. 1ST) and will end 
on Thursday, 26th September, 2024 (5:00 P.IVI. 
1ST). During this period, the Members of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical or 
dematerialized mode, as on the cut-off date, i.e .. 
Friday, 20th September, 2024, may cast their vote 
by remote e-Voting. The remote e-Vcting module shall 
be disabled by Lin~ lntime India Private Liited 
for voting thereafter. Only those Members "fie · 
who are present in the • - I ~~ te, 
Meeting through VC or __ · ~ f;JJ. f , .. 
OAVM facility and have i~ ,--._ cc,:= - , 

=====-- - ---- -_,·~i~.•,. 
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not cast their votes on resolutions through remote 
e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 
shall be allowed to vote through a-Voting system during 
the AGM. However, Members who would have cast 
their votes by remote e-Voting may attend the Meeting, 
but shall neither be allowed to change it subsequently 
nor cast votes again during the Meeting and 
accordingly, their presence shall also be counted for 
the purpose of quorum under Section 103 of the 
Act. The Members, whose ames appear in the 
Register of Members/list of Beneficial Owners as on 
Friday, 20th September, 2024 being the cut-off date, 
are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in 
the Notice. The voting rights of the Members shall be 
in proportion to their share(s) of the paid-up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date. 
A person who is not a member as on the cut-off 
date, i.e., Friday, 20th September, 2024 should 
treat this Notice for information purpose only. 

The Board of Directors has appointed Mis JVS & 
Associates, {C.P. No. 10196). Company Secreta1y in 
Practice, New Delhi or failing whom. such other 
Practicing Company Secretary or Chartered 
Accountant as the Board ot Directors of the Company 
may appoint, as the Scrutinizer for scrutinizing the 
process of remote e-Voting and also e-Voting during 
the Meeting in a fair and transparent manner. 

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion 
of the Meeting, count the votes cast at the Meeting 
and thereafter. unblock the votes cast through remote 
a-Voting in presence of atleast two witnesses 
not in employment of the Company and submit a 
Consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes 
cast in favour or against, if any, not later than 48 hours 
after the conclusion of the Meeting. Thereafter, the 
Results of e-Voting shall be declared forthwith by the 
Chairman or by any other director/person duly 
authorised in this regard. 

The Resutts declared along with the Report of tne 
Scrutinizer shall be placed en the Company's ,_.,ebsite 
(www.libertyshoes.com) and on the e-Voting 
website of Link lntime India Private Limited viz. 
https://insrnvote.linkintime.co.in immediately after the 
results are declared and shall simultaneously be 
communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the 
equity shares of the Company are listed. The results 
declared along with the said Report shall also be 

made available for at least 3 days on 
the Notice Boards of the 

~ , Company at its Registered 
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Office in Libertypuram and at the Corporate Office in 
Gurugram, Haryana. Subject to the receipt cf requisite 
number of votes, the businesses mentioned in the 
J\Joticeithe resolution{s) forming part of the Notice shall 
be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM, i.e .. 
Friday 27th September, 2024. Members holding shares 
in physical mode or whose e-mail addresses are not 
registered, may cast their votes through e-Voting 
system, after registering their e-mail addresses by 
sending the following documents to the Company 
at investorcare@libertyshoes.com or to the RTA at 
delhi@linkintime.co.in: 

{I) Scanned copy of a signed request letter, 
mentioning the name, folio number/demat account 
details & number of shares held and complete postal 
address; 

(ii) Sell-attested scanned copy of PAN Card; and 

(iii) Sell-attested scanned copy of any document (such 
as AADHAAR card;latest Electricity Bill/latest 
Telephone Bil~Driving l icense/Passport;Noter ID 
Card/Bank Passbook particulars) in support of 
the postal address of the Member as registered 
against their shareholding. Members, who hold 
shares in physical mode and already having valid 
e-mail addresses registered with the Company/the 
RTA, need not take any further action in this regard. 

9. Procedurefor inspection of documents 

All documents referred to in the Notice and the 
Explanatory StatemenVAnnexure shall be made 
available for inspection by the Members of the 
Company, without payment of fees upto and including 
the date of AGM. 

Members desirous of inspecting the same may 
send their requests not later than Wednesday, 
25th September, 2024 at 11 :00 A.M. at 
investcrcare@libertyshces.com from their registered 
e-mail addresses mentioning their names and folio 
numbers/demat account numbers. 

During the AGM, the Register of Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel and their shareholding 
maintained under Section 170 of the Act and the 
Register of Contracts or arrangements in which 
Directors are interested maintained under Section 
189 of the Act shall be made available for inspection 
upon login at https:// instameet.linkintime.co.in or at 
W\Wl.libertyshoes.ccm. 

10. Book Clo.sure Period for the AGM 

Pursuant to Section 91 of the Act read with Rules 
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framed there under and Regulation 42 {5) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 the Share Transfer Books and 
Register of Members of the Company will remain 
closed from Saturday 21st September, 2024 to 
Friday, 27th September, 2024 (both days inclusive) 
for the purpose of the AGM. 

11 . Nomination Facility 

SEBI vide its Circular dated 16th March, 2023 has 
mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC details (i.e. Postal 
Address with Pin Code, email address, mobile 
number, bank account details) and nomination 
details by holders of securities. On or after 1st 
October. 2023, in case any oi the above cited 
documents/details are not available in the Folio(s), 
RTA shall be constrained to freeze such Folio(s). 
Relevant details and forms prescribed by SEBI in this 
regard are available on the website of the Company 
at https:// investor.libertyshoes.C{)m/ 

Members holding shares under a single name in 
physical mode are advised to make nomination in 
respect of their shareholding in the Company. The 
Nomination Form can be downloaded from the 
Company's website. i.e, www.libertyshoes.com from 
"Investor Relations" section. Members holding shares 
in demat mode should tile their nomination with their 
respective Depository Participant(s). 

12. Pursuant to Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations, 
the securities of listed companies can be transferred 
only in the dematerialized mode. In compliance with 
SEBI vide its circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD _ RTAMB/ 
P/CIR/202Z/8 dated 25th January 2022, the following 
requests received by the Company/ Company RTA in 
physical form will be processed and the shares will be 
issued in dematerialisation form only:-

1. Issue cf duplicate share certilicate 

ii. Claim from unclaimed suspense account 

iii. Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate 

iv. Endorsement 

v. Sub-division/splitting of securities certificate/ 
Consolidation of securities certificates/folios 

vi. Transmission 

vii. Transposition 

For this purpose, the securities holder/claimant shall 
submit a duly filled up Form ISR-4 which is hr.sted on 
the website of the Company as well as on the website 
of Link lntime India Pvt Ltd, Registrar and Shara 
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Transfer Agent (RTA). Members, who are holding 
shares in physical/electronic form and their e-mail 
addresses are not registered with the Company/their 
respective Depository Participants, are request'ed to 
register their e-mail addresses at the earliest by 
filling Form ISR-1 and sending the scanned copy of 
the Form mentioning their name, complete address, 
folio number. number of shares held with the Company 
along with self-attested scanned copy of the PAN 
Card and self-attested scanned copy of any one of 
the following documents viz .. Aadhaar Card, Driving 
Licence, Election Card, Passport, utility bill or any 
other Govt document in support of the address proof 
of the Member as registered with the Company for 
receiving the Annual Report 2023-24 along with AGM 
Notice by email to investorc.-are@libertyshoes.ccm. 
Members holding shares in demat fo1m can update 
their email address with their Depository Participants 
and send scan copy of client master to 
investorcare@libertyshoes.com. 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') 
vide its circular no SEBVHO/MIRSD/MIRSD _ RTAMB/ 
P/CIR/2021/655 dated 3rd November, 2021, circular 
no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD _ RTAMBiP/CIR/2021/687 
dated 14th December, 2021, circular no. SEBVHO/ 
MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 16th March, 
2023 (now rescinded by Master Circular SEBI/ 
HO/MIRSD/P00-1/PiCIR/2023/70 dated 17th May, 
2023) read with SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/ P/ 
CIR/2023/181 dated 17th November, 2023 has made 
it mandatory for the shareholders holding securities in 
physical form to furnish PAN, KYC (complete address 
with pin-code, bank detail with MICR-CODE & IFS 
CODE, Email-ID, Mobile Number) and Nomination 
details to the Regisbar and Transfer Agent {'RTA') of 
the Company. Registrar will not process. any service 
requests or complaints received from the member 
until unless above KYC and nomination will not be 
completed by shareholder. 

The Securities and Exchange Board cf India (SEBI) has 
made it mandatory fur all Companies to use the bank 
account details furnished by the Depositories and the 
bank account details maintained by the RTA 
fo1 i:,ayment of dividend tc Members cnly 
electronically by rescinded the SEBI circular SEBV 
HO/ MIRSD/ MIRSD _RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 
dated 3rd November, 2021 and SE31/ 
HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-J/P/CIR/2023/37 /i 
dated 16th March, 2023 by issuance of :. 
Master ' ,t, .. 
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Circular for Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents dated 17th May, 2023 and SEBI/HO/ 
MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2023/ 181 dated 17th November, 
2023, all dividend payments after 31st March. 2024, 
will be processed only electronically. Further. relevant 
FAQs have also been published by SEBI on its website 
at the following web link for investor awareness: 

ht1ps//www.sebi.gov.in/sebi_ data/taqfiles/jan-2024/ 
1704433843359.pdf In compliance with SEBI Circular. 
please note that no dividend will be processed in 
Physical mode and we will process the dividend in 
electronic mode only as per the details provided !Yy you 
within the stipulated time. Further to note that if the 
aforesaid details are not received and the dividend 
remain unpaid/unclaimed upto 7 years, dividend will be 
transferred to IEPF after 7 years as per the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Securities and Exchange Board of India {"SEBI") vide 
its Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE _IAD-1/P/CIR/ 
2023/131 dated 31st July. 2023 and SEBVHO/OIAE/ 
OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated 4th August. 
2023 and Master Circular no. SEBVHO/OIAE/OIAE _ 
IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/145 (updated as on 11th August, 
2023), has introduced a common Online Dispute 
Resolution Portal (''ODR Port-di") to facilitate online 
conciliation and online arbitration for resolution of 
disputes arising in the Indian Securities Market. 
Investors may alsG refer link ht1ps//scores.gov.in/ tG 
access the ODA Portal as well as to the mGdalities o1 
the ODA portal and operational guidelines and 
instructions including timelines for registration/review/ 
resolution cf complaints/disputes filed through the 
portal. manner of proceedings to be conducted by the 
DOR institutions. role and responsibilities cf market 
infrastructure intermediaries. code of conduct for 
cGnciliators and arbitrators etc. as provided in the SEBI 
Circulars referred above and available on the website of 
the Company. An intimation to the shareholders 
through email had been sent by Company RTA during 
the year under consideration whose email are 
registered with them in regard to the Online Dispute 
Resolution Mechanism {ODR system) as maintained by 
the Company. 

13. Members holding shares in electronic form are 
requested to intimate immediately any change in 
their address or bank mandates to their Depository 

!/._~ Participants with whom they are maintaining 
(i_:J theirdemataccounts. 

Members holding shares in physical form 
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are requested to advise any change in their address or 
Bank mandates immediately to the Company's Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent, M/s link lntime India Pvt. Ltd, 
Noble Heights, 1st Floor, C-1 Block, Near Savitri Market, 
Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058. 

14. Members holding shares in physical mode are 
requested to immediately notify any change in their 
address along 1Nith se~-at1ested copy of address 
proof i.e. Adhaar Car!Vflectricity BilVTelephone BilV 
Driving License/Passport/Bank Passbook particulars 
to the Company or its RTA and in case their shares 
are held in dernate1ialized mode. this information 
should be notified/submitted directly to their 
respective Ops. 

15. Members holding shares in electronic form may note 
that bank particulars registered against their 
respective depository accounts will be used by the 
Company for pa'/ment of dividend, if any. The Company 
or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Link 
lntime India Pvt. Ltd. cannot act on any request 
received directly from the Members holding shares in 
electronic form for any change of bank particulars 
or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised 
only to their Depository Participants by the Members. 

16. Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend: 

i. Pursuant to erstwhile Section 205 and Section 
205A of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the 
Companies Unpaid Dividend (Transfer to General 
Revenue Account of the Central Government) 
Rules. 1978 and amended provisions of Section 
205A read with Section 205C of the Companies 
Act. 1956, all unclaimed/unpaid amount of 
dividends have been transferred to the General 
Revenue Account/Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central 
Government. as the case may be. It may be noted 
that once the unpaid/unclaimed amount of 
Dividend is transferred to the IEPF, the same 
cannot be claimed by the members there from in 
terms of the erstwhile provisions of Section 205B 
of the Companies Act 1956 

ii. Further. in compliance with the provisions of 
Sections 124 and 125 of the Act, read with the 
IEPF (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
Rules. 2016 (as amended) (the "IEPF Rules"), the 
Equity Shares, in respect of which dividend not 
claimed or encashed by the Members for seven 
consecutjve years or more. are liable to be 
transfened to the Account of the IEPF Authority. 



lioorty Shoes ltd, 

As per the said Aules, the corresponding equity 
shares in respect of which Dividend remains 
unclaimed/unpaid for seven consecutive years or 
more. are required to be transferred to the 
Demat Account of the IEPF Authority. 

The complete list of said Members whose 
unclaimed/unpaid Dividend and shares thereon 
have been transferred to specified Bank 
accounl;lllemat account of IEPF Authority is 
available on the website of the Company, i.e., 
www.libertyshoes.com under the 'Investor 
Relations' category. 

Members have already informed that once the 
unclaimed or unpaid dividend is transferred to the 
specified Bank account of IEPF and shares are 
transferred to the Demat Account of the IEPF 
Authority, no claim shall lie against the Company 
in respect of such dividend/shares. 

The eligible Members are entitled to claim such 
unclaimed or unpaid dividend and corresponding 
Equity shares including benefits, if any, accruing on 
such shares from the IEPF Authority by making an 
online application in Web Forrn IEPF-5 and sending 
the physical copy of the same duly signed {as per 
the specimen signature recorded with the 
Company) along with requisite documents at the 
Registered Office of the Company forverifica1ion oi 
their claims. Relevant details and the specified 
procedure to claim refund of dividend amount/ 
shares along with an access link to the refund web 
page of IEPF Authority's website for claiming such 
dividend amount/shares has been provided on the 
Company's website, i.e .• www.lib01tyshoes.com 
under the "Investor Relations" category and also in 
this Annual Report. Unclaimed/Unpaid amount of 
dividend and corresponding Equity Shares for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2D15 has been 
transferred to the IEPF on 2nd November, 2022 and 
17th November 2022 respectively. 

17. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act. 2013, 
read in conjunction with Rule 19(1) of the Companies 
!Share Capital and Debentures) Rules. 2014, Members 
are provided the opportunity to make nominations 
ccmceming the shares held by them. Members who 
have not yet registered their nominations are hereby 
urged tc do so by submitting Ferm No. SH 13. This form 
can be obtained from the Company's website 
www.libertyshoes.com, specifically under the 
Investor Relations' section. 

Members who hold shares individually in single name 
and in physical form are advised to initiate the 
nomination process regarding their shareholding in the 
Company. To accomplish this, they must submit the 
duly completed Form No. SH 13 with the Company's 
Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) for shares in 
physical form. and. with their respective depository for 
shares in electronic form. 

In the event that any Memt)er requires cancella1ion or 
modification of their existing nomination pe1taining to 
their Shareholding in the Company, they may download 
Forrn ISR-3 or Form SH-14 from the Company's 
websiteww.libertyshoes.com. After obtaining the 
appropriate form, they must duly complete it and 
submit Form ISR-3 with the Company's Registrar and 
Transfer Agent (RTA) for shares in physical form. or 
Form SH-14 with their respective depository for shares 
in electronic form. 

18. Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to 
inform Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Link 
lntime India Pvt. Ltd .. immediately of: 

a) Change in their residential status on return to India 
for permanent settlement. 

b) Particulars of their bank account maintained in 
India with complete name, branch. account type, 
account number and address of the bank with 
pin code number. if not furnished earlier. 

19. Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders 
post change 1n the Login mechanism for 
Individual sha.rebolders holding securities in 
demat mode, pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBV 
HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242, dated December 
9,2020: 

Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIRIP/ 
2020/242. dated December 9. 2020 one-Voting facility 
provided by Listed Companies. Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode can register directly 
with the depository or will have the option of accessing 
various ESP portals directly from their demat accounts. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts to 
access a-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode is given below: 



Type of shoreholde.rs 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat made with 
NSDL. 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat modo with 
CDSL 

Login Method 

METHOD 1 • If registered with NSDL IDeAS facility 
Users who have registered for NSDL IDeAS facility: 
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al Visit URL: httpsJ/eservices.nsdl.com and click on "Beneficial Ownef' icon under "Login·. 
bl Enter user id and password. Post successful authentication, click on 'J!\ccess to a-voting•. 
cl Click on "UNKINTIME" or ·evoting link dispiaytljj alongside Company's Name" and you will 

be redirected to Link lntime lnstaVote website for casting the vote doting the remote 
e-voting period. 

OR User who have not registered for NSDL IDeAS facility: 
al To register, visit URL: hltps://eservices.nsdl.com and select "Register Online for IOeAS Portal" 

or cfick on httpsJ/ese,vices.nsdl.con\lSecureWeb,1deas Direct Reg.jsp" 
bl Proceed with updating the required f ields. 
cl Post registration, user will be pf0\4ded with Login ID and password. 
di After suoces.sful login, click on "Access to • -voting•. 
el Click on "UNKINTIME" or "evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name• and you will 

be redirected to Link fntime lnstaVote website to, casting the vote during the remote e-•;oting 
period. 

METHOD 2-Bv directly visiting the e-voting website of NSDL: 
al Visit URL: httpsjfl,,,vw.evoting.nsdl.corrv' 
bl Click on the "Login" tab available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. 
cl toter User ID ji.e., your sM:een-digii demat account number held with NSDU, Pass1,vord/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown vn the screen. 
di Post successful authentication. you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website w·nerein you 

can see ·Access 10 e-voting' . 
el Click on "LINKINTIME" or ·evoting fink displaved alongside Company's Name• and you will be 

redirected to link lntlme lnstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting 
period. 

METHOD 1-lf registered with CDSL Easi/Easiest facility 
Users who have registered for CDSL Easi/Easiestfacility. 

a) Visit URL: https://lveb.cdsltndia.con\imyeasitoker)lhome.~ogio 01'\Wvlv.cdslimfia.com. 
bl Click on New System Myeasi 
cJ Logjn with user id and password 
di After successful login, user will be able to see a-voting menu. The menu wiH have links of 

e-voting service providers Le .. UNKINTIME, for voting during the remote e-voting period. 
el Click on "LINKlNTIME'" or "evoting fink displayed alongside Company's Name• aoo you will be 

redirected to link lntime lnstaVote website for casting tire vote during the remote e-voting 
period. 

OR 
Users who have not registered for CDSL EasVEasiest facility. 
al To register. 1isit UAL: https:/.!web.cdslindia.com/nweasitoken/Registration/Eas!Registration 
bl Proceed with updating the required fields. 
cj Post registration, user will be provided login ID and password. 
di After successful login, user able to see e-voting menu. 
el Click on "LINKINTIMt' or "evoting fink displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be 

redirected to link lntime lnstaV01e website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting 
period. 

IVIETHOD 2 • By directly visiting thee-voting website of COSL. 
al Visit URL: https//www.cdslindia.con\l 
bl Go toe-voting tab. 
c) i:nter Demat Account Number 180 10) and PAN No. and click on "Submit". 
di System will aU1henticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and Email as recorded in 

Demat Aocount 
el After successful aU1hentication. cfick on "LINK!NTIME" or "evoting link displayed alongside 

Company's Name· and you will be redirecttljj to Link !ntime lnstaVote website for casting the 
vote during the remote a-voting period. 



lioorty Shoes ltd, 

Type of shoreholde.rs 

Individual Shareholders !holding 
securiti0$ in demat mode) & login 
through U1eir depository participants 

fndividuaf shareholdors holding 
securities in physical form/Non• 
Individual Shareholders holding 
secutities in de mat mode 

Institutional shareholders 

Login Method 

lndi>,idual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
deposito,y paniclpant registered with NSOI/CDSl fore-voting facility. 

al login to DP website 
b) After Successful login, members shall navigate throogh "e-voting" tab under Stocks option. 
cl Click on e-voting option, members will be redirected to NSOl/CDSL Oeposito,y site afier 

successful aulhentication, wherein you can see e-voting menu. 
d) After suceessful authentication, dick on ·uNKINTIME• or "evuting link displayed alongside 

Company's Name· and you \viii be redirected to Link lntime lnsraVote website for casting the 
voie during the remote e-voting period. 

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: httpsJfinstavote.linkintime.co.in 
2. Click on "Sign Up" under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with '/Our follov~ng details:­

A. User ID: 
Shareholders holding shares in physical form shaO pfO\i de event No + Folio Numoer registered V\;th 
the Company. Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP 10 
followed by 8 Digit Client ID: Shareholders holding ;hares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 
Digit Beneficiary 10. 
8. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Petmanent Account Number \PAN) (Shareho!ders who have not 
updated their PAN with the Deposito,y Participant !DPI/Company shall use the sequence oomber 
provided to you, if applicable, 
C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB)/Date of Incorporation (001) !As recorded V\;th your OPi 
Company-in DDiM~VYYYY format) 
D. Bank Account Numbor: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with 
your DP/Company. 
• Sha1eholde1s holding shares in physical form but have not recorded 'C' and v; shall provide their 
Folio number in V' above 
• Stia1eholders holding shares in NSOL form, shall pror1de V' above 

► Set the password of yoUJ choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least 
one soecial Character (@l#S&'), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one 
capital letter). 

► Click •confirm• (Your password is now generated). 

3. Cfick on 'Login' under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab. 
4. Enter your User 10, Password and Image Verification !CAPTCHA) Code and click on 'Submit'. 

Cast your vote electronicalfy: 
I. After successful login, you will oo able to see the notification fore-voting. Select 'View' icon, 
2. E-votilljj page wlll appear. 
3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting you, desired optiO!l 'favour/ 

Against' (I! you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the 'View Resolution' 
file link). 

4. After selecting me desired option Le. Favour/Against. cliclc on ·submit'. A confirmation box will 
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your ,,ote. click on 'Yes', else to change your vote. click 
on 'No' and accordingly mocfity your vote, 

Institutional shareholders [i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NAI etc.) and custodians are required to log 
on the a-voting system of UIPL at httpsj/mstavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as 
'Custodian/Mutual Fund / Corporata Body', They are also required to upload a scanned certified 
true copy of the board resolution /authority le~r/powet of attorney etc. together with attested 
specimen signatuJe of the duly authorised rep,~sentative(s) in PDF format in the 'Custodian/ Mutual 
rood/Corporate Body' login tor the Scrutinizer to verify the same. 



Type of shareholders 

Institutional shareholders r corporate 
Body/Cusllldia,vWIUIUOJ Fund1 

Login Method 

STEP I-Registration 
al Visit URL: httpsJ/instavote.linkintime.co.in 
b) Crtck on Sign up under "Corporate Booy/Custod'iarvMutual F-und" 
d Fill up yoor entity details and submit the fo,m. 

LIBERTY 

d) A declaration form ~nd organization 10 is generated and sent to the Primary contact person 
email 10 twhich is filled at the time of sign up at Sr.No. 2 above). The said form is to be signed by 
!he Authorised Signatory, Director. Company Secretary of the entity & stamped and sent to 
insta.vote@linkintiroo.co.in. 

e) Thereafter. login credentials {User 10; Organisation 10; Password! will be sent to Primary 
contact pe,~on's email ID. 

fj While first login, entity will be directed to change the password and login process L~ completed. 
STE.P 2-lnvestor Mapping 

al Visit URL: https:i1\nstavote.linkintime.co.in and login with credentials as received in Step 1 
above. 

b) Click on · investor Mapping" tab under the Menu Section 
cl Map the Investor with the following details: 

a. 'Investor m·. 
I. Members hOlding shaies in NSDL demat account Shall provide 8 Chaiacter DP 10 follow•d 

by 8 Digit Client ID i.e .. lnOOOOOOl2345678 
ii. Members holding shares in COSL demat account sha8 pro•Ade 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

b. 'lnv1astor's Name• Entel ful name of the entity. 
c. 'Investor PAN' . Enter your 10-dlgk PAN issued by Income Tax Oepanment. 
d. 'Power of Attorney'•Attach Beard resolution or Power of Attorney. file Name for the Board 

resolution/Power of Attorney shall be-DP ID and Client ID. Fvrther, Custodians and Mutual 
Fllods shall also upload specimen signature card. 

d) Click on Subm~ button and investor will be mapped now. 
e) The same can be viewed under ttie ' Report Section•. 

STEP 3-Voting through remote a-voting. 
The corporate silareholder can vote by two methods. once remote a-voting is activated: 
METHOD 1-VOTES ENTRY 

a) Visit URL: https:/(instavote.linkintiffii!.co.in and login with credentials as received in Step 1 
above. 

b) C6ck on 'Votes Entry' tab under the MeJ1u section. 
cl Enter event No. for which you want to cast vote. c•,<ent No. will be available on the home page 

of lnstavote before the sta1t of remote evoting. 
d) Enter '16-digit Demat Account No'. for which yc-u want to cast vote. 
e) Refer lhe Resolution description and cast your •iote by selecting your desired option 

Favour/Against' Of you wish to view the entire Resolution details. click Oil the 
'View Resolution' file fink). 

fl After selecting the des~oo option i.e., favour/Agalnst. click on Submit', 
g) A e-0nfirrnation box wiO be displayed. ff you \\;sh to comirm your vote, click Oil 'Yes'. else to 

change your vote, click on 'No' and accordingly moriify your vote. (Once you cast your vote on 
the resolution, yoo will not be allowed to modify or change it suosequent/y). 

OR 
VOTES UPLOAD: 

a) Visit URL: https://tnstavote.linkinti~ .co.in and login with credentials as recei,-ed in Step 1 
abo\11l. 

b) You will be able to see the notification for a-voting in inbox. 
cl Select 'Vie~/ icon for 'Company's Name/Event number •. E-voting page will appear. 
d) Download sample vote file from 'Download Sample Vote File' option. 
e) Cast your vote by selecting your desired option Favour/Against' in excel and upload the same 

under 'Upload Vote File' option. 
ij Cock on 'Submit', 'Data uploaded successfully' message will be displayed. !Once you cast your 

vote on the resolution. you will not be allO\\-ed to modify or change it subsequently). 
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Type of shoreholde.rs Login Method 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders • Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact link lntime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by 
holding securities in physical mode/ sooding a request at enotices@linkintime.co.in or cont2ct on:- Tel: 022-4918 6000. 
Non-Individual Shareholders holding • tn case shareholders/ members holding secunties in demat mode have any technical issues related 
securities in De mat modo to login !trough Depository i.e. NSDU CDSL, they may contact the respective hetpdesk given below: 

Login Type llelpdesk Details 

Individual Shareholders holding Membm facing any technical issue in login can contact NSOl 
securities in dcmat mode with helpdesk by sending a request at evo1ing@nsdl.co.in or call 
NSDL at: 022-4886 7000 and 022-2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any nichrical ~SIJ• in logi, can cooract COSl 
&ecurities in demat mode Wrth helpdeskby se,iding a request at helpdeskevoting(a)cd!llndia.com 
CDSL 01 contact at tell free ro 1800 22 55 33 

Individual Shareholder$ holding If an Individual shareholder holding securitiei; in physical form has forgotten tl>a USER ID (login IDJ 
securities in Physical mode has or Password or both then the shareholder can use the "forgot Password" option available on the 
forgotten the password: e-Voting website of Link lntime: https://instavote.finkintime.co.in 

O CUck on 'Login' under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and further Clic~ 'forgot password?' 
o Enter User 10, select Mode and Enter lma~e Verification code (CAPTCHA). Clici< on "SUBMIT'. 
In case shareholders is ha,1ng valid email address, /¾l$$WOtd wi// be sent to his i het registerod e-11//Jil 
addre$$. Sha1eholde1S can set the password of hisihar choice bv providing the information about the 
particulars of the Security Question and Anm·~ PAN DOB!D01, Bank Account Number (last four digits) 
etc. as mentioned above. The password should CMtain a minimum of 8 cha,acters, al least one special 
charar:/er /@! #$8• /, al least one numeral. ar least one alpha be/ and at least one capfta1 /e1te, 
U~e, ID fnr Shareholders holding shares in Ph~ical Form (i.e. Share Qenifi~tel: Your Use,· lo is i:vent 
No "- f<JITo Number registered with the Company 
~cc ID 121 Sh~r~hll!dc~ DQlding ,lh;itu,1 in !\lSDL !l!lm~l ~.,Q~nl is 8 Charactei OP 10 followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
U~~clll lDtS.lJitelJJ!jg~~g!b,~Wkll.S.IJ!~ is 16 Digit Beneficia,y ID. 

Individual Shareholders holding rt a Nor;.lndividual Shareholders ho!ding securities in demat mode has forgotten me USER ID !Login IOI 
securities in Physical mode has or Password or both then the shareholder can use the "f<l1got Password" option available on the 
forgotten the password: lnstitl1tional ••Voting website of Unk lntitne: https:/11nstavote.linkintime.co.in 
shareholders ("Corporate Body/ o Click on 'Login' under ·corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund' tab and funher Click 'forgot 
Custodian/Mutual Fund") has password?' 
forgotten the password: 

o Enter User ID, Organization ID and i'nter Image Verijication code (CAPTCHA). Click on "SUBMfl". 

In case shareholde,s is having valid email address, Password will be sent to hc11he1 registered e-mail 
address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the 
particulars of tha See1nity Question and Ansv'8r, PAN, 00Bi001. Bank Account Number (last four 
digits) etc. as mentioned above. The password should conrain a minimum of 8 characters, at leasr 
one special character (@l#:1&•I. ar least one numeral, at least one atphabet and at least one 
capital letter. 

Individual Shareholders holding • It is strongly recommended nol to share your password with any other person and ta](e utmost care 
securities in demat mode with to keep your password confidential. 
NSDL/CDSL has forgotten the • For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical lorm, the details can be used only for voting 
password·: on the resolutions contair.ed in this Notice. 

• During the voting period. shareholdervn,embers can login any number of time tiO they have voted 
on the resoMionls) for a pa1tiC1Jlar "Ev1!!11". 
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Type of shoreholde.rs Login Method 

lndividua.I Shareholders holding If an Individual Shareholdeis holding se<;!J(ities in Physical mode has forgotten tile USER ID !Login IOI 
securities in Physical mode has or Password or both then !he shareholder can use the "Forgot Password" option available on 
forgotten the password: !he e-Voting website of Link lntime: https:/JinstavoteJnkintime.co.in 

o Click on 'login" U11der "SHARE HOLDER' tab and further Click "forgot password?' 

o Enter User ID. select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (GAPTCHA). Click on "SUBMIT". 

In case shareho!rfers is ha'ling valir! email address, Password 1\i// be sent to his I her registered e-mail 
addi~ss. Shareho/dets can set 1/Je password of his/her choice by providing the information about the 
particulars of the Security Ouestion and Answer, PAN. D08/D0/, Bank Account Number /last four digit$) 
etc. as mentioned abwe. The password should contain minimum 8 characiers, at /easr one special 
c/Jsrecter (@! #$8 •1. et lease one numeral, 111 feasr one alphabet end 111 lease one cepiraf fetter. 

User IP for Sharfil!Qlders holding share§ in Ph'/liica!foan (i.e Share Certifkate\; Your User 10 is Event 
No + Fofio Number registm<I with the Company 

Individual Shareholders holding Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User I0/Passwor'd are advised to use Forget User 10 and 
securities in demat mode with Forg;,t Password option available at abovementioned depositor1id&pository participants website. 
NSOL/COSL has forgotten the ► It ~• strongly recomrnende<l not tO share your password with any other person and take utmost caie 
password: to keep your password confidential. 

► For sh2rehold&rs/members holding shares in physical form, the dGtails can be used only for •1oting 
on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

► Ou:ring the voting period, shareholders/members can login any number of time till they have voted 
on the reSQlutionlsJ for a paJlicu!ar "Event' . 

20 Process and manner for attending the Annual 
General Meeting through lnstaMeet: 

Fer a smooth experience of AGM proceedings, 
shareholders who are registered for the event are 
requested to download and install the Webex 
application in advance on the device that you would he 
using to attend the meeting by clicking on the link 
https;//www.webex.com/download s .html/ 
Shareholders also have an option to click on the URL 
provided to attend the meeting. Please read the 
instructions carefully and participate in the meeting. 
For any support, shareholders may also call the RTA on 
the dedicated number provided in the instructions. 

1. Open the internet browser and launch the 
URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in 

► Select the "Company· and ·event Date' and 
register with your following details:-

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 
digit Oemat Account No. or Folio No 

Sharehclders/members hclding shares in CDSL 
demat account shall provide 16 Digit 
Beneficiary ID 

Sharehclders/members holding shares in NSDL 
demat account shall provide 8 

Character DP ID followed 
by 8 Digit Client ID 

Shareholders/members holding shares in physical 
form shall provide Folio Number registered with 
the Company. 

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Acccunt 
Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated 
their PAN with the Depository Participant 
(□Pt/Company shall use the sequence number 
provided to ycu, if applicable. 

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number. 

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with 
your DPiCompany. 

► Click "Go to Meeting· (You are now registered 
for lnstaMeet and your attendance is marked 
for the meeting). 

, Please read the instructions carefully and 
participate in the meeting. You may also call upon 
the lnstaMeet Support Desk for any support on 
the dedicated number provided to you in the 
instruction/lnstalVIEET website. 

2. Members can log in and join 15 minutes prior to the 
schedule time of the AGM and window for joining the 
meeting shall be kept open till the expiry of 15 minutes 
after the scheduled time. The Company shall provide 
VC/OAVM facility to Members to attend the AGM. The 
said facility will be available for 1000 Members en 
first come first served basis. This will not include 
large Members (i.e. Members with 2% er more 
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shareholding), promoters, institutional investors, 
directors, key managerial personnel, chairpersons of 
the audit committee, nomination & remuneration 
committee and stakeholders' relationship committee, 
auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM 
without restriction on account of first come first 
ser1ed basis. 

21 lnstfuctions for Shareholders/Members to Speak 
during the Annual General Meeting through 
lnstaMeet: 

1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the 
meeting must register their request 7 days in advance 
with the company by sending their request on the 
email id at investocare@libertyshoes.com. 

2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first 
basis depending upon the provision made by the client. 
The Company reseives the right to restrict the number 
of speakers depending on the availability of time for 
theAGM. 

3. Shareholders will receive "speaking serial number" 
once they mark attendance for the meeting. 

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panelist, 
via active chat-board during the meeting. 

5. Please remember speaking serial number and start 
your conversation with panelist by switching on video 
mode and audio of your device. 

6. Shareholders are requested to speak only when 
moderatcr of the meeting/management will announce 
the name and serial number for speaking. 

7. Shareholders who wculd like to ask questions, may 
send the same in advance mentioning their name, 
demat account number/folio number, e-mail id, mobile 
number at investorcare@libertyshoes.ccm. atleast 
48 hours prior to the date of AGM i.e. on or before 
11 :00 A.M. HSn on Wednesday, 25th September, 
2024. The same will be replied suitably. 

22 Instructions for Shareholders/Members to Vote 
du.ring the Annual General Meeting through 
lnstaMeet: 

Once the electronic voting is activated by the 
scrutinizer/moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ 
members who have no1 exercised their vote through 
the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under: 

1, On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for 
e-Voting "Cast your vote" 

2. Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No./Folio 

No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile 
number/registered email Id} received during 
registration for lnstaMEET and click on 'Submit'. 

3. After successful login, you will see "Resolution 
Description• and against the same the option 
"Favour/Against" forvoting. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. 
"favour/Against" as desired. Enter the number of 
shares (which represents no. of votes} as on the cut-off 
date under 'Favour/Against'. 

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/ 
Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click 
on "Save". A confirmation box will be displayed. If you 
wish to confirm your vote, click on "Confirm", else to 
change your vote. click on "Back" and accordingly 
modify your vote. 

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will 
not be allowed to modify or change your vote 
subsequently. 

Note: Shareholders/Members, who will be present in 
the Annual General Meeting through lnstaMeet facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through 
remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the 
meeting. Shareholders/Members who have voted through 
Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be 
eligible to attend/participate in the 38th Annual General 
Meeting through lnstaMeet. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote again during the meeting. 

Shareholders/Members are encouraged to join the Meeting 
through Tablets/Laptops connected through broadband 
for better experience. 

Shareholders/Members are required to use Internet with 
a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

Please note that Shareholders/Members connecting from 
Mobile Devices, Tablets, or through Laptops connected via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience AudioNisual loss due to 
fluctuations in their network. It is therefore recommended 
to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind 
of aforesaid glitches. 

In case shareholders/members have any queries 
regarding login/e-voting, they may send an email 
to instameet@linkintime. co.in or contact on:-
Tel: 02249186175. /i :--

t,f, 
0 



Annexuretothe Notice 

(E.xplanatory Statement in respect of the Special 
Businesses to be transacted at the AGM and set out 
under hem No. 4 to 5 of the accompanying Notice of 
AGM pursuant to Section 102 (1} of the Companies 
Act, 2013, as amended} 

Item No 4. 

Sh. Gautam Baid (DIN: 00021400), aged about 48 years, 
Independent Director of the Company. was appointed as 
such by Shareholders of the Company in their 36th Annual 
General Meeting, on the recommendation of the Board of 
Directors ("Board") and Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee {"NRC"}, for first term commencing from 1st 
April 2022 to 28th September 2024. Accordingly, as per 
the term of last appointment, his first tenure as Independent 
Director will comes to end on 28th September, 2024. 
However, the Company has received a proposal for 
re-appointment of Sh. Gautam Baidas Independent 
Director for second term of 3 consecutive years 'N.e.f. 
29th September, 2024 to 28th September, 2027. 

The Members are requested to ncte that pursuant to the 
provisions of the Section 149 {10) and (11) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), an Independent Director 
can hold office for maximum two consecutive terms of up 
to five years each on the Board of a Gompany, subject to the 
approval of shareholders by way of Special Resolution. 
Further, Regulation 25 (2A) Securi1ies Exchange Board of 
India (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations") provides that 
re-appointment of an Independent Director of a listed 
en1lty, shall be subject to the approval of shareholders by 
way of a Special Resolution. Accordingly, Sh. Gautam Baid 
is eligible to be re-appointed as Independent Director of 
the Company for second term. 

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC")and on 
the basis of outcome of evaluation process and in view of 
leadership capabilities, administrative knowledge and 
managerial experience and having independent 
relationship with the Company and its KMPs, Directors and 
Promoters, in their meeting held on 9th August, 2024 have 
considered and recommended the re -appointment of 
Sh. Baid as Independent Director for second term of 3 

.f consecutive years w.e.f. 29th September, 2024 
1/,~ to 28th September, 2027, subject to the 

fi_:;;;v approval of the Shareholders cf the Company 
by way of special resolution. 
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While considering his re-appointment, the Board of 
Directors and NRC have observed that his continuing 
association, guidance and contribution as Board Member 
will gives immense benefit co the Company. 

Sh. Gautam Baid is not disqualified from being Re-appointed 
as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has 
given his consent to act as Director of the Company. The 
Company has also received declaration from him that he 
meets the criteria of independence as prescribed both 
under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Listing Regulations, each as amended from time to time. 
In the opinion of the Board and NRC, Sh. Gautam Baid 
fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the rules 
made there under and Listing Regulations for his 
re-appointment as Independent Director of the Company. 
Further, the Company has received a notice under 
Section 160 (1) of the Act proposing his candidature 
for re-appointment as an Independent Director of the 
Company for second term of 3 consecutive years effective 
from 29th September, 2024 to 28th September, 2027. 

The Company has received an intimation from Sh. Gautam 
Said in form DIR-8 to the effect that he is not disqualified and 
a confirmation stating that he is also not debarred by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or such other Statutory Authority to 
be appointed as a Director in any Company. 

As required under Regulation 25(8) Listing Regulations, 
Sh. Gautam Said has confirmed that he is not aware cf 
any circumstances or situation which exists or may 
be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact his 
ability to discharge his duties. 

A copy of the draft letter of re-appointment setting out 
the terms and conditions etc. of such re-appointment is 
available for inspection through electronic mode. Mernbers 
desirous of inspecting the same may send their requests 
at investorcare@libertyshoes.com from their registered 
e-mail addresses mentioning their names and folio 
numbers/demat account numbers. with a self-attested 
copy of their PAN Card or MOHMR Card or Voter ID Card. 

Sh. Gautam Baid will be paid remuneration by way of 
sitting fee for attending the Board/ Committee Meetings 
or for any other purpose whatsoever as may be decided 
by the Board from time to time and within the lim~s as 
specified under the provisions of Act and Listing 
Regulations. 

Brief profile of Sh. Gautam Said, nature of his expe1tise in 
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specific functional areas and names of Companies in the basis of outcome of evaluation process and in view of 
which he holds directorships/chairmanships along with all knowledge and managerial skills and having independent 
the relevant information as required under the Listing relationship with the Ccmpany and its KMPs, Directors and 
Regulaticns and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings Promoters, in their meeting held on 9th August, 2024 
(SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries have considered and recommended the re-appointment 
of India (ICSI) is also provided in Annexure-A to this Notice. of Dr. Sujata as Independent Director for second term 

Keeping in view of the above, consent of the Members of 3 consecutive years we.f. 29th September, 2024 to 
for the re-appointment of Sh. Gautam Baid as an 28th September, 2027, subject to the approval of the 
Independent Directer, net liable to retire by rotation. is Shareholders cf the Company by way of special resolution. 

being sought by way of Special Resolution as set out at While considering her re-appointment, the Board of 
Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice. Directors and NRC have observed that her continuing 

Except Sh. Gautam Baid, being an appointee, none of the association, guidance and contributicn as Board Member 
Directors or Key manage1ial Personnel of the Company or will gives immense benefit to the Company. 

their relatives is ccncerned or interested, financially or Dr. Sujata is not disqualified from being Re-appointed as a 
otherwise in the Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given 
accompanying Notice. her consent to act as Director of the Company. The 

Item No 5. Company has also received declaration from her that she 

Dr. Sujata (DIN:09289128), aged about 65 years, meets the criteria of independence as prescribed both 
Independent Director of the Company, was appointed as under Section 149 (G) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
such by Shareholders of the Company in their 35th Annual Listing Regulations, each as amended from time to time. 
General Meeting, on the recommendation of the Board of In the opinion of the Beard and NRG, Or. Sujata fulfils the 
Directors ("Beard") and Nomination and Remuneration conditions specified in the Act and the rules made there 
Committee ("NRG"), for first term commencing from under and Listing Regulations for her re-appointment as 
September 29, 2021 to September 28, 2024. Accordingly, Independent Director of the Company. Further, the Company 
as per the term ot last appointment, her first tenure as has received a notice under Section 160 (1 ) of the Act 
Independent Director will comes to end on 28th September, proposing her candidature for re-appointment as an 
2024. However, the Company has received a proposal for Independent DirectN of the Company for second term 
re-appointment of Dr. Sujata as Independent Director of 3 consecutive years effective from 29th September, 2024 
for second term of 3 consecutive years effective from to 28th September, 2027. 

29th September, 2024 to 28th September, 2027. The Company has received an intimation from Dr. Sujata 

The Members are requested to note that pursuant in form DIR-8 to the effect that she is not disqualified and 
to the provisions of the Section 149 (10) and I 11) oi a confirmation stating that she is also not debarred by 
the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act"). an Independent the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of 
Director can hold cffice for maximum twc consecutive Corporate Affairs or such other Statutory Authority to be 
terms of up to five years each on the Board of a Company, appointed as a Director in any Company. As required under 
subject to the approval of shareholders by way of Special Regulatir.n 25{8) Listing Regulations, Dr. Sujata has 
Resolution. Further, Regulation 25 (2A) Securities Exchange confirmed that she is not aware of any circumstances 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure or si1uation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated 
Requirements! Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"! that could impair or impact her ability to discharge her 
provides that. re-appointment of an Independent Director ot duties. 

a listed entity, shall be subject to the approval cf A copy of the draft letter of re-appointment setting out 
shareholders by way of a Special Resolution. Accordingly, the terms and conditions etc. of such re-appointment is 
Dr. Sujaia is eligible to be re-appointed as Independent available for inspection through electronic mode. Members 
Director of the Company for second term. desirous of inspecting the same 

The Board cf Directors, on the recommendation ot may send their requests at .~3 f,•~ 't-;;;;;:;::,!~ 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC")and on investorcare@libertyshoes. (!y,:;-1 
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com from their registered e-mail addresses mentioning their 
names and folio numbers/demat account numbers, with a 
sett-attested copy cf their PAN Card or AADHAAR Card 
or Voter ID Card. 

Dr. Sujata will be paid remuneration by way of sitting fee 
for attending the Board/ Committee Meetings or for any 
other purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board 
from time to time and within the limits as specified 
under the provisions of Act and Listing Regulations. 

Brief profile of Dr. Sujata, nature of her expertise in specific 
functional areas and names of Companies in which she 
holds directorships/chairmanships along with all the 
relevant information as required under the Listing 
Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Mee1ings 
(SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India (ICSI) is also provided in Annexure -A to this Notice. 

Keeping in view of the above, consent of the Members 
for the re-appointment of Dr. Sujata as an Independent 
Director, not liable to retire by rotation, is being sought 

LIBERTY 

by way of Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of 
the accompanying Notice. 

Except Dr. Sujata, being an appointee, none otthe Directors 
or Key managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise 
in the Resolution as set cut at Item No. 5 of the 
accompanying Notice. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: Friday, 9th August. 2024 

Registered Office 

8'1 order of the Board 
For Libert)' Shoes Lid. 

CS Munish Kakra 
CFO & Company Secretary 

M. No.ACS 6262 

libertypuram, 13th Milestone. G.T. Kamal Road. Kutail. 
P.O. Bastara, Oistt Karna! - 132114. Harvana 
Tel.; 1911 - 1748-251101- 03, Fax: (911- 1743-251 100 
E-mail: lpm@libertyshoes.com. Website: www.libe,tyshoes.com 
CIN: l 19201HR1 986PLC033185 
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENE.RAL MEETING 
AND/OR SEEKING FIXATION/VARIATION OF REMUNERATION 

[PURSUANT TO REGULATION 26(4) AND 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARDS-2 (REVISED) ON GENERAL MEETINGS ISSUED BY THE INSmUTE OF 
COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA {ICSI)) 

Name of the Director 

Diroctor Identification Number (DIN) 

Category of Di.rector 
Nationality 

Date of Birtl\/Age 

Dato of First appointment as Director 
Qu_a.ljfication 

Profile/Background details/Recognition or 
awards/Experionce/Exportise in spocific 
functional Areas 

Terms and conditions of appointment/re­
ap·pointment 

Details of remuneration to be sought/ 
remuneration last drawn (2023-24) 

No. of Board Mootiogs attended during 
tho year 

Relationship with other Directors a.nd 
other Koy Managerial Personnel (KMPs) 
inter se 

list of directorships held in other 
Companies as on 31st March, 2024 
(excluding foreign Companies) 

Listed entities from which the person has 
resigned in the past three years 

List of Chainuonship/Memborship in 
Committees of the Board of the oilier 
Companies on which he is a Director as on 
31st March, 2024 

No. of shares held in the Company: 

(a) Own 

(bl For other persons on a beneficial basis 

Sh. Shammi Ban,al 

00138792 

El<ecutive Director 

27th March, '1961/63 Years 
28th November, 1990 

Graduate 

He has been \/,/()fling as Director since 
1990 and as Execum,e Director since 1995. 

He is having considerab!e experience of 
more than three decades in footwear 
Industry. 

Ho has been credited with various 
inijiatises in the field of leather and 
focM1ear technology including use of i:.P. 
Polymers, introduction of 't.VA compound 
in lmfian Foo~Mlar Industry. 

He has wrrsntly been looking afu:r the 
entire portfo6o of production designing 
and development at Company's Plants, 

Reappointed as Director liable to retire by 
mtation. 

He has drawn r&mUneration of ~ 4 lakh P.M. 
aggregating of f 48 lakh P.A. [ineluding all 
perquisites} during the FY 2023-24. 

Rofer Col)>orate Governance Report 

Brother of Sh. Sunil Bansal. Execw1e O~ector 

, Little World Conswctions Pvt Ud. 

Haryana State Industrial and lnfrasnucrure 
Development Corporation ltd. 

None 

Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of 
Col)>orate Social Responsibility Committee­
liaryana State lndustsial and Infrastructure 
Development Col)>oration ltd. 

259640 Equity Shares 

Nil 

Sh. Sunil Bansal 

00142121 

Exee<Jtive Directm 
Indian 

2nd October, 1954,'64 Years 

28th Novemb81, 1990 

Graduate 

• He has been working as Oileeror since 
1990 and as cxocutiv& Director since 2009, 

He Is lla',\ng requisrte experience of more 
than three dee.ides in footwear industry, 

He has been looking after the product 
development operations and ensuring 
the manufacturing of higher qualitative 
products. He is also guiding the feather 
shoes production team with his appreciable 
expertise. 

Reappointed as Director liable to retire by 
rotation. 

He has draWTI remunsration of r 4 lakh P.M. 
aggregating of t 48 lakh P.A. (including all 
perquisites) during the FY 2023-24. 

Asfur Corporate Go•,ernance RepO/t 

Brother ut Sh. Shammi Bansal, Executive 
Director 

, Little W01ld Const,~ctions Pvt ltd. 

None 

None 

232640 ~uity Shares 

NIL 

l-'J"'us-'ti""'fi"c-'ati""'o'-'n'-'f~or-'ro-a.;..c"'PP"O""in1=m"-enc.t'-----l Since, re-appointment is being proposed as Director liable to retire by mtation and not 
Summary of Performance evaluation Non-exeC1Jtive Independent Director, theielore it is not appfrcable. 
Report 
The skills and capabililies required for the 
role·and the manner in which the proposed 
person moots such roquiremenls 



Name of the Director 

Director Identification Number (DIN) 

Category of Director 

Nationality 

Date O'I Birth/Age 

Date of First appointment as Director 

Qualification 

Profile/Background detllils/Recognition or 
awards/EXperience/Expertise i'n specific 
Functional Areas 

Terms and conditions of appointment/re• 
appointment 

Details of remuneration to bo sought/ 
remuneration last drawn (2023-24) 

No. of Board Meetings attended during 
the year 

Relationship witl1 other Directors and 
other Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) 
inter se-

List of directorships hold in other Companies 
as on 31st Marcil, 2024 (excluding foreign 
Companies) 

Sh. Gautam Baid 

00021400 

Non-executive Independent Director 

Indian 

28th November. 1975i48 Years 

1st April. 2022 

Commerce Graduate 

He has been working as Non-Exewtr1e 
Independent Director since 2022 

He is co.founder of Coast to Coast DesigM 
Pvt ltd or,e of th& lndia;s foremost 
companies in the lnl:erior lnfrastJucture 
lndustiy. As a co-founder of one of India's 
foremost companies in the lnteiior 
lnfrastrucMe Industry, he brought 
significant industry experience and 
strategic insight. 
He is en avid angel investor and his 
investment acumen supporl:ed innovation 
and growth across various sectors, 
fostering n&w opportunities and 
advancements. 
lie is an innovator who believes in gi\;ng 
life to his ideas. Hl, dedic-ation to bringing 
global excellence to the Indian ma1ket. 
in.\pired by Indian culrure and his e,1ensive 
travels. affgned with the Company's goals 
of continuous innovation and market 
expansion. 

LIBERTY 

Dr. Sujata 

09289128 

Non•exeC1Jtivo lndel)<!ndent Dlrector 

Indian 

15th June 1959/65 Years 

29th September, 2021 

Ph.O (Psychology) 

• She has been wooong as Non -Executive 
Independent Director since 2021providlng 
invaluable iMights and govemance 
As a distinguished counselor based in 
Kamal. Haryana, her deep understanding 
of human behavior and p~ychology has 
enhanced the Company's approach to 
empi<lyee well-being and stakeholdeI 
engagement. 
She has >Mitten Books and anicles on 
vaiious svbjects in relation to Psychology, 
National and SpiJituaJ aspects. Her research 
outcomes were published in National 
Jcvmals and presented at various 
conferences in India and o\,erseas 
Countries. Her research and thought 
leadership contribute to the Company's 
innovation. 
Throughout her carrier, she has been 
pelforming vanous social and wellare 
related activities and won various awards 
from Govt. of Ha;yana like Brand 
Ambassador for ''BetiBachaoBetiPadao" 
.'SaravDhaiamSamman", "llani Jhar.si", 
Empov,erod Woman· ' and Best Social 
Worket'Allsuch awards reflect her 
alignment with our values of ethical 
conduct and social responsibility. 

Reapporntment as Independent Director RP.appointment as Independent Director not 
not liab!e to retire by rotation. liabk! to retire by rotation. 

No remuneration has been paid during the 
FY 2023-24. HOwt!Ver, sittJng fee for anending 
the Board Meetings was paid. 

Refer Corporate Governance Report 

None 

• Coast to Coast Pvt. l td. 

• D0NYI Polo Timoors M. ltd . 
Mantia Mobile Pvt. l td. 
Exofic Veneers Pvt. ltd. 
DDNYI Polo lnhasIructure P\11. ltd. 

Baid Buildcon Pvt. ltd, 

• Aroma Finance and Portfolio Pvt. Ltd • 

No 1emune1~tion has been paid rruring the 
FY 2023-24. However, sitting fee for attending 
the Board Meetings was paid. 

Refer Corporate Go•;ernance Report 

None 

None 

Listed entities from which U1e person has None None 
resigned in the pastthree years 
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list of Chairmanship/Membership in None None 
Committees of tho Board of tho other 
Companies on which he is a Director as 
on 31st March, 2024 

No. of sharos held in the Company: 

(c) Own Nil NIL 

(d) For other porsons on a bonoficial NIL NIL 
basis 

J·ustiftc,ation for re-appointment Please refer txp!anato,y Statement annexed with the Notice and Co,porate Gove,nance Report 

Summary of Porformance evaluation 
Report 

The skil.ls and capabilities required fortbe 
role and the manner in which u,e proposed 
person meets such requirements 

None cf the abcve Directors are disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) or disqualified and/or 
debarred by virtue cf any order passed by the Securities and Exchange Beard cf India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, any 
Court or any such other StaMory Authorities, to be appointmenVre-appointed/continue as a Director in any Company. 



DIRECTORS'REPORT LIBERTY 

Dear Shareholders, 

Your Directors are presenting the 38th Annual Report of the liberty Shoes Limited ("Company" or "Liberty") together with 
the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

Financial Highlights: 

The highlights of the financial statements are as under:-

Particulars 

Revenue from Opera1ions 

Add: Other Income 

Revenue from Operations and Other Income 

Profit before Exceptional items and Taxes 

less: Exceptional Items 

Profit bofore Tax Exponsa (PBTI 

less: tax txpenses 

Net Profit for the year (NP) 

Other Comprehensive Oncomw{Loss) -Net of taxes 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Review of the operations of the Company: 

Your Company has prepared the Financial Statements for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2024, in terms of 
Sections 129, 133 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) {the "Act") and 
Schedule Ill thereto read with the Rules framed thereunder. 

During the financial year2023-24, Your Company achieved 
a turnover of , 63,685.93 Lakhs, reflecting a marginal 
decline of 2.67% fi·om the previous year's turnover of 
r 65,432.70 Lakhs. The Company could have achieved 
higher turnover had the major untoward fire incident 
halting movement of finished goods for almost three 
weeks not happened during the company's peak season. 
Your company posted a Profit before exceptional items 
of, 2,019.15 l akh for the financial year ended 31st March 
2024 as against, 1,815.43 L.akh during the previous year, 
registering a gro,,vth of 11.22% despite decline in turnover 
during the year. Your Gompany has taken various steps 
to improve operational efficiency in terms of bringing down 
the cost of materials, rationalizjng cost of goods and 
process optimization which has resulted in to higher 
operational profit as compared tc the previous year. The 
exceptional items includes , 4 70.14 l akh en acccunt 
cf value of stock destroyed in fire (net cf Insurance 
claim receivable), less on scrapping of fixed assets in 
lire, loss of third party capital goods destroyed in fire due 

to massive fire broke out at 
Warehouse of the Company in 

the month of Feb, 2024. 

fNoo1J!11 inf t..ktil 

2023-.24 2022-23 

63,685.93 65,432.70 

38.91 17.42 

63,724.84 65,450.12 

2,019.15 1,815.43 

489.78 29.95 

1,529.37 1,785.48 

413.62 494.35 

1,115.75 1,291.13 

(25.89) 51.47 

1,089.86 1,342.60 

Your Company has posted net profit of , 1,115.75 for the 
financial year ended 31st March 2024 as against net profit of 
t 1,291.13 L.akh during the previous year !lnded 31st 
March, 2023. 

Your Company, during the year under consideration, has 
further solidified its position as India's preferred family 
footwear brand, offering a diverse range of products 
through its extensive netwon< of Company-owned 
and exclusive franchise stores besides emergence of 
nationwide MBO's .. Your Company continues to focus 
en expansion and increasing its presence in untapped 
cities/area through its own retaiVfranchise & Distribution 
network besides renovating existing stores to elevate 
customer experience. Your Company has witnessed 
notable growth in the e-commerce segment where the 
Company, besides its own portal ·libertyshoesonline.com", 
has partnered with leading E-commerce players like 
Amazon, Myntra, Flipkart, AJIO etc. This rcbust cnline 
presence, coupled with an efficient e-commerce networr. 
ensures seamless delivery across the count1y, providin~ 
consumers with convenient access to Company's products 
no matter where they are located. Further, your Company 
has also tied up with leading E-commerce players and 
other retail giant(s) for providing qualitative footwear as per 
their specification for utilizing Company's manufacturing 
capacities/strengths & expertise which has resulted into 
maximizing revenue without compromising with Company's 
own requirements. Your Company has seen increasing 
demand/interest in its safety shoes segment which has 
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significantly contributed to the total turnover of the 
Company. Your Company's recently diversifies perfume 
division has also started yielding results with marginal 
profits and with a positive expectation for exploring 
newer markets and channels to enhance the division 
performance in the times to come. 

Your company, during last 2/3 years, has observed a 
significant trend towards premiumiiation due to increase 
in discretionary spend. Consumers are increasingly 
attracting toward high-quality, premium footwear, a trend 
that has been particularly pronounced in 2023. Retailers, 
including your company, have reported higher sales of 
premium, high-priced articles compared to low-priced 
items. This shift indicates a growing preference for 
premium products among consumers, reflecting their 
desire for superior quality and exclusivity. The growing 
demand for premium footwear has driven an increase in 
ASP and boosted the share of higher-end products 
within our brands. including Leap7X launched few years 
back. This trend emphasize the effectiveness of our 
ongoing premiumization strategy including promoting 
product category. 

Liberty with its approach of 'Forever Innovative', remains 
committed to investing in inventive marl<eting campaigns 
to reinforce its brand's image with a focus on style, 
modernity, and youthful appeal. Responding to the growing 
trend of casual wear, Your Company successfully introduced 
the "Forever Sneakers" campaign which has garnered a 
positive reception and significantly enhanced brand 
perception. Your Company in its true endorsement to the 
Govt of India initiative of "Make in India" also productively 
found its new campaign "Mera Joota Hindustani" 
underscoring Liberty commitment to local manufacturing 
and strengthening its connection with customers, enriching 
their engagement with the brand. 

Your Directors believe that the footwear industry holds 
significant growth potential and Liberty is well-positioned 
to capitalize on this opportunity and drive future success. 

Credit Rating: 

During the year under review, CARE Ratings Limited, a 
leading rating agency. has assigned its Ratings CARE 
BBB+; (Triple B Plus) in respect of Long-Term banking 
facilities {comprising Term Loan and Werking Capital 
fund-based facilities) and CARE "A2" (''.A" li;,o) in resi;ect 
oi Short-Term banking facilities (comprising non-fund-based 
facilities) sanctioned by the Banks to the Company. 
According to the rating given based on Company's improved 
liquidity position. the outlook on the Long-Term rating has 
been assigned stable. 

Subsidiary Company their Perfom1ance & Consolidated 
financial statement: 

As on date of this report. there is no Subsidiaiy. Associate or 
Joint Venture of the Company. 

Appropriations: 

Dividend 

Since your Company is not among top 1000 listed 
Companies based on market capitalization (calculated as 
on 31st March, 2024). therefore the requirement of having 
the dividend distribution policy as provided under Regulation 
43 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations. 2015 (as amended) heretn after 
referred as "Listing Regulations· in this report, is not 
applicable to the Company. However. your Company 
will adopt the same as and when it is applicable on it 

The Board of Directors after considering financial 
pe,tormance and prevailing business environment, decided 
to reinvest the profits of the Company as growth capital 
into the business of the Company, therefore did not 
recommend any dividend for the financial year under review. 

Transfer to Reserves 

Your Directors prcposed to transfer f NIL (Previous Year 
t NIL) to the General Reserves out of the profits available 
with the Company for appropriations. Accordingly, an 
amount oft 1089.87l akh (Pre1~ous Year t 1,342.60) has 
been proposed to be retained in the Profh & Loss Account 
of the Company. 

Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund 

During the year under review. there was no unpaid or 
unclaimed dividend as well as any corresponding shares 
were liable to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund, in complianc,e with provisions of Sections 
124 and 125 of the Act read with the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit. Transfer 
and Refund/ Rules, 2016 ("IEPF Rules"} as amended from 
time to time. 

Further as on March 31. 2024, an amount of t 5.28 Lakh 
is lying as unpaid or unclaimed dividend which would be 
liable to be transferred in the year 2029. The details of 
the abovesaid unpaid or unclaimed dividend and any 
other unpaid or unclaimed dividend pertaining to any 
previous years which has been already transferred to 
IEPF can accessed from the website of the Company i.e. 
https://rnvestor.libertyshoes.com/ 

Employees Stock Option Scheme(s} 

During the year ended 31st March. 2024. 



your Company has not floated any scheme in relation to 
Employees Stock Option{s) and no such further plans 
have been initiated at present in this regard. 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 178 of the Act, 
the Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee ("NRC"), framed and adopted 
a policy for identifying, recommending, selection and 
appointment of Directors and KMPs of the Company and 
remuneration to Directors. KMPs and other employees. The 
ccntents of the Pclicy and evaluaticn criteria have been 
stated in the Corporate Governance Report. The updated 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy is set out in 
Annexure-I of this Report. The Policy is also available on 
the website of the Company i.e. www.libertyshoes.com. 

Policies on Prevention of Insider Trading 

1. Your Company has adopted a code of internal 
procedures and conduct for regulating. monitoring 
and reporting of trading by insiders in accordance 
with the prcvisims of Regulation 9 cf the SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 
The Code has been adopted with a view to regulate 
trading in Equity Shares of the Company by tlle 
Promoters. Directors, Employees, designated 
persons and other connected persons, The said 
Code of Conduct is available on the website of the 
Company at www.libertyshoes.com. The Code 
entails the procedures of pre-clearance for dealing 
in Company's shares and prohibits trading in the 
shares of the Company by the Promoters, 
Oirectcrs. Employees. designated persons and 
other connected persons while they are in 
possession of unpublished price sensitive 
information ("UPS!") and also during the period 
when the Trading Window remains closed. 

2. Your Company has adopted a Code of Practices 
and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished 
Price Sensitive Information under Regulation 
8 of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015. The Code aims at preventing 
the misuse of UPS! within the Organisation and 
practice cf selective disclosure to the public. 

The Board of Directors has ensured the compliance 
under the stated statutory Guidelines. 

Familiarization Program 
,f~ if,y 

h,:;;;v 
In Nder to encourage active participation of 
Independent Directors and in order to 

understand the business environment, your 

LIBERTY 

Company has been familiarizing the Independent Directors 
on its Board with detailed presentations by its business 
functional heads on the Company operations. strategic 
business plans. new products and technologies including 
significant aspects of the industry and its future outlook. 
Once appointed, the Non-Executive & independent 
Directors undergo the familiarization program of the 
Company. The Non executive & independent Directors are 
also provided with financial results, internal audit findings 
and other specific documents as sought by them from time 
to time. They are also made aware of the various policies 
and code of conduct and business ethics adopted by 
the Board. Details of familiarization programs extended 
to the Non-Executive & Independent Directors during the 
year under consideration are disclosed on the Company 
website at www.libertyshoes.com. 

Risk Management Policy & Risk Management 

The Management of the Company has always been 
consciously reviewing its business operations in accordance 
with set rules and procedure and if any deviation or risk is 
found, remedial and effective steps are being taken to 
minimize the deviation and risk. In line with the provisions 
of Secticn 134 (3) {n) cf the Ccmpanies Act. 2013, the 
Company has developed a Risk Management Policy to build 
and establish the process and procedure for Identifying, 
assessing, quantifying, minimizing, mitigating and managing 
the associated risk at early stage. Policy is aimed to develop 
an approach to make assessment and management of the 
risks in financial. operational and project-based areas in 
timely manner. The main objectives of the Risk Management 
Policy is inter-alia. to ensure that all the current and future 
material risk exposures of the Company are identified, 
assessed. quantified. appropriately mitigated, minimized 
and managed, to protect the brand value through strategic 
control and operational policies and to enable compliance 
with appropriate regulations wherever applicable. through 
the adoption of best practices. The Board of Directors of the 
Company assesses several types of risks which include 
Business Environment Risks. Strategic Business Risks and 
Operational Risks etc. The Board of Directors periodically 
reviews and evaluates the risk management system of 
the Company so that the management controls the risks 
through properly defined networks. Head of the 
Departments are responsible for implementation of the 
risk management system as may be applicable to their 
respective areas of functioning and report to the Board and 
Audit Committee. No risks threatening the existence of the 
organization have been identified. However. there are other 
risks against which adequate mitigation plans are prepared. 

The Risk Management policy is available on the 
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Company's website of the Company at https:// 
investor.fibertyshoes.com/doc/statutory _policies/Risk%20 
Management%20Policy.pdl. 

Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism) 

As per the provisions of Section 177 (9} & (10) of the 
Companies Act. 2013 read with Regulations 4(2) (d) (iv) and 
22 of Listing Regulations, your Company has an effective 
mechanism of reporting illegal or unethical behavior. The 
Company has a Whistle Blower Policy (vigil mechanism) 
wherein the directors, employees, consultants and 
contractors are free to report violations of laws, rules and 
regulations or unethical conducts, actual or suspected fraud 
or violation of the Company's code of conduct or ethics 
policy to the nodal officer. The mechanism followed is 
appropriately communicated within the Company across all 
levels and has been posted on the Notice Board of the 
Company. The confidentiality of those reporting violations 
etc. is maintained and they are not subjected to any 
discriminatory practice. The concern can be reported by 
sending an e-mail message at the dedicated address viz. 
ethicscounsellors@libertyshoes.com. Individuals can also 
raise their concerns directly to the CEO or the Chairman of 
the Audit Committee of the Company. Any allegation falling 
within the scope of the concerns are identified, investigated 
and dealt with appropriately. The Audit Committee 
periodically reviews the functioning of this mechanism. The 
Vigil mechanism established in the Company provides 
adequate safeguards against victimization of director(s) or 
employee(s) or any other person who avail the mechanism. 
During the year, no personnel of the Company was 
denied access to the Audit Committee. The details oi 
establishment of Vigil mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy 
of the Company are available at the website of the 
Company viz. www.libe1tyshoes.com. 

Non-applicability of Maintenance of Cost Records: 

The Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under Section 14811) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under with 
respect to the Company's nature of business. 

Buy Back of Equity Shares: 

Your Company has not undertaken any exercise to buy back 
its Equity Shares from the shareholders during the year 
under review. 

Public Deposit(s): 

The Company has not accepted/renewed any public 
deposits and as such. no amount on account of principal or 
interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on 
date of the balance sheet. 

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Re-appointment of Directors to retire by rotation 

Sh. Shammi Bansal and Sh. Sunil Bansal, Directors of 
the Company who will be retiring by rotation at the 
38th Annual General Meeting in pursuance of the provisions 
of Section 152 of the Companies Act. 2013 and being 
eligible, have offered themselves for the re-appointment 
at the 38th Annual General Meeting. 

Appointment(s) and Celisation of office of Directors 

Appointment(s): 

(a) The membe1 s at the 37th Annual General 
Meeting held on 30th September, 2023 have 
approved the following appointments: 

i. Sh. Piyush Oixit {DIN: 03514223) as an 
Independent Director of the Company for a term 
of 3 years effective from 11th August, 2023 
to 10th August, 2026; 

ii. Sh. Anand Das Mundhra (DIN: 00167418) as 
an Independent Director of the Company for 
a term of 3 years effective from 11th August, 
2023 to 10th August, 2026; 

(b) On the basis of recommendation of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and based on the 
report of performance evaluation, the Board of 
Directors of the Company in their meeting held 
on 9th August 2024 have approved the re­
appointments of Sh. Gautam Baid (DIN: 00021400) 
and Dr. Sujata (DIN: 09289128) for a second term 
of 3 consecutive years commencing from 
September 29, 2024 tc September 28. 2027 
subject to the approval of the members in 
their forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 
Accordingly, their candidature(s) along with 
resolution(s) are being placed in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting tor re-appointment as an 
Independent Director of the Company. 

Brief Prcfife of abcve Directors, nature of their expertise 
in specific functional areas and names of Companies in 
which they hold directorship/chairmanships between 
directors inter se as stipulated under Companies 
Act. 2013, Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards. is 
provided in the Annexure A to the Notice. 

Appointments/Re-appointments made after the 
closure of Financial Year 

After the clcsure of the 
Financial Year 2023-



2024, on the recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and also Board of Directors, have 
approved the below re-appointments vide Special 
Resolutions dated June 21, 2024 passed through Postal 
3allot process: 

1. re-appointment of Sh. Sunil Bansal (DIN: 
00142121 ). as Executive Director of the Company, 
for a period of 3 years from 1st April, 2024 to 31st 
March, 2027 

2. re-appointment of Sh. Shammi Bansal (DIN: 
00138792), as Executive Directer of the Company, 
for a period of 3 years from 1st April, 2024 
to 31st March, 2027 

3. re-appointment of Sh. Adish Gupta (DIM: 
00137612). as Executive Director of the Company, 
for a period of 3 years from 1st April, 2024 to 
31st March, 2027 

4. re-appointment of Sh. Ashok Kumar (DIN: 
06883514), as Executive Director of the Company, 
for a period of 3 years from 1st April, 2024 to 
31st March, 2027 

Cessation of office of Director: 

During the financial year, 2023-24. due to pre-occupaticns, 
Sh. Arvind Bali Kumar and Sh. Sanjay Bhatia, Independent 
Directors have tendered resignation from the position of 
Directorship of the company with effect from 24th May, 
2023. Besides above, there were no other reasons for 
tendering of their resignations. The Board of Directors of the 
Company in their meeting held on 30th May, 2023 have 
placed en record appreciation for the contribution made by 
the above Directors during their respective tenure(s). 

The members at the 37th Annual General Meeting held on 
30th September, 2023 have approved the removal of 
Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta (DIN: 00143192) from the office 
of Director/Executive Director of the Company with effect 
from the date of 37th Annual General Meeting i.e. 
30th September, 2023. 

Cessation of Chief Executi11e Officer (CEO} 

As reported earlier, Sh. Adesh Gupta has ceased to be a 
Chief faecutive Officer of the Company w.e.f. 5th 
September, 2023 as per the decision of tile Board ot 
Directors of the Company taken in their Meeting held 
on 5th September, 2023. 

Key Managerial Personnel 

e.{I As on March 31, 2024, the following 
' . "'.~, 0 ' persons were the Key Managerial 

6?'~~ 7~ ,,!. 'l:, ' • (I 
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Personnel (KMPs) of the Company as per the provisions of 
the Companies Act. 2013 • 

Sh. Shammi Bansal 

Sh. Sunil Bansal 

Sh. Adish Gupta 

Sh. Ashok Kumar 

Sh. Munish Kakra 

Committees of the Board 

Executive Directer 

Executive Director 

Executive Director 

Executive Director 

CFO & Company Secretary 

As on March 31, 2024, the Company's Board has constituted 
the following Committees: 

1. Audit Committee 

2. Management Committee 

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

5. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

The detail of terms of reference of the Committees, 
Committee composition, meetings held during the year and 
attendance at the meetings of the Committees are provided 
in the Corporate Governance Report. 

Number of meetings of the board 

During the year under review, the Board of Directors met 6 
(Six} times. The detail of the composition. beard meetings 
held during the year and attendance at the meetings are 
provided in Corporate Governance Report. The maximum 
time gap between two meetings did not exceed 120 days. 

Annual Evaluation of Directors and Board as a whole 

Pursuant to the previsions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Listing Regulations, the Beard is required to monitor and 
review the Board evaluation framework. In line w~h the 
Corporate Governance Guidelines, the Annual Performance 
Evaluation is conducted for all members as well as the 
working of the Board and its Committees. This evaluation is 
with specific focus on the performance and effective 
functioning of the Board after seeking inputs from all the 
directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board 
composition and structure, effectiveness of board 
processes, information and functioning, etc. The evaluation 
process also considers the time spent by each of the Board 
Members, core competencies, personal characteristics, 
accomplishment of specific responsibilities and expertise. In 
addition, the Chairman is also evaluated on the key aspects 
of his role. The Board evaluation is conducted through 
questionnaire having qualitative parameters and feedback 
based on ratings. The performance of the committees was 



lioorty Shoes ltd, 

evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the 
committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the 
composition of committees, effectiveness of committee 
meetings, etc. 

The outcome cf the Board evaluation for the financial year 
under c<msideraticn was discussed by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and Board at their respective 
meetings held on 30th March, 2024 excluding the director 
being evaluated. 

During the year under review, the Company has complied 
with all the criteria of Evaluation as evisaged in the 
SEBI Circular on "Guidance Note on Board Evaluation". 

In lines with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Listing Regulations, separate meeting of the Independent 
Directors of the Company was held on 30th March, 2024 in 
the absence of non-independent directors and members of 
management inter alia to evaluate the performance of the 
non-Independent Directors, Board as a whols of the 
Company, its committees, Chairman and to assess the 
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information 
between the Company management and the Board. 

Attributes, Qualifications & Independence of 
Directors and their appointment 

The criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes 
and independence of Directors in terms of the Act and the 
Rules there under. both in respect of Independent Directors 
and other Directors as applicable, has earlier been approved 
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 
the financial year 2015-16 (amended from time to time). 
The Policy of the Company also provides that Non-Executive 
Independent Directors be drawn from amongst eminent 
professionals with experience in business/finance/law/ 
public administration & enterp1ises. The Board Diversity 
Policy of the Company requires the Board to have balance of 
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate 
to the Company. Directors are appointedire,appointed with 
the approval of the Members for a shorter period say, two 
to five years only. All Directors, other than Independent 
Directors, are liable to retire by rotation and are eligible for 
re-election in terms of the provisions of A11icles of 
Association. The Independent Directors of your Company 
have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence 
as prescribed under section 149 of the Companies, Act, 
2013 and Regulation 16 of Listing Regulations. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy as approved by 
the Board of Directors of the Company has been attached to 
this report and also accessible on the website of the 
Company at www.libertyshoes.com 

Material changes and commitments affecting 
financial position between end of the financial 
year and date of report 

As per the provisions of Section 134(3) (1 ) of the Companies 
Act. 2013, no material changes or commitments affecting 
the financial position have occurred between the end of 
financial year of the Company to which the financial 
statements relate to the date of the report. 

Change in the nature of Business, if anv 

There was no change in the nature of business of the 
Company during the year under review. 

Statutory Disclosures 

Your Directors state that there being no transactions with 
respect to following items during the year under review, no 
disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the same. 

1. Depcsits from the public falling within the ambit cf 
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

2 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to 
dividend, voting or otherwise. 

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to 
employees of your Company under any scheme, save 
and except ESOS referred to in this report. 

4. No settlements have been done with banks or financial 
institutions. 

Internal financial control systems and their adequacy 

Liberty's internal financial controls are adequate and operate 
effectively and ensure orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business including adherence to its policies, safeguard its 
assets, prevent and detect frauds and errors, maintain 
accuracy and completeness of its accounting records and 
furtner enable it in timely preparation of relia.ble financial 
information. During the year, such controls were tested and 
no reportable material weakness in the design or operation 
was obse1ved. However, the Company has observed few 
stances of deviations from the existing Corporate 
Governance guidelines and immediately coming the same 
in to infom1ation of Board/Management Committee, the 
necessary remedial measures have been taken including 
actions against the concerned. 

The Company has in place a strong and independent Internal 
Audit Department which is responsible for assessing and 
improving the effectiveness of internal financial con 
trol and governance. 

To maintain its objectivity and independence, 
the Internal Audit 



function reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
The information has been provided in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report in detailed manner. 

Declaration by Independent Directors 

The Company has received necessary declarations from 
each independent director under Section 149(7) cf the 
Companies Act, 2013, that she/he meets the criteria ot 
independence laid down In Section 149 (6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 16 and 25(8) of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. Further they have confirmed that there 
was no change in the status of their independence and they 
a.re nor aware of any circumstances or situation which 
exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair 
their ability to discharge their duties. The Board of Directors 
of the Company also confirms that the Independent 
Directors also meet the criteria cf expertise, experience, 
integrity and proficiency in terms ot Rule 8 ot the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and on the basis ot 
dec!araticns submitted by the Independent Directors with 
the Company the Board of Directors is having positive 
outlook towards the integrity and expertise of the 
Independent Directors. 

The Independent Directors of the Company had undertaken 
requisite steps towards the inclusion of their names in the 
data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the 
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA) in terms of 
Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Appointment & Qualification cf Directors) Rules, 2014 and 
have registered themselves with the Independent Director's 
databank as required under the above provisions. 
Furthermore, they have also renewed their registration with 
IICA for applicable tenures. The Independent Directors 
(other than Independent Directors who have appeared and 
completed the online proficiency self -assessment test) are 
yet tc appear fer the on line proficiency self-assessment test 
and hence, the opinion on the aforesaid would be provided 
in the next year's annual report. 

Directors' Responsibility statement 

Pursuant to Section 134 (3} (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
your Directors, based on the representations received 
from the management, confirm that: 

I) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed 
and there are no material departures from the same; 

they have selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are 
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reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end 
of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for 
that period; 

iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

iv} they have prepared the annual accounts on a going 
concern basis; 

vi they have laid down internal financial controls to be 
followed by the Company and such internal financial 
controls are adequate and operating effectively; and 

vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively. 

Based on the framework cf internal financial controls and 
compliance systems established and maintained by the 
Company, work performed by the Internal, Statuto1y and 
Secretarial Auditors and external ccnsultants and the 
reviews periormed by management and the relevant 
board committees, including the audit committee, the board 
is of the opinion that the Company's internal financial 
controls were adequate and effective during the financial 
year 2023-24. 

Audit Committee and their Recommendations/ 
Observations 

Your Board has a duly constituted Audit Committee in terms 
of Section 177 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with the 
Rules framed there under and Regulation 18 ct the SEBI 
(Listing Regulations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. The term of reference of the Audit 
Committee has been approved by the Board. The details 
pertaining to composition of Audit Committee, no. of 
meetings held during the year under review, brief term of 
reference and other details have been included in the 
Corporate Governance Repo1t, which forms part of this 
report. The recommendations/observations of the Audit 
Committee placed before the Board during the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2024 in respect of matters pertaining 
to the financial management or any other matter related 
thereto, were considered and duly accepted by the Board 
of Directors of the Company. 
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Statutory Auditors and their Report appointed I\11/s R.C. Kapoor & Co .. Chartered Accountants, 

Pursuant to the r,rovisions of Section 139 of the Companies New Delhi as internal Auditors cf the Company, in 
Act. 2013, the members at their 36th Annual General accordance with terms of the provisions of Sections 
Meeting ("AGM") of the Company held 011 30th September, 138,179 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with rule 8 of the 
2022 had appointed Mis Pardeep Tayal & Co. Chartered Companies !Meetings of Board and its Powers). Rules, 2014 
Accountants, Pa:nipat (firm registration No. 002733N). for and rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the 
a term of 5 (five) consecutilie years from the conclusion financial year 2024-25 for ccnducting the Internal Audit cf 
of 36th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the books of accounts and reviewing and ensuring the 
41 st Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027_ Internal Control system of the Company and to issue their 

report. The Internal Auditors have submitted their consent 
Auditors' Report: alongwith a ccnfirmaticn that they are qualified to act as 
Your Company's Directors have examined the Statutory Internal Auditors of the Company. 
Auditors' Report issued by M/s Pardeep Tayal & Co, Internal Audit Report: 
Chartered Accountants on the Annual Accounts of the 

The Internal Audit Report in respect of books of accounts 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 and Internal Control system of the Company for the Financial 
There is no reservation, qualification or adverse remark Year ended March 31, Z024 has been submitted by M/s 
made by the Stat1Jto1y Auditors in their Report and theil' R.C. Kapoor & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi, 
clarifications, wherever necessary, have been included in which has been duly considered and requisite actions were 
the Notes to the Accounts section as mentioned elsewhere taken by Audit Committee and reports thereon were also 
in this Annual Report. taken on reccrd by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
During the period under ccnslderation, no incident of frauds The Board members have examined the above said report 
was reported by the Statutory Auditors pursuant to Section and observed that there is no reservation, qualification 
143 (121 of the Companies Act, 2013. and adverse remark made by the Internal Auditors. 

Secretarial Auditors and their Report Particulars of Loans, Advances, Guarantees and 

In terms of Section 204 of the Act, read with Rule 9 of Investments 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of The Company has not granted any loan, guarantee or made 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (as amended I. your any investments duri111J the year ended 31st March, 2024 
Board ofDirectors in their meeting held on 30th March, 2024 under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
appointed Mis JVS & Associates, New Delhi a Practicing made there under. Pursuant to Section 186 (4) read with 
Company Secretaries, for the financial year 2023-24 Rule 11 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 
for conducting the Audit of secretarial records cf the Powers) Rules, 2014 and Schedule Vof the Securities and 
Company and issue their report. Exchange Board of India {listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), 
The Secretarial Audit Report in respect of secretarial 

disclosure on particulars relating to Loans, advances 
records of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 

and investments are provided as part of the financial 
31, 2024 has been submitted by Mis JVS & Associates and statements. 
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
The Report of the Secretarial Auditors in Form MR-3 for the Significant and material litigation/orders 
financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 is enclosed to this During the year under review, no Corporate Insolvency 
Report. The Board members have examined the above Resolution application was made or proceeding was 
said repoIt and observed that there is no reservation, initi.lted, byiagainst liberty Shoes Limited under the 
qualification and adverse remark made by the Secretarial provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (as 
Auditors. amended). Further, the detail of material litigation filed 
Internal Auditors and their Report by/against the Company and orders passed therein, if any, 

have been disclosed in the Note no. 53 to 56 'f7c . 
Appointment of Internal Auditors f h N F. · I · 

o t e oles to the manc1a ~ ;J ·'"· , .. 
On the recommendation of Audit Committee, your Board Statements for the year ended ~ ~~~' .. 
of Directors in their meeting held on 29th May, 2024 had 31st March, 2024. !\t? -. cc,:=~ ,, · 

_ ____________ _,~@i.;._r 
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Transactions with Related Parties 

During the year 2023-24. all transactions entered by 
the Company with related parties as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013, Rules made there un-:fer, were in the 
Ordinary Course cf Business and at Arm's Length basis, The 
Audit Committee granted omnibus approval for the 
transactions {which are repetitive in nature) and the same 
was reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board of 
Directors on qua1terly basis. Your Company does net have a 
material unlisted subsidiary as defined under Regulation 16 
(1) (c) of the SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Your Directors shall 
formulate a Policy to determine Material Unlisted Subsidiary 
as and when the relevant provisions for the same are 
applicable on it in future. 

There were no materially significant transactions with 
related parties during the financial year 2023-24 which were 
in conflict with interest of the Company. Since all the related 
party transactions entered in to by your Company were in 
the ordinary course of business and also on an arm's length 
basis, therefore details required to be provided in the 
prescribed Fann AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company. 
However, the Company has been undertaking transactions 
for last so many years in respect oi payment of Royalty/ 
Franchise fees to few cf the related parties after cbtaining 
due prior approval of the concerned regulatory authorities 
and shareholders under the provisions of Companies Act 
and SEBI Guidelines. All the related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the Notes tc financial statements as 
required under IND AS-24 of the Accounting Standard. 

In line with the previsions of the Companies Act. 2013 
and the Listing Regulations, the Board had approved 
and adopted policies on Related Party Transactions 
which has been uploaded on the Company's website 
www.libertyshoes.com under the "investor relations 
secticn·. 

Particulars of Directors and Employees 

The information required under Section 197{12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, and subsequent amendments thereto is aiven 
in Annexure II and the same forms part of thi; riport. 

A statement containing the Information of top ten 
employees in terms of remuneration drawn as provided 

under Section 197 (12) oi the 
Companies Act, 2013 read 

with rule 5 (2) cf the 
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Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, and subsequent amendments 
thereto. is given in Annexure Ill and the same forms part of 
this report. During the financial year 2023-24, no employee, 
whether employed for whole or part of the year, was 
drawing remuneration exceeding the limits mentioned 
under Section 197{12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) cf 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and subsequent 
amendments thereto. 

Extract of Annual Return 

In terms of Sections 92{3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act annual 
return is available under the 'Investors' section of the 
Company's website i.e. wwv.r.libertyshoes.com. 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

For the past three decades, your company has been actively 
involved in social projects. It has carried out a variety of 
activities in the areas of education, primary heatthcare, 
communities, ecology, and the environment, among 
others. It is committed 10 making a significant and long­
lasting difference in building a society that is fair, just, 
compassionate, and sustainable. Wrth the implementation 
of new provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013, Liberty is committed to further strengthening its effort 
and activities by demonstrating care for the community 
through its focus on education and skill development, health 
and wellness, including treatment for the impoverished. 
needy, and uninsured, environment sustainability. including 
the promotion cf green initiatives, improvement cf the living 
conditions of inhabitants, and support for disaster relief 
efforts, among other things. Liberty has long engaged in CSR 
initiatives. The following are the several CSA projects that 
your company carried out in the year that is being evaluated: 

1. Promotion of Cluality education in the Schools 
and Skill development. 

Liberty demonstrates a strong commitment to social 
responsibility by means of a number of programs 
that help the general upbringing and schooling of 
impoverished youngsters living close to its plants 
and offices. The organization guarantees that kids 
from low-income families have access to good 
education, health care, and a heahhy diet by means 
of kind donations and sponsorships. Beyond just 
producing top-notch students, Liberty's mission is to 
develop kind, responsible adults who can make a 
constructive contribution to society. The organization 
aspires to make the future of the impoverished brighter 
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and more equitable by providing these young brains 
with education, healthcare, and necessaJY resources. 

Apa1t from emphasizing education and growth, l iberty 
is cognizant of the fiscal difficulties that households 
have. In an effo1t to lessen this load, the company 
donates free books, backpacks, uniforms, and other 
requirements to schools, guaranteeing that no child is 
denied an education because of financial difficulties, 
These extensive charitable endeavours demonstrate 
Liberty's constant commitment to having a meaningful 
and long-lasting influence on these kids' lives and 
helping them to cvercome challenges and realize their 
full potential as capable and independent adults. 

2. Promotion of Fitness & Sports amongst the youth 
from the community 

• Liberty made a contribution to the training of young 
athletes and archers for participation in national games 
and the Olympics through various initiatives and plans. 

• Liberty contributed for providing vocational training 
to the special need athletes in collaboration with 
scciety-Oarpan, an image of Innocence. 

• Liberty contributed for the success of Indian Contingent 
at the 19th Asian Games organized by Indian Olympics 
Association in New Delhi and imhance Liberty Shoes 
Ltd.'s reputation as a socially responsible corporate 
entity. 

3. Contribution for Sanitation and Healthcare 

The Company is committed to ensure the overall 
purposes of sanitation by providing a healthy living 
environment for everyone. by protecting & conserving 
the natural resources such as surface water. 
groundwater, soil nearby the plants to create its 
availability for deprived people of these resources. The 
Company has focus on conservation of natural 
resources for use by its own people and people living 
nearby by putting constant effo1ts towards improving 
the lives of those in need. 

The Company has also been partnering with other 
associations/institutions for prcviding healthcare to 
needy people and pursuit thereof the company, in 
collaboration with the Chiranjiv Medical Foundation, 
continues to provide life-changing support for the 
'cochlear implant programme" for children who have 
been diagnosed with early hearing disabilities and who 
may qualify for surgery to implant a cochlear implant. 
By staying true to their mission, they help people who 

are in extreme need and lessen the effects of 
emergencies while building a more resilient and caring 
community. The Company has contributed,iprovided 
an ambulance to the community for easy access to 
the nearby hospital at all time by the needy people. 

4. Contribution for disaster management 

Liberty has always been sensitive tcwards the people 
and Country in case of any unwarranted situation like 
flood. earthquake, disaster of any kind and come 
forward tc help the people in need hy contributing 
groceries, shoes/footwear and essential items either 
by its own or in association with NGO/institutions 
engaged in this ccmmon cause. Liberty has 
contributed for this cause during the year as per details 
provided herein the report. 

5. Contribution for reconstruction of heritage 
Buildings and development of Pllb.lic Infrastructure 

Liberty has made substantial contribution for 
the expenses incurred for the restoration and 
reconstruction of national heritage buildings. Through 
these donations, the company has shown its respect 
and commitment for preserving & safeguarding the 
country's cultural legacy, ensurihg the prctection and 
upkeep of historically significant structures including 
of City of Kamal for the benefit of current and future 
generations. 

6. Other CSR activities and initiatives 

Liberty has made contributions to numerous recognized 
Kalyankari Sabhas and Societies in need tor the 
promotion of religious activities and development of 
various facilities. 

During the year under consideration the Company has 
complied with the provisions of Companies Act. 2013 by 
making the required contribution on the activities as stated 
in Schedule VII of the Act. The Annual Report on Corporate 
Social Responsibility activities as required under Sections 
134 and Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 is provided in Annexure 
IV of this report. The CSR policy is available on the website 
of the Company at wvvw.libertyshoes.com. 

Oisclosure under the Sexual harassment 
of Womenat Workplace (Prevention, Ii 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 f ,t, _ 

0 



Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and 
harassment free workplace for every individual working in 
Liberty's premises through various interventions and 
practices. The Company always endeavors to create and 
provide an environment that is free from discrimination 
and harassment including sexual harassment. 

The Company has in place a robust policy on prevention oi 
sexual harassment at workplace. The policy aims at 
prevention of harassment of employees as well as 
c0ntracrors and lays do111/ll the guidelines for identification, 
reporting and prevention of sexual harassment. There is an 
Internal Complaints Committee which is responsible for 
redressal cl complaints related tc sexual harassment and 
follows the guidelines provided in the policy. The said 
Committee has its presence at corporate office as well as 
at plants. 

During the year ended 31st March, 2024 the Committee did 
not receive any complaint pertaining to sexual harassment 
and there is no complaint pending as on the date of 
beginning of this Financial year and as on the date of the 
closure of this Financial year. 

Corporate Governance and Ethics 

Ycur Company believes in adopting best practices cf 
corporate governance. Corporate Governance principles are 
enshrined in the spirit of Liberty, which form the core values 
of Liberty. These guiding principles are also articulated 
through the Company's Code of Conduct, Corporate 
Governance guidelines, Charter of various Sub-Committees 
and disclosure policy. 

As per Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulaticns, a separate 
section on corporate governance practices followed by your 
Company, together with a certificate from Statuto1y 
Auditors M/s Pradeep Tayal & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
on compliance with corporate governance norms under 
the Listing Regulations, is given at page no. 82 to page 
no. 83 of this Annual report. 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

In terms of Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, the 
Management Discussion and Analysis repmt on your 
Company's performance, industry trends and other material 
changes with respect to your Company, wherever 
applicable. are presented at page no. 86 to page no. 90 of 

. this Annual report. The Management Disclosure 
/ ~ and Analysis Report provides a consolidated 

/ If..;;,, prospective of economic, social and 
environmental aspects material to our 
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strategy and our ability to create and sustain value to our 
key stakeholders. 

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption 
and Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo: 

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 
134 (1/ (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Acccunts/ Rules, 2014 in rela.tion tc 
conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption and 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo is given in the 
''l\nnexure V", which forms part of this repcrt. 

Compliance with Secretarial Standards: 

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial 
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India. 

Outstanding Share Capital and its Listing: 

Your Company has outstanding Share Capital of 
, 17,04,00,000/- (Previcus Year , 17.04,00,000/·l 
consisting of 1,70,40,000 (Previous Year , 1,70,40,000) 
Equity Shares of, 10/- each and these Equity Shares are 
presently listed and available for trading at National 
Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) and BSE Ltd. (BSE). 

Acknowledgments and Appreciation: 

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record 
their sincere gratitu1e for the consistent cooperation and 
support received from the shareholders, Bankers. Channel 
Pa1tners and the Government Authorities. 

Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation to the 
employees at all levels for their hard work and dedication. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: Friday, 9th August, 2024 

For and on behalf of the 
Board of Directors 

Shammi Bansal 
Chairman of the Meeting 

DIN: 00138792 
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

OBJECTIVE AND GUIDING PRINCIPLES 

The objective of Liberty Shoes Limited's (the Company) 
remuneration policv is to ensure that: 

❖ The level and composition of remuneration is 
reasonable to attract, motivate and retain qualified 
and expe1t individuals that the Company needs in order 
to achieve its strategic and operational objectives; 

,, The relationship of remuneration to performance 
is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmark; and 

" The remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management Personnel 
(SMP) and ether employees, wherever applicable, 
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay and 
also reflects the short and long term performance 
objectives appropriate to the worl<ing of the Company 
and its goals. 

., The Company has a compensation mix of fixed pay, 
benefits, allowances, perquisites, performance linked 
incentives, wherever applicable, and retirement 
benefits for its Executive Directors, KMP, SMP and 
other Employees: and 

" The remuneration and payment of advances/loans to 
the employees other than Directors/KMPs/SMPs. 

THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE 

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and 
rules made there under, a listed Company is required to 
constitute a Nomination & Remuneration Committee which 
is responsible for formulating a policy related to the 
remuneration for the director, key managerial personnel and 
other employees and recommend the same to the Board for 
their approval and making the necessary amendments to 
the above policy from time to time. 

DEFINITIONS 

❖ "Board" means Board of Directors of the Company. 

,, "Company" means "Liberty Shoes Limited." 

❖ "Employees' Steck Option" means the option given tc 
the directors, officers or employees of a Company or 
cf its holding Company or subsidiary Company or 
Companies, if any, which gives such directors, officers 
or employees, the benefit or right to purchase, or to 
subscribe for, the shares of the Company at a future 
date at a pre-determined price. 

,, "Independent Director" means a director referred to in 
Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act 2013. 

., "Key Managerial Personnel" (KMP) means 

• 

• 

• 

• 

{I) Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director 
or the Manager, 

(ii) Company Secretary, 

(iii) Whole-time Director, 

{iv) Chief financial Officer; and 

(v) Such other officer as may be prescribed. 

"Nomination and Remuneration Committee" shall 
mean a Committee of Board of Directors of the 
Company, constituted in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the l isting Agreement. 

"Policy or This Policy• means, "Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy." 

"Remuneration" means any money or its equivalent 
given or passed to any person for services rendered 
by him and includes perquisites as defined under the 
Income-tax Act, 1961. 

"Senior Management Personnel" (SMP) means 
personnel of the Company who are members of i1s 
core management team excluding Board of Directors. 
This would include all members of management one 
level below the executive directors, including all the 
functional heads. 

• "Other Employees" means Employee of the Company 
ether than Directors/l<MPiSMP. 

INTERPRETATION 

Terms that have not been defined in this Policy shall have 
the same meaning assigned to them in the Companies 
Act, 2013, Listing Agreement and/or any other SEBI 
Regulation(s) as amended from time to time. 

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE 
The role of the Committee inter alia will be the following: 

a) To formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence cf a Director. 

b) Formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent 
Directors and the Board. 

c) Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors 
and who may be appointed in Seni 
Management in accordance wit 
the criteria laid down · 
this policy. 



d} To carry out evaluation of every Director's/KMP's 
performance. 

e) To recommend to the Board the appointment and 
removal of Directors and Senior Management. 

ij To recommend to the Board policy relating to 
remuneration for Directors. Key Managerial Personnel, 
Senior Management Personnel and other Employees of 
the Company. 

g) Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is 
reasonable and sufficient, relationship of remuneration 
to performance is clear and meets appropriate 
performance benchmark.s. 

h} To devise a policy on Board diversity. 

i) To carry out any other function as is mandated by the 
Board from tirne to time and/or enforced by any 
statutory notification, amendment or modification, as 
may he applicable. 

j} To perform such otherfunctions as may be necessa1y or 
appropriate for the performance of its duties. 

k} To define the Polic11 and criteria for payment ot 
advances/loans to Oirectors/KMPs/SMPs/other 
employees. 

MEMBERSHIP 

a. The Committee shall comprise at least three (3) 
Directors, all of whom shall be non-executive Directors 
and at least half shall be Independent Directors. 

b. The Soard shall reconstitute the Committee as and 
when required to comply with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable statutory 
requirement. 

c. Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum 
forthe Committee meeting. 

d. Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the 
Annual Report. 

e. Term of the Committee shall be continued unless 
terminated by the Board ofDirectors. 

CHAIRMAN 

a} Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent 
Director. 

~ 
' . . ' 
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b) Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a 
member of the Committee but shall not Chair the 
Committee. 

c} In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the 
Committee present at the meeting shall choose one 
amongst them to act as Chairman. 

d) Chairman cf the Mcmination and Remuneration 
Committee could be present at the Annual General 
Meeting er may nominate some ether member tc 
answer the shareholders' queries. 

FREO.UENCY OF MEETINGS 

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular 
intervals as may be required. 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

a. A member of the Committee is not entitled to be 
present Ii/hen his or her own remuneration is discussed 
at a meeting or when his or her perfom1ance is being 
evaluated. 

b. The Committee may invite such executives. as it 
considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings 
of the Committee. 

VOTING 

a} Matters arising for determination at Committee 
meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of 
Members present and voting and any such decision 
shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the 
Committee. 

bl In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the 
meeting will have a casting vote. 

DIVERSITY 

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of 
having a diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at 
Board level as an essential element in maintaining a 
competitive advantage A truly diverse Board will include and 
make good use of differences in the skills, regional and 
industry experience, background, race, gender and other 
distinctions among Directors. The Committee will 
periodically review board diversity to bring in expertise and 
experience in diverse areas and disciplines to improve 
the standards of corporate governance, transparency, 
operational efficiency and risk management. All Board 
appointments are made on merit, in the context of the skills, 
experience, independence and knowledge which the Board 
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as a whole requires to be effe~'tive. The Committee will 
discuss succession planning and board diversity at the time 
of nominating Directors. It will be the Committee's endeavor 
to have Board members from diverse backgrounds/ 
disciplines including the follo~\~ng: 

,:. Corporate Finance and Accounting; 

., Corporate laws and Legal; 

"' Engineering and lnformalion Technology 

., Business Strategy and Administration; 

., And any other background/discipline as deemed 
necessary by 1he Committee. 

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, K.MP 
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

• Appointment criteria and qualifications: 

• 

1. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the 
integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of 
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at 
Senior Management level and recommend to the 
Board his/her appointment. 

2. A person should possess adequate qualification, 
expertise and experience tor the position he/she 
is considered ior appointment The Committee 
has discretion to decide whether qualification, 
expertise and experience possessed by a person 
are sufficien1;lsatisfacto1y for the concerned 
position. 

3. The Company shall not appoint or continue 
the employment of any person as Managing 
DirectorfMJole time Director/ Manager who has 
attained the age of seventy years, provided that 
the term of the person holding this position may 
be extended beyond the age of seventy years with 
the approval of sharehclders by passing a special 
resoluticn based on the explanatory statement 
annexed to the notice for such motion indicating 
the justification for extension of appointment 
beyond seventy years 

Term/Tenure: 

1. Managing DirectorfMJole-time Director/Manager 
(Managerial Person): 

❖ The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any 
person as its Managerial Person fer a tem1 net 

exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment 
shall be made eartier than one year before the 
expiry of term. 

2. Independent Directer: 

" An Independent Director shall hold office for a term 
up to five consecutive years on the Board of the 
Ccmpany and will be eligible for re-appointment 
on passing of a special resolution by the Company 
for another term and disclosure of such 
appointment shall be made in the Board's report . 

❖ No Independent Director shall hold office for more 
than t\l\lo consecutive terms, but such Independent 
Director shall be eligible for appointment after 
expiry of three years of ceasing to become an 
Independent Director, provided that an 
Independent Director shall not, during the said 
period of three years, be appointed in or be 
associated v,ith the Company in any other 
capacity. either directly or indirectly. 

❖ At the time of appointment of Independent 
Director, it should be ensured that number of 
Boards on 1,vhich such Independent Director 
serves, is restricted to seven listed companies 
as an Independent Director and three listed 
companies as an Independent Director in case 
such perscn is ser✓ing as a Whole time Director 
of a listed Company. 

• Evaluation: 

Committee shall carry out evaluation of 
pe1formance of every Director. KMP and Senior 
Management at regular interval (yearly). 

I. Removal: 

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned 
in the Companies Act. 2013, rules made there 
under or under any other applicable Act. rules and 
regulations. the Committee may recommend, to 
the Board with reasons recorded in writing, 
removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management 
subject to the provisions and compliance of the 
said Act. rules and regulations. 

ii. Retirement: The Director. KMP and 
Senior Management shall retire as 



per the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the prevailing pclicy of the 
Company. 

The Board will have the discretion to retain the 
Director, KMP, Senior Management in the same 
position/remuneration or otherwise even after 
attaining the retirement age, fur the benefit of 
the Company. 

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF 
MANAGERIAL PERSON, KMP AND SENIOR 
MANAGE.MENT 

iii. General: 

1. The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. 
to Managerial Person, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel will be determined by the 
Committee and recommended to the Board 
for approval. The remuneration/ccmpensaticn/ 
commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/post 
approval of the shareholders of the Company, 
wherever required. 

2. The remuneration and commission to be paid to 
Managerial Person shall be as per the statute/\' 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the 
rules made there under and SE'3I LODR 
Regulations, amended from time to time. 

3. Increments to the existing remunerat ion/ 
compensation structure may be recommended by 
the Committee to the Board which should be 
within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in 
the case of Managerial Person. Unless otherwise 
decided by the Board of Directors & Committee 
there of, Shareholders and other respective 
approving authority of the Company, the 
increments will be effective. from the date ot 
re appointment in respect of Managerial Person 
and 1st April in respect of other KMP and Senior 
Management of the Company. 

4. Where any insurance is taken by the Company on 
behalf of its Managerial Person, KMP and any other 
emplcyees for indemnifying them against any 
liability, the premium paid on such insurance sh-011 

not be treated as part of the remuneration 
payable to any such personnel. =--
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Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the 
premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as 
part of the remuneration. 

iv. Remuneration to Managerial Person, KMP and 
Senior Management: 

1. Fixed pay: 

Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management 
shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may 
be approved by the Beard en the recommendation 
of the Committee in accordance wi1h the statutory 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the 
rules made there under and SEBI LOOR 
Regulations, amended from time to time. The 
break-up of the pay scale and quantum of 
perquisites including, employet's contribution to 
P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees 
etc. shall be decided and apprcved by the Board on 
the recommendation of the Committee and 
approved by the shareholders, wherever required. 

2. Minimum Remuneration: 

If, in any financial year. the Company has no profits 
or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall 
pay remuneration to its Managerial Person in 
accordance witti the provisions of Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

3. Provisions for excess remuneration: 

If any Managerial Person draws or receives, 
directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any 
such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under 
the Companies Act, 2013 or withcut the prior 
approval of the shareholders, where required, 
he/she shall refund such sums to the Company and 
until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the 
Company. 

The Company shall not waive recovery of such 
sum refundable to it unless apprcved by the 
shareholders. 

v. Remuneration to Non-Executive/Independent 
Director: 

1. Remuneration/Commission: 

The remuneration/commission shall be in 
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accordance with the statutory provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there 
under and SEBI LODR Regulations, as amended 
from time to time. 

2. Sitting Fees: 

The Non- Executive/Independent Directer may 
receive remuneration by way of fees for attending 
meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided 
that the amount of such fees shall not exceed tile 
maximum amount as provided in the Companies 
Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee. 

3, Limit of Remuneration/Commission: 

The Non- Executive/Independent Director may 
receive remuneration by way of commission or 
otheiwise. 

Provided that the amount of such remuneration or 
ccmmission, as the case may be. shall not exceed 
the maximum amount as may be provided in the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LOOR Regulations, 
amended from time to time. 

4. Stock Options: 

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any 
stock option of the Company. 

vi. REMUNERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES 

The Remuneration including loans and advances to 
other employees will be decided as per the discretion 
and approval by the respective HODs/Directors of the 
Company. 

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING 

Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and 
signed by the Chairrnan of the :xiid meeting or the 
Chairman of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes 
of the Cornmittee. meeting will be tabled at the 
subsequent Board and Committee meeting. 

DEVIATIONS FROM THIS POLICY 

Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary 
circumstances, when deemed necessary in the 
interests of the Company, will be made if there are 
specific reasons to do so in an individual case. 

Place: New Oe[hi 
Dated: Frida'{, Sth August, 2024 

For and on behalf of the 
Board of Directors 

Shamml Bansal 
Chainnan of the Meeting 

DIN: 00138792 
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Particulars of employees 

Information as per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of Companie.s (Appointment 
and Remuneration of IVlanagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the financial year: 

Executive Directors Ratio to median Remuneration 

Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta* 27.00 
Sh. Shammi Bansal 27.00 
Sh. Sunil Bansal 27.00 
Sh. Adish Kumar Gupta 27.00 -· -
Sh. Ashok Kumar 18.00 

*Ceased to be a Director/tXecutive D1,ector w.e.f. September 30, 2023 

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer 
and Company Secretary in the financial year: 

Directors, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive % increase in remuneration 
officer, and Company Secretary in the Financial year(%) 

Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta, CEO & Executive Director .. NIL 

Sh. Shammi Bansal, Executive Director NIL 
Sh. Sunil Bansal, Executive Director NIL 

Sh. Adish Kumar Gupta, Executive Director NIL 

Sh. Ashok Kumar, Executive Director NIL 

Sh. Munish Kakra, CFO & Company Secretary NIL 
*Ceased to be a O,ractor/txecut,ve D,rector w.e.f. September 30. 2023 

c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 17% 

d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 2047 

e) Avera_ge percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there any exceptional circumstances for increase in 
the managerial remunerat ion: 

Average Percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year was 8%, whereas the increase in 1he managerial remuneration was NIL The average increase of 
remuneration every year is an outcome of Company's market competitiveness as against similar Companies. 

f) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 

The Company affirms that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

For and on behalf o1 the Board of Oireciors 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: Friday, 9th August, 2024 

Shammi Bansal 
Cllaillnan of the Meetiflg 

DIN: 00138792 
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lnfonnation of top 10 Employees in terms of remuneration drawn as per Section 197 (12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) 
Rules, 2014 

s. Name Oe,ignation Remune-- Nalllre of Qualification 
No. ration Employmont. 

{P.A.) Whether 
(fin lakh) Contractual 

or otherwise 

I. Sh. Soni Bans,! Executh-e Director 48.00 l'eimMenl Graduate 

2. S1. S:iarmii llarlsal Executive Director 48.00 Permanent Graduate 

3. Sil Mish Kllllar Executive 0ir£ct« 48.00 P<,manoot Graduate 
G\l)ta 

4, Sh. Ram Prakash IT-HOld 45.92 l'em,;nent &ct~li, in 
ComfltJte, 
Appfcation 

5. Dr.N'•rma Natio.'lal Head, 45.66 Pennanent Ph. D. ii Hildi 
Anand lnstitutioral Sales Li'lera1ure 

6. Sh MurM Kal<ra CfO &Cllll'IJan1 45.07 l'efmanent M Com, 
Secretary cs. U8 

7. Sh. Ramesh Kllmar Cl'O- lltlal 40.48 l'<mwlent ll:'ad"'1e, 
SadrtU' CA Inter 

8. Sh. Aamao Bansal Cliet Ope,ati,g 30.00 Pem1a.ieot Gradwte 
Qffia, 

9, St. \li18k Bansal Haa,:, FtcdOClion 30 00 ~•nt Graduaie 
Pv'C & nen Leather' 

O~iisir:11 

10 Sh. AAJfl2lll H<adRctafi 30.00 l'<mwlellt Graduaie li 
Bansal Oiiooma in 

Shoes 
Des'gnilg 
fr<.m Italy 

•Retired w.e.f. 31.12.2023 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: Friday. 9th August 2024 

Exp~nce 
(In Yea,.) 

37 

37 

32 

20 

28 

39 

44 

35 

32 

27 

Date of Age Last Employee it a 
Appotntmont employment rclalivc of any 

Designation director or manager 
of the Company and 
H so, name of such 
di(ector or ma.na.ger 

28th N<,,-ember. 64 NA Bro1ller of 
1990 Sh. Sharmii Bansal. 

~re Oirec;tt.< .:Jf 
lhe er,,,,,µany 

28th September. 63 llA Brotner of 
1990 Sh. Slrnl Bansal. 

e.ecut•'ll Orect<)( 
of lhe Ccm!'3ny 

12th August, 60 NA NA 
ZOil 

15th Jur,,, 2009 49 S'r1a Soft, NA 
N:,ida, 

~ncipal-Retal 
C-Oowlt,lnt 

25th N<,,-emb,(, 58 Oiractor NA 
2002 Mar1<'1ing, 

Ess!I 
En(irtee<irrg 
lnl>JS1lies 

ITh,re lm,ed 
New lltlhi 

28th SepUrnbet 
2001 

60 NA NA 

1st .-.,01.2004 69 SL{ler Houso-
S·.V~e 

NA 

f\esidmt 

1st,6;ltiL~ 62 Head Sa'.es& Brother of 
Oistrbulion of Sh. Sunl ear"81 and 
Lilerty Shoes Sh. Shamrri Bansal. 

lirmed Execu~-e Directors 
of the Ccmf)Blly 

1st .-.,01, 2005 59 l'Mner; Bml!lerof 
UbertyGroup Sh. Sun! Bal'$ill and 

M,rl,.eti,g Sh. Shammi B"""L 
l).fS.on arv:I &,acllt71.,e Directors 

IJllsrtv !1f 1118 Ccmpanv 
Enterprises 

Kimel 

1st .-.,OL 2013 52 M. O .. IJb«ty 
Re1,ij 

Brotner of 
Sn SIJnl l!al'$ill and 

ROl'l.tltioos Sh. Shamrrl Ba!lsal. 
ltd. E}:ecl.M-e Directcrs 

flew Delhi of the Ccmf)ilny 

filran<I on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Shammi Bansal 
Chairman of the Meeting 

DIN: 00138792 
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ANNUAL REPORT ON 
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSRI ACTIVITIES: 

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, 
including overview of projects or programs proposed 
to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link 
to the CSR policy and projects and programs: 

Liberty has always been a frontrunner in contributing to 
the society at large. In Liberty, CSR initiatives are being 
undertaken long before the implementation of new 
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act. 2013. 
Liberty is committed to further strengthen its effort and 
activities by demonstrating ,.are for the community through 
its focus on education and development of skills. health 
and wellness including treatment for poor, needy & 
underprivileged people, making efforts for environment 
sustainabilitv including promotion of green initiatives and 
Improvement cf the living ccndmons of inhabitants and 
supporting to disaster relief efforts etc. 

The CSR Committee constituted under the Act provides 
oversight of CSR policy execution to ensure that the CSR 
objective of the Company are met and it reviews and 
looks after the activities of CSR including identifying the 
areas of CSR as per the provisions of the Act. The projects 

Sr. No Name of Director Designation/Nature 
of Dir"torship 

1. Sh. Shammi 9ansal Chainnan 

2 Sh. Adish Kumar Gupta Member 

3 Dr. Sujata Member 

to be undertaken are within the broad framework of 
schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The CSR Policy of the Company was revised at the Board 
Meeting held on 11th August, 2021, based on the 
recommendations of the CSR Commit1ee. The said CSR 
Policy has been developed in ccnformity with the provisicns 
of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and 
in accordance with the CSR Rules (the Rules) notified by the 
Ministiy of Corporate Affairs. Government of India. Further 
the said Policy has been revised to confirm with the 
amendments in the Act and the Rules. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

The Board of Directors of your Company has constituted a 
CSR Committee of Directors in terms cl the requirement cf 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Corporate Social Reasonability Policy) Rules. 2014 to 
identify, approve and monitor proper execution and 
implementation of the CSR projects and CSR activities 
undertaken by the Company. As on date the detail cf 
composition of CSR Committee is as under:-

Number of meetings Number of meetings of 
of CSR Committee held CSR Committee attended 

during the year during the year 

1 1 

1 1 

1 1 

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the Board are 
disclosed on the website of the Company 

The Web-link for CSR committee composition. CSR Policy and CSR Projects are as under. 

CSR Committee Composition www.libertyshoes.com 

CSR Policy www.libertyshoes.com 

CSR Project {FY 2023-24) Not Applicable 
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4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Resporniibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report)-Not applir.able 

5. (a) Average net profit al the company as per sub-section 135 (5) al the Companies Act, 2013: ~ 1053.19/- Lakh 
!Amount in t Lakhl 

{bl Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135: 21.06 

(cl Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL 

(di Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: 8.28 

(e/ Total CSR obligation for the financial year [{b}+ (c)-(d)]: 12.78 

6. (a) Details of amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project) for the 
financial year: 

Sr, Nameofthe Item from ti.1e local Location of the project Amount Mode of Mode of 

No. project 6st of activities area spent in for Implement Implementation-Through 
in Schedule VU {Yes/No) ~10 project ation Implementing Agency 

to the Act State Citv/District (in t l.akh) Direct Name CSR 
{Yes/ No) Registration 

No. 

Promoting $pons- Promote rural Yes Himachal Paonta Sahib 2.88 Yes NA NA 
(a) Distribution of sports, nationally Pradesh, & & Kamal 
Hockey Sticks. recognized Haryana, 

unifomis &. sports sports, 
footwears Paralympic 

[bJ Contribution for 
sports and Yes Uttarakhand Oehradun 3.00 Yes NA NA 

1 promotion of 
Olympics sports; 

Archery sport in 
Rural Areas 

© Contrtbution for No New Delhi NewDeJhi 11.34 No Indian CSR00045446 
Asian Olympics Olympic 

Games Associat• 
ion 

Contribution Promoting Health No Delhi Delhi 2.50 No C~ranjiv CSR00000233 
towards promoliflll care Medical 

healthc.re- foundat-
(a) support for the ion 

2 ·cochlear implant 
programm&'1 

lb) Donate Yes Harvana Kamal 1.00 Yes NA NA 
Ambulance for 
Poor Society 

Promotion of Ptomotifll! Yes Delhi/ D&lhll 8.78 Yes NA NA 
Quality education Education, Haryana Gurugram 
in the schools- including Special 

(a) Providing Free Education aoo 
of cost Bags, Emp!oyment 

footwear, enhancing 

Stationary ktts vocation skills 
3 and musical especially among 

inst,~ment to Children, women, 

Unprivileged elderly, and the 
differently abled 

children; and fivefihood 
enhancement 

p1ojectaM'omen 
empowemient ~ .,~ ,,.@;;;,.. jf) " (fa~ --1 ~ - . ~,· ~ ~»~ !-3/r. I;;!' ( s 

$i1 Nl' ~ 

~-~- .... ~ . • \ ~/'. ~ ~ ~- '"'. 
b_;Y! <) ' .I, ... i • ~ -

~ ~,,.;,_B:,. v,,,_ - -



lb) Contribution fo1 No Punjab Ludhiana 
providing 

vocational training 
to the special 
needy athletes 

4 Disaster Disaster Yes Haryana Kamal 
Managemem Management 

Donation- Protection of Yes Haryana Kamal 
restoration & national heritage, 

reconstruction of art & culbJre 

5 building of 
National Heiitage 

including 
restoration of 

bundings & sites 
of historical 
importance & 
WClkS of art 

Tata! 

(b} Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(c} Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 

(d} Total amount spent for the Financial Year {a+b+c): s' 32.25 Lakh 

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 

1.00 

0.75 

1.00 

s' 32.25 

Total amount spent for the Amount Unspent (in ~ lakh) 
Financial Year (Amou.nt in 
~ lakh} 

LIBERTY 

No Oarpan CSR00026400 
Image of 

Innocence 

Yes NA NA 

Yes NA NA 

Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
CSR Account as per Section 135 (6) of Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section 135 {5) 
tile Companies Act. 2013 of tile Companies Act. 2013 

Amount I Date of transfer Name of tile Fund I Amount I Date of transfer 

? 32.25 Lakh Not Applicable 

(b) Excess amount for set off, if any: 

Sr. No Particulars Amount 
in~ Laich 

1. Two P~rcent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 21.06 

2. Amount required to be set -off for F.Y., if any 8.28 

3. Total Amount spent for the Financial Year 32.25 

4. Excess aml)Unt spent for !he Financial Year ((3)-(1 JI 11.19 

5. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any NIL 

6 Amount available for set oft in succeeding financial years ((3 + 2)-1] 19.47 
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7 (a) Details of Unspent CSR Amount for the preceding three financial years 

Sr. No Preceding Amount Amount spent [n Amount Transferred to any fund specified under Amount 
Financial Yo01 Transferred to the reporting Sched.ulo VII as per Section 135 (6) of th remaining to be 

Unspent CSR Financial Year Companies Act. 2013, if any spent in 
Account under {Amount In succeeding 
Section 135 {6) Name of the Amount(in Date of tran•'fer 

of u,e f lakh) Fund t Lakh) financ-ia.1 years. 

Companies Act. (Amount in 
2013 (Amount ~ Lakh) 

in~ Lakh) 

1 FY-1 N.A. 

2 FY-2 N.A. 

3 FY-3 N.A. 

8 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 
amount spent in the Financial Year: 

Q YES - NO 

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: NIL 

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent j•n the financial year (asset wise details) 

Sr. No Short particulars of Pincode of Date of Amount of Details of entity/Authority/beneficiary of the 
tho property or U10 property creation CSR amount registered owner 

asset(s) [Including or asset(s) spent 
complete address and CSR Name Registered 

location of the Registration address 
property] Numbor, if 

appllcable 

NIL 

9. Specify the reason(s) , if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as 
per section 135(5)-Not Applicable 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: Frtday, 9th August, 2024 

For and on behatt of the 8-0ard of Directors 

Mish Gupta 

Executive Director 
DIN: 0013761 2 

Shammi Bansal 
Executive Director & Chairman 

-CSR Committee 
DIN: 00138792 



ANNEXURE V TO DIRECTORS' REPORT 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

ANNEXURE-V TO DIRECTORS' REPORT 

LIBERTY 

Annexure 'I( 

Disclosure of particulars under Section 134 (3) (m) of 
!he Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
\Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of Directors 
& amp; Report for the financial year ended 31 st March, 
2024, are given as under: 

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

The Company is making all efforts tc ccnse,ve 
energy by monitoring energy costs and periodically 
revie\l\i ng the consumption of energy. It also takes 
appropriate steps to reduce the consumption through 
efficiency in usage and timely maintenance/installation/ 
upgradation of energy saving devices. 

I. The Steps taken or impact on conservation 
of energy 

Conservation of energy, by default. has been the 
prime focus area of Liberty. Few of the energy 
conversation initiatives taken during the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2024 are given below: 

i. The Company has upgraded its lighting system 
across the plants and its retail stores by replacing 
older LEO lights with economical range as more 
energy-efficient mcdels. reducing the voltage from 
20 to 12 watt with same lux level. This upgrade 
not only reduces energy consumption but also 
lowers operational costs, reflecting the company's 
commitment to sustainabilrty. 

ii. The company has installed REC D Kits en all generators 
to comply with government norms and guidelines for 
emission control. This proactive measure significantly 
reduces harmful emissions, contributing to a cleaner 
and healthier environment around the facto1Y premises. 

iii. Air shower units have been installed to enhance 
air quality, and obsolete air conditioners have been 
replaced with energy-efficient 4 &ami;; 5-star rated 
models. These upgrades improve the working 
environment while significantly reducing energy 
consumption and operational costs. 

iv. Water conservation initiative having Wa.ter Recharge 
Plant at the manufacturing units designed to harness 

and utilize rainwater by recharging the 
groundwater label. This initiative net ,..._....., 

only conserves water but also reduces reliance on 
external water sources, ensuring sustainable water 
rnaagement within the factory. 

v. The Company has installed advanced Sewage 
Treatment Plants (STPs) that recycle treated water for 
irrigation within the premises instead of discharging 
it outside. 

vi. Recycled paper is used for shoe stuffing in packaging, 
reducing waste and showc.ising the company's 
dedication to sustainable practices. 

II. The Steps taken by the Company for utilizing 
alternate sources of eneflly 

Focus on solar energy to reduce dependency on state 
electricity without compromising with the load &amp; 
efficiency required for the plants. 

The Company has already installed 700kWp {Reef-top) 
&amp; 400 kWp (Ground-mcunt) Solar Photcvoltaic 
Power Plants at its Plant'Office located at Libertypuram 
and Central House, Kamal. Additionally. the company is 
in the process of finalizing and obtaining approval 
tor similar solar installations at its other plants. These 
in~iatives are intended to achieve substantial energy 
savings and further reduce overall energy costs. 

Ill. The Capital Investment on energy conservation 
equipment's 

The Company for the year under consideration has 
not made any major capital investment except 
routine maintenance of existing solar plants. 

B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

I. The efforts made towards technology absorption 

I. liberty's team has alloiays focused on technology 
advancement for end-to-end solution of operations 
relating to production, sales &amp; distribution and 
accounting and has upgraded its proven ERP by 
implementing the SAP S/4 HANA system, (cloud 
based) for streamlining its operations and also 
enhancing efficiency across the organization. 

11. Company has installed 30 and UV digital printing 
machines, enabling color fusion without paper fill 
to advance in the high-fashion footwear segment. This 
technology allows for innovative designs with reduced 
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waste, aligning with the company's sustainability goals 
and enhancing its product offerings. 

II. The benefits derived like product improvement; 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution 

1. Installation of new software/system at across 
plants duly integrating with SAP/ERP system will 
provide real time access to all departments for 
their planning and execution. 

2. Support to the Company's continued efforts to 
reduce its dependence on import contents 
through emphasis on domestic developments. 

Ill. In case of imported technology (imported 
during the last three years reckoned from the 
beginning of the financial yuarl: NIL 

(a) The details of technology imported-NONE 

{bl The year of import-N.A 

(cl Whether the technology been fully absorbed-N.A 

{d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has 
not taken place, and the reasons thereof-N.A 

IV. The expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development 

The Ccmpany has not incurred any major capital 
expenditure towards its research and development 
activities, however, has spent ~ 46 l akh as recurring 
expenditures towards its development activities. 

This expenditure constitutes 0.07% of the turnover 
of the Company for the year under consideration. 

C} FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO; 

During the year, the Company has earned foreign 
exchange of, 3,619.25 Lakh (previous year , 3802.30 
l akh) and used foreign exchange of <'. 1,835.27 l akh 
(previous year '< 3090.02 Lakh). 

Place: New Oelhi 
Dated: Friday, 9th August, 2024 

For and on behalf of the 
Board oi Directors 

Shammi Bansal 
Chairman of u,e Meeting 

DIN: 00138792 



FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

LIBERTY 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rule Mo. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration cf Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014) 

To, 

The Members 

liberty Shoes Limited 

(CIN: L 19201HR1986PLC033185) 

Liberty Puram, 13 Milestone, 

GT Kamal Road, Kutail, 

P.O. Bastara, Kamal. Haryana 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 
cf applicable statutory provisions and adherence to geed 
corporate practices by Liberty Shoes Limited {hereinafter 
called "the Company") for the financial year ended on March 
31, 2024. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon. 

We report that 

al Maintenance of secretarial records are the responsibility 
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on cur audit; 

b) We have follm'\led the audit practices and processes 
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assuranc.i 
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial 
records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices 
we followed. provide a reasonable basis for our opinion; 

cJ We have not verified the correctness and 
appropriateness of the financial statements of 
the Company; 

d) Wherever required. we have obtained the management 
representation about the compliances of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.; 

e) The compliance of the provisions of the corporate and 
other applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

standards is the responsibility 
of the management. Our 

examination was limited to the verification of procedures 
on test basis; 

O The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as 
to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

g) Based on our verification of the Company's books, 
papers, minute books. forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the 
infonmation provided by the Company, its officers. 
agents and authcrized representatives during the 
conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in 
our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 
{"Audit Period") complied with the statutory previsions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board processes and compliance mechanism in place 
to the extent. in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter: 

h) We have examined the books, papers, minute becks, 
forms and returns filed and other recor,js maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 
2024 according to the provisions of: 

(I) The Companies Act 2013 (the "Act") and the rules 
made there under; 

(ii) The Securities Ccntracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
{'SCRA') and the rules made there under; 

(iii) The Depositories Act 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-laws framed there under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999 and the 
rules and regulations made there under to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings 
{wherever applicablel; 

(v) The following Regulations prescribed under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
{'SEBI Act'):• 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
{Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011 ; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Insider 
Trading Regulations"); 
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(c) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2009 & 2018; 

(d) "The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021; 

(e) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulaticns, 2021; 

(f) The Securi1ies and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client; 

(g) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting 
r.f Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; 

(h) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback 
of Securities) Regulations, 2018; and 

(I) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(listing obligations and Disclosures requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI LODR Regulations"). 

*No event took place under these regulations during 
the Audit period. 

(vi) The Company is engaged in the business of 
manufacturtng and trading of footwear, accessories 
and lifestyle products through its retail, E-commerce 
and wholesale netwcrk and is having its plants at 
Kamal, Libe1typuram & Gharaunda in Haryana, Roorl<ee 
in Llttrakhand and Paonta Sahib in Himachal Pradesh. 
As informed by the Management, there is no sector 
specific law applicable to the Company. 

We have also examined compliance with the 
applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standard on 
Meetings of the Board of Directors and on General 
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India, with which the Company has 
generally complied with. 

During the Audit Period, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations and 
Guidelines to the extent applicable, as mentioned 
above. 

We further report that the Board of Directors of the 
Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Mon-Executive Directors and 

Independent Directors. The changes that took place 
during the year under review in the composition of 
the Board of Directors were carried cut in compliance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Adequate notices were given to all directors of the 
Board Meetings; agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
are sent in advance of the meetings other than those 
held at shorter notice and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on 
the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

Board decisions are carried out wi!h majority consent 
and the dissenting views were captured and recorded 
as pa1t of the minutes, where ever given by Board 
members. 

We further report that there are systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines which needs to be strengthened. 

We, further report that during the audit period there 
were no specific events/actions having a major bearing 
en the company's affairs in pursuance of the above 
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards 
have taken place. 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date 
which is annexed as "ANNEXURE A" and forms an integral 
partifthis report. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 29.05.2024 

For JVS & Assodates 
Company Secretaries 

Jyoti Sharma 
(Proprietor! 

Practidng Company Secretary 
FCS No. 8843; CP No.10196 

Firm Registration No.: I2011DE848300 
UDIN :F008843F0004TT839 

PA No: 851 



ANNEXURE A LIBERTY 

To, 

The Members 

Liberty Shoes limited 

(CIN:L19201HR1986PLC033185) 

Liberty Puram, 13 Milestone, 

GT Kamal Road, Kutail, 

P.O. Bastara, Kamal, Haryana 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

(1 ) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility 
cf the management of the company. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on my audit. 

(2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as 
were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents ofthe Secretarial 
records. The verification 'Nas done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices, 
we follcwed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

(3) We have not verifi ed the correctness and 
appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the company. 

{4) Where ever required, we have obtained the 
Management representation about the compliance 
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of 
events etc. 

{5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and 
other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is 
the responsibility of management. Our examination 
was limited to the verification of procedures on 
test basis. 

(6) The Secretarial Audh report is nehher an assurance as 
to the future viability of the company ncr cf the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management as 
conducted the affairs of the company. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 29.05.2024 

For JVS & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Jyoti Sharma 
(Proprietor! 

Practiciflll Company Secretary 
FCS No. 8843; CP No.10196 

Firm Registration No.: 12011 DE848300 
UDIN:F008843F0004n839 

PA No: 851 
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1. Company's philosophy on Code of Governance 

Liberty's approach to corporate governance revolves 
around upholding ethical principles and effective 
management of the organization. The company places 
significant importance on timely and accurate 
disclosure of financial information, operational 
efficiency, and ownership and management aspects. 

The Company has always adhered tc the funda.mentals 
of sound corporate governance. While respecting the 
fundamental principles of Quality, Trust, Leadership, 
and Excellence, the Company continues to concentrate 
its efforts on achieving the objective of being a leader in 
its product category. Liberty keeps up with the finest 
corporate governance standards and regularly 
evaluates them to strengthen them and boost 
shareholder confidence. 

However, the Company has cbserved few instances of 
deviation from the existing Corporate Governance 
guidelines and immediately coming the same in to 
information of Board/Management Committee, the 
necessary remedial measure has been taken including 
action against the concerned. 

However, the Company has observed few stances 
of deviations from the existing Corporate Governance 
guidelines and immediately coming the same in to 
information of Board /Management Committee. the 
necessary remedial measures have been taken 
including actions against the concerned. 

By empowering its management team with 
accountability, Liberty aims tc capitalize on 
opportunities and convert them into successes that 
benefit the company and its stakeholders. The Board 
has established strong management practices 
designed to create a responsible environment This 
includes thorough strategic planning, effective risk 
management, meticulcus financial planning and 
budgeting, solid internal controls and reporting, 
transparent communication policies, and full disclosure 
of the Company's operations. Additionally, the 
Company is committed to abiding by all applicable laws 
and regulations, both in letter and spirit recognizing 
the importance cf legal and regulatory compliance. This 
commitment extends to maintaining the highest 
standards of corporate governance, aiming to be a 
benchmark for good corporate citizenship. By 

upholding these principles, the Company seeks to 
establish trust and credibility with its stakeholders, 
reinforcing its dedication to ethical conduct and 
sustainable business practices. 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

(a) Composition and Category of Directors 

The Board of Directors is entrusted with the 
overall responsibility cf the management. affairs 
and performance of the Company and has been 
authorized with the requisite powers. l iberty Board 
is a balanced Board, comprising Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors. The Non-Executive 
Directors include independent professionals and 
entrepreneurs having understanding of diversified 
Industries and the overall administration. Your 
Company has also a woman Director which brings 
diversity on the Board. 

In order to effectively discharge its du.lies, it is 
necessary that collectively the Board holds the 
appropriate balance of skills and experience. The 
Board seeks a complementary di1Jersiry of skills 
and experience across its members. The table 
below summarizes the key qualifications, skills, 
expertise and competencies possessed by 
Directors of the Company. 

As on date of this report, the Board of Directors of 
the Company comprises of 10 \Ten) Directors 
including (1) one-woman Independent Director, 
out of which 5 (FNe) are Executive Directors and 
5 (Five) are Non-Executive Independent Directors. 
Out of the said 5 Executive Directors, 4 are 
representing Promoter group of the Company. 

Strucrure of Board (as on date of this Report) : 

Category Number of Directors 

Executive Directors 5 

Non-Executive Independent 
Directors 4 

Non-txecutive lndependem 
Woman Director 1 

Total 10 



Number of Board Meetings 

Board convenes quarterly meetings, with a 
maximum time gap of 120 days between each 
meeting, tc conduct comprehensive reviews and 
discussions on various agenda items, including the 
mandatory information specified in Part A ot 
Schedule II of SEBl(Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements} Regulations. 2015 
(' Listing Regulations' ). In addition to regularly 
scheduled meetings, the Board holds additional 
meetings whenever the need arises and is 
deemed appropriate. 

Furthermore, in situations of urgency or emergency, 
the Board also passes resolutions via circulation. 

Under the Chairmanship of Sh. Shammi Bansal, 
Executive Oirector. the Board meetings held on 
May 30, 2023, August 11, 2023, September 05, 
2023. November 06, 2023, Februa1y 14, 2024 and 
March 30, 2024. 

Executive Directors carry out their responsibilities 
in accordance with the authority granted to them 

LIBERTY 

and the primary responsibilities assigned to them 
in the relevant Service Contracts, and they do so in 
a way that has been approved by the Company's 
Members in accordance with the Corporate 
Governance procedures that the Company uses to 
carry out the business that has been granted 
authorization. As a result, the Board ot the 
Company creates yearly operational plans, 
budgets, and policies in line with the Company's 
goal for its productivity and profitability. 

None of the Oirectors of the Company has any 
other material pecuniary relationship with the 
Company. 

In pursuance of Para C (2), Schedule V to the Listing 
Regulations, the Board has identified the core 
skills/expertise/competencies that are desirable 
for the Company to function effectively in the 
context of its business of the Company and its 
Sector. These core skills/expertise/competencies 
are actually available with the Board in the 
following manner: 
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Area 

Diversified Leadership, 
Business strategies and 
Planning 

Finance, l egal and 
Regulatory Compliance 

Production 
development. and 
Manufacturing 

Sales. Marketing & 
Branding 

Business Administration, 
Crisis management and 
Human Resource 
Management 

Core skills/expertise/competencies in specific functional area 

Diversified experience in leading well governed large organizations 
with an understanding of complex business and regulatory 
environment, accountability, strategic Planning with future vision. 
having decision making capabilities, ability for innovation, ability to 

analyse future business oppo11unities and decide business 
combinations, ability to conceive and conceptualize new business 
ideas, set up new ventures and business units, cross boarder 
dealings and ability to set up International business and Export 
related management, strategies business operations and 
development of new business processes. 

l eadership experience in handling financial management. risk 
management. development governance practices. Creating value 
through Intellectual Property Rights, maintaining management 
accountability, ability to understand commercial. & inancial matters, 
ability to handle legal issues and regulatory compliances 

Experience of production development, ability to select appropriate 
product and Raw material mix, manufacturing of higher qualitative 
products, ability to introduce new and innovative production 
processes and modem technologies 

Experience of accomplishing Sales, understanding of market and 
consumers, Marketing strategies, Understanding of Domestic and 
International fashion trends, branding strategies, merchandising 
strategies and business promotion programmes 

Experience in development of good administration practices for 
complex businesses and environment, ability of problem solving and 
management of crisis, , Integrity and ethical standards , Mentoring 
abilities, identifying best Human Resource practices Public 
Relations and Liasoning and implementation, ability to handle 
administration and Human Resource related issues and ensuring 
related regulatory compliances 

Name of the Directors 
{as on date of this Report) 

Sh. Shammi Bansal 

Sh. Adish Gupta 

Sh. Anupam Bansal 

Sh. Aditya Khemka. 

Sh. Piyush Dixit 

Sh. Anand Das Mundhra 

Sh. Gautam Baid 

Sh. Sunil Bansal 

Sh. Shammi Bansal 

Sh. Anupam Bansal 
Sh. Ashok Kumar 

Sh. Piyush Dixit 

Sh. Aditya Khemka 

Sh. Anand Das Mundhra 

Sh. Shammi Bansal 
Sh. Sunil Bansal 

Sh. Shammi Bansal 

Sh. Adish Gupta 

Sh. Anupam Bansal 

Sh. Aditya Khemka 

Sh. Gautam Baid 

Sh. Piyush Dixit 

Sh. Anand Das Mundhra 

Sh. Shammi Bansal 
Sh. Adish Gupta 

Sh. Anupam Bansal 

Sh. Ashok Kumar 

Dr. Sujata 

Sh. Piyush Dixit 
Sh. Aditya Khemka 

Sh. Anand Das Mundhra 

Sh. Gautam Baid 
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Details of Directors Attendance, Shareholding and other Directorships/Committee memberships 

In accordance with Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations, it is confirmed that no Director seives on more than ten 
board-level committees er acts as Chairman fur more than five committees (specifically considering the Audit Committee and 
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee) across all public limited companies (listed or unlisted) in which they hold a directorship 
As per Regulation 17 A of the Listing Regulations, no Director of the Company holds directorship in over seven listed companies, 
and if serving as a Whole-Time Director/Managing Director in any listed company, doesnt hold the position of Independent 
Director in more than three listed companies. All Directors have provided updates on their directorships, committee 
memberships/chairmanships, and any changes therein. 

The name and categories of the Directors, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the year and atthe last 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) together with particulars of their Directorship and Chairmanship/ 
Membership of Board Committees in various other Companies as on 31st March, 2024 are given as under: 

Sr. Name of the Director(s) Director No. of Board Attendance No. of other 
No. ldc,ntification N.o, Meetings held attbe last Directorship as on 

& Category of & attended AGM 
Directorship 

1. Sh. Shammi Bansal 00138792/ 6(6) Yes 
Promoter & ED 

2 Sh. Sun! Bansal 00\42121/ 6(6) Yes 
Promoter & ED 

3 Sh. Adish Gupta 00137612/ 6(6) No 
Promoter & i:O 

4 Sh. Asholc Kumar 068~5\4/ 6(6) Yes 
El> 

5 Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta' 00143192/ 6(3) No 
Promoter & ED 

6 Sh. Aditya Khemka 00514552/ 6(5) Yes 
NEO(I) 

7 Sh. Piyush Oixit •• 0351 4223! 6(4) No 
NED(I) 

8 Sh. Anand Oas Mundrta•• 00167418/ 6(4) No 
NcO(I) 

9 Dr. Sujata 09289128/ 6(4) No 
NED(I) 

10 Sh. Gautam Baid 0002 t400i 6(4) No 
NEO(I) 

• Note: 'ED' refers to ExecutiYe Director, and 'NED 11)' deoot&s Non-Exec~1ive lndependen1 

• Ceased to be Oirector/E<ecutive Director w.e.f. September 30. 2023 

•• Appointed as Independent Directors w.e.f. August 11. 2023 

31st March, 2024 
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(bl Board's Process Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee which function as per 

In accordance with the legal requirements and to the terms of references decided by the Board from time 
review as well as to analyze the performance of the to time. 
Company at regular inte1vals, the Board of Directors f th 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer o e frequently meet for a minimum of four pre scheduled 
f h Company conducts all the Meetings of Board/Board 

Meetings during each year as per the directions o t e Committees and records the Minut!ls of the 
management of the Company. · M · 

proceedings of each Board and Committee eetmg 
Additional Meetings of the Board are held when and final Minutes are entered in the respective Minutes 
deemed necessary by the Board to address the specific Book(s) within the stipulated period, if any, in 
needs of the Ccmpany, if any. Apart from the Beard of compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
Directors, the various Heads of Departments, Internal 2013, Secretarial Standards-1 on Board Meetings and 
Auditors and Statutory Auditors of the Company are other regulatory enactments. In addition to above, all 
also invited at the Board Meeting to oversee the related the actions taken in respect of important matter(s) 
matters requiring discussior\iapprovaV decision of the discussed in the previous Meetings are placed at the 
Board. Detailed agenda papers along with explanatory immediately succeeding Meetings for the purpose of 
notes and necessary documents and information, in follow up and reviews. rne draft minutes are circulated 
defined Agenda format, are timely circulated to the to the Directors for their comments, if any on the same 
Board of Directors in advance for facilitating meaningful and after incorporating their comments, copy of signed 
and focused decision at the Meeting of the Board and minutes are provided to the directors for their 
Committees thereof. All material information is confirmation in compliance with applicable provisions 
incorporated in the Agenda papers in order to have an of Secretarial Standards on Beard meetings, 
oveiview of the business proposed to be considered at ( c} Board Meetings 

the Meeting(s). lfit is notfeasible to send the each and During the financial year 2023-24, 6 (Six) Board 
every dccument along with the Agenda. the same are Meetings were held viz. on May 30, 2023, August 
placed before Members present at the Meeting with 11, 2023, September 05, 2023, November 06, 2023, 
specific reference to this effect in Agenda. All the February 14, 2024 and March 30, 2024. The annual 
additional or supplementary item(s}, not refened in 

calendar of meetings is broadly determined at the Agenda, are considered after obtaining the due 
beginning of the year. The Board periodically reviews permission at the Meeting. 
the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the 

However, in case of business exigencies or urgencies, Company. The maximum interial between any two 
the resolufons are passed byway of circulation, except Board Meeting{s) was not more than 120 days 
those which are required to be passed only at a Board prescribed under Section 173 of the Companies 
meeting(s) in terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(2) of SEBI LOOR 

Act, 2013. Regulations, 2015. In accordance with Regulation 26 of 
Apart from statutory matters, all major policy the Listing Regulations, none of the Directors are 
decisions, evaluation of internal management members in more than 10 committees excluding 
procedures, budgetary decisions, business strategies private limited companies, foreign companies and 
and risk management practices are placed before the companies under Secticn 8 cl the Companies 
Board. Further, the information as required under Act 2013 or act as Chairperson of more than 5 
Regulation 17 (7) read with Schedule-II, Part-A of SEBI committees across all listed entities in which heishe 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), is a Director. The Audit Committee and Stakeholders' 
Regulations, 2015 is periodically placed before the Relationship Committee are only considered in 
Board/Board Committees. computation of limits. Fu1ther all Directors 'f7c . 
The Beard has also constituted 5(five) Board level have informed about their ~ ~~- , . . 
committees namely Audit Committee, Management Directorships, Committee ,,- ~- ~; ~ f\, .. , 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Memberships/Chairmans {,(~ _ , ,C, = 

- - ---------i:t@i.;,( 
4 'i w ,_ 



hips including any changes in their positions. 
Necessary disclosures regarding C-Ommittea positions 
in other public Companies as on March 31, 2024 have 
been made by the directors. 

As per Regulation 17 A of the Listing Regulations, 
Independent Directors of the Company do not seIve 
as Independent Director in more than seven listed 
companies. Further, any of the \/,/hole Time Directors of 
the Company does not serve as an Independent 
Director in any listed entity. The Beard periodically 
reviews compliance reports of all applicable laws to 
the Company, prepared by the Company. 

Post-tvleeting Follow up system 

After the Board meeting, Liberty have formal system 
of follow up, review and reporting on actions taken by 
the management on the decisions of the Board and 
sub committees of the Board. 

(d) Independent Directors and Familiarization 
Programme 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all the 
Independent Directors of the Company are satisfying 
the requirements as specified under Section 149(6) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with Schedule 
IV of the Act and in the Regulation 25 and Regulation 
16 (1) (bl of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to qualify to act as 
Independent Directors of the Company and are 
independent of the Management. Further, the 
Independent Directors actively participate in tile 
Meetings held from time to time for providing the 
necessary guidance/suggestions for protecting the 
interest of investors/stakeholders. 

The suggestions received from the Independent 
Directors are suitably observed by the management for 
its beneficial implementation. All the Non Executive 
Independent Directors propose to be appointed/ 
existing on the Board have given a declaration under 
Section 149 \7) that he/she meets the criteria of 
Independence as provided in Section 149 (6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and alsc under Regulation 16 
( 1) (!)) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Tenure oflndependent Directors 

Pursuant to Section 149(10) & 
( 11 ) of the Act, the terms of 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
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service for Independent Directors are outlined 
as follows: 

Sh. Aditya Khemka {DIN 00514552) was appointed 
to the Board for first term of five years, commencing 
from 27th September 2019 and his tenure will comes 
to end on 26th September,2024. He has expressed 
his unwillingness to continue as Board Member. 

Sh. Gautam Baid (DIN 00021400) was appointed to 
the Board for first term with effect from 1st April 2022, 
and his term will comes to end on 28th September, 
2024. However, his re-appointment for second 
term of 3 years w.e.f. 29th September, 2024 to 281h 
September, 2027 is being proposed in the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting. 

Or. Sujata (DIN 09289128) was appointed tr. the 
Board for first term for a duration of three years, starting 
from 29th September 2021 and her existing tenure 
will comes to end on 28th September, 2024. However, 
her rs-appointment for second term ot 3 years 
w.e.t. 29th September, 2024 to 28th September, 2027 
is being proposed in the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting. 

Sh. Piyush Dixit \DIN. 03514223) was appointed to 
the Board for a first term of three years commencing 
from 11th August 2023 and his exiting tenure will 
conclude en 10th August, 2026. 

Sh. Anand Das Mundhra (DIN. 00167418 ) was 
appointed to the Beard for a first term of three years 
commencing from 11th August 2023 and his existing 
tenurewill conclude on 10th August, 2026. 

The Non-Executive Independent Directors do not 
have any pecuniary relat1onships or transactions either 
l'litJl the Company, other than sitting fees drawn by the 
Non Executive Independent Director for attending the 
meetings of the Board and its Committees with the 
Promoters/Directors/Senior Management that may 
affect their judgment in any manner. 

The terms and conditions of appointment of the 
Independent directors are disclosed on the website 
of the Company. 

Meeting of Independent Directors 

Duiing the year under consideration a separate 
meeting of the Independent directors was held on 
14th February, 2024. In accordance with the Listing 
Regulations, read with Section 149 (8) and Schedule-
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IV of the Act, following agenda inter-aliato evaluate the 
pelformance of the Board, its Committees, Chairman, 
individual Directors of the Company and to assess the 
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information 
between the company management and the Board. 
The meeting was attended by all the independent 
Directors. 

Familiarization Programme for Independent 
Directors 

In order to encourage active participation of 
Independent Directors and in crder to understand the 
business environment, the Company has been 
familiarizing the Independent Directors on its Board 
with detailed presentations by its business functional 
heads on the Company operations, strategic business 
plans, nev,1 prcducts and technologies, including 
significant aspects of the indust1y and its future 
outlook. Dnce appointed, the Non-Executive & 
Independent Directors undergo the familiarization 
program of the Company. The Non executive & 
Independent Directors are also provided with financial 
results, internal audit findings and attier specific 
documents as sought from time to time. They are 
also made aware of the various Policies and Code 
cf Conduct and business ethics adopted by the 
Board. Details of familiarization programs extended 
to the Non-Executive & Independent Directors during 
the year are disclosed on the Company website 
www.libe1tyshoes.com. Further at the time of 
appointment of an Independent Director. the Company 
issues a formal letter of appointment outlining his/her 

role, function, duties and responsibilities as a director. 

The template cf the letter cf appointment is available 
on Company's website at www.libertyshoes.com. 

{e) Non-Executive Directors' compensation and 
disclosures 

Non-Executive Independent Directors are eligible 
for sitting fees & commission not exceeding the limits 
prescribed under the Companies Act 2013. During the 
financial year 2023-24. Rs. 7,75.000/- was paid as 
sitting fees to Non-executive Independent Directcrsfur 
attending the Meeting of the Board and Audit 
Committee Meeting. Further. no sitting a fee has been 
paid to Executive Directors for attending the Board/ 
Committee thereof, in acccrdance with the respective 
Se1vice Agreement entered in to with them. Further, 
the Company till date has not offered Equity Shares 
under stock option scheme to the Directors/Employees 
of the Company. 

{f) Code of Conduct 

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted the 
'Code of Conduct' for all the Board Members and 
designated members of Senior Management of the 
Company. All the members of the Board and 
designated members of Senior Management have 
complied with the Code of Conduct. The duties of 
independent Directors of the Company were 
incorporated in the Cede to make it more rnbust. 

Details of the Code are available on the website of 
the Company viz. www.libertyshoes.com. 

Annual Declaration by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 1mrsuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Schedule V to the said Regulations:,. 

To, 

The Members 

Liberty Shoes Ltd. 

As an Executive Director of Liberty Shoes ltd. and as required under Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing ObUgations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Schedule V of the said Regulations, I hereby declare that all the Board Members and 
Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with !he Company's Code of Conduct for the financial 
year ended March 31. 2024. 

Shammi Bansal 
Chairman of tile Meeting 

DIN: 00138792 



(g) Brief particulars of the Directors, whose 
candidature are proposed for appointment/ 
re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting: 

(a) Brief particulars of Sh. Shammi Bansal and 
Sh. Sunil Bansal, who will be retiring by rotation 
and being eligible, offers themselves for the 
re-appointment in the ensuing Annual Gene.ral 
Meeting. 

Sh. Shammi Bansal (Executive Director) 
Sh. Shammi Bansal aged about 63 years has been 
associated with the Company as a Director since 1990 
and promoted as Executive Director in 1995. Since then 
he has been associated with the Company as Executive 
Director. During his association with the Company, he 
has been accredited with various initiative~ in the 
field ot leather and footwear technology including 
use of E.P. Polymers including E.V.A. compound in 
Indian Footwear Industry. He is having experience 
of more than three decades in footwear industry. He 
has currently been looking after the entire portfolio 
of product ion designing and development at 
Company's Plants. He belongs to Promoter Group of 
the Company and holds 259640 Equity Shares in the 
Company. 

Sh. Sunil Bansal (Executive Director) Sh. Sunil 
3ansal, aged 64 years, has been acting as Director 
of the Company since J 990 and as E.xecutive Director 
since 2009. He has been looking after the 
product development operations and ensuring the 
manufacturing of higher qualitative products. 
He has over three decades of rich experience in 
footwear industry. He is also guiding the leather sho~ 
production team with his appreciable expertise. 
He belongs to Promoter Group of the Company 
and holds 232640 Equity Shares in the Company. 

Brief profile of above Directors. nature of their expertise 
in specific functional areas and names of Companies 
in which they holds directorships/Chairmanships ot 
Board committees, shareholding and relationships 
between directors inter se as stipulated under 
Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standards, are provided in the Annexure A 
to the Notice of AGM. 

Brief particulars of Sh. Gautam Baid, whose 
candidature is proposed for re-appointment as 

Independent Director in the ensuing 
'=""'- Annual General Meeting: 

~ 
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Sh. Gautam Baid, an Independent Directors of the 
Company, was appointed as such, by the Shareholders 
of the Company in the 36th Annual General Meeting, 
on the recommendation of the Board of Directors 
("Board") and Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee ("NRC"). for a temi commencing from 1st 
April 2022 to 28th September 2024 Accordingly, his 
term as Independent Director of the Company will 
comes toendon 28th September 2024. 

He is cc-founder cf Ccast to Coast Designs Pvt Ltd 
one of the lndia;s foremost companies in the Interior 
Infrastructure Industry.As a co-founder of one of India's 
foremost companies in the Interior Infrastructure 
Industry, he brought significant industry experience and 
strategic insight. He is and avid angel investor and his 
invest.rnent acumen supported innovation and growth 
across various sectors, fostering new opportunities 
and advancements. He is an innovator who believes in 
giving life to his ideas. His dedication to bringing global 
excellence to the Indian market, inspired by Indian 
culture and his e>.'tensive travels, aligned with the 
Company's goals of continuous innovation and 
marl<et expansion. He neither belong to Promoter 
Group of the Company nor holds Equity Shares in the 
Company. 

While discussing the candidature of Sh. Bald. the 
members of Nomination and Remuneration Ccmrnittee 
evaluated his performance during his exist.ing tenure 
and cf requirement ot the Ccmpany in terms cf skill, 
knowledge, experience, capabilities, role and expertise 
required for this position and on the basis of such 
evaluation, the Committee members recorded their 
satisfaction that Sh. Said is having such required skills, 
knowledge, experience, capabilities and expertise. 
Accordingly, his continued association with the 
Company as Independent Director would be of 
immense benefits to the Ccmpany. 

( c) Brief particulars of Or. Sujata, whose candidature 
is proposed for re-appointment as Independent 
Directors in the ensuing Annual General Meeting 

Dr. Sujata. an Independent Directors of the Company, 
was appointed as such, by the Shareholders of the 
Company in the 35th Annual General Meeting, on the 
recommendation of the Board of Directors {"Board") 
and Momination and Remuneration Committee 
("NRG"), tor a term of 3 years commencing with effect 
frnm 29th September, 2021 upto 28th September, 
2024. Accordingly, her term as Independent Director 



lioorty Shoes ltd, 

of the Company will comes to end on 28th 
September 2024. 

She is a distinguished counselor based in Kamal, 
Ha1yana and her deep understanding of human 
behavior and psychology has enhanced the Company's 
approach re employee well-being and stakeholder 
engagement. She has written Books and articles on 
various subjects in relation to Psychology, National and 
Spiritual aspects. Her research outcomes were 
published in National Journals and presented at various 
conferences in India and overseas Countries. Her 
research and thought leadership contribute to the 
Company's innovation. Throughout her carrier, she has 
been performing various social and wettare related 
activities and won various awards from Govt. of 
Ha1yana like Brand Ambassador for "Beti Bachao Seti 
Padao".'Sarav Oharam Samman•, "Rani Jhansi" 
,Empowered Woman" "and Best Social Worker." All 
such awards reflect her alignment with our values 
of ethical conduct and social responsibility. 
She neither belong to Promoter Group of the Company 
nor holds Equity Shares in the Company. 

While discussing the candidature of Dr. Sujata, the 
members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
evaluated her in terms ()f skill, knm,vledge, experience, 
capabilities, contribution in the Company, role and 
expertise required for this position and on the basis 
of such evaluation, the Committee members recorded 
their satisfaction that Dr. Sujata is having such required 
skills, knowledge, experience, capabilities and 
ex_pertise. Accordingly, her continued association with 
the Company as Independent Director would be of 
immense benefits to the Company. 

3. Committee(s) of the Board 

In order to comply with the provisions of tile Companies 
Act, 2013, and the SEBI (listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
3oard of Directors of Your Company has constituted 
the following StaMory Committees: 

a. Audit Committee; 

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee; 

c. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee; 

d. Management Committee; and 

e. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

The frequency of meetings for these Committees is 
determined by the Chairman of the Board in 
consultation with the Company Secretary and the 

respective Committee Chairpersons subject to the 
adhering prescribed provisions of Statutory Acts. 
The Committees, comprising both Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors, including invitees such as 
independent professionals, entrepreneurs and senior 
Officials of the company with diverse industry 
knowledge and overall expertise, prcvide their 
recommendations to the Board for approval. 

The Board of the Company has constituted different 
Committees of the Board to have the focused attention 
en the business cf each aspect of the Company's 
working, The Minutes of the Meetings of respective 
Committees are timely placed before the Members of 
the Committees and before the Members of the Board 
of Directors cf the Company for their information and 
consideration. The terms of reference of the Board 
committee.s are determined by the Board from time to 
time. The role and composition of these Committees, 
including the number of meetings held during the 
financial year 2023-24 and the related attendance, are 
prescribed below: 

(a) Audit Committee 

• 

• 

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted 
an Audit Committee in the year 2001 in compliance 
with the provisions of Listing Agreement & Section 
292A of the Companies Act, 1956 and reconstituted 
from timeto time. 

The Audit Commttiee and its cemposition meets the 
requirement of Section 177 of the Companies Act. 
2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI I l isting Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 
amended. 

The brief description of the terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee as approved by the Board from time 
to time is as under: 

Review the annual financial statements with the 
management with primary focus on matters required 
to be included in the Directors' Responsibility 
Statement, changes, if any in accounting policies and 
practices and reasons thereof, compliance with 
accounting standards and guidelines of stock 
exchange(s). major accounting entries & related 
party transactions; 

Review of the quarterly and annual financial 
results/statements before 
submission to the Board 
for their approval together I{ 

~ _________________ _,, 
\i 
' 



• 

with quarterly and annual financial results of the 
subsidiary company. 

Review and assessment of the effectiveness of 
systems of internal financial control, risk management 
and compliance control with management and 
auditors. 

• Recommendation of appointment. re-appointment. 
replacement and removal of the internal auditors. cost 
auditors and statutory auditors of the Company, fixation 
of audit fees and approving payments for any other 
services. 

• Assessment of the independence and pertormance 
of the auditors and effectiveness of audit process. 

• Review of the management discussions and analysis 
of financial conditions and results of the operations. 

• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, 
wherever necessary. 

• Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments. 

• Revievving the adequacy of internal audit function 
including the structure of internal audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the 
department, reporting structure, coverage and 
frequency of internal audit. 

• Reviev.ing, with the management performance of 
the statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
internal control systems. 

• Reviewing, with the management. the statement of 
uses/application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the 
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 
these stated in the offer document/prospectus/ 
notice and the report submitted by the monitoiing 
agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of 
a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take steps in this 
matter. 

• Review of the reports of statutory and internal auditors 
and discussion about their findings with the 
management and suggesting corrective measures 
wherever necessary. 

• Reviev.ing the findings of any internal investigations by 
the internal auditors in to matters where there is 
suspecred fraud or irregulantv or a failure of internal 

control systems of a material nature 
and reporting the matter 

to the Board. 
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• look into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, 
in the payment of creditors of the Company and any 
substantial defaults, if any, made by the debtors of 
the Company along with the reasons thereof. 

• Review of prevailing accounting policies and 
compliances with regard to statutcry requirements. 

• Periodical review of related party transactions c-.arried 
out by the Company and approval or any subsequent 
modification of transactions of the Company with 
related party. 

• Approving the appointment of the CFO before 
finalization of the same by the management. Further 
while approving the appointment. it shall assess the 
qualifications, experience and background etc. of the 
candidate. 

• Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process 
and disclosure cf its financial information tc ensure 
that the financial statements are correct, sufficient 
and credible. 

• Ensuring the compliance of the provisions of Listing 
Regulations laid down by the Stock exchange(s)/ 
SEBI and legal requirements concerning financial 
statements. 

• Discussing with external auditors before audit is 
commenced the nature and scope of audit as well as 
having post-audit discussions to ascertain areas of 
concern, if any. 

• To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower 
mechanism. 

• To approve and review the related party transactions 
of the Company and to make criteria for approving 
the same. 

• To review the utilization of loans and/or advances 
from/investment by the holding company in the 
subsidiary existing and future exceeding the threshold 
limits as provided under the SEBI Guidelines. 

• Any other matter referred to the Audit Committee 
by the Board of Directors of the Company. In addition, 
the Audit Committee also mandatorily reviews the 
following: 

• Management Discussion and analysis of financial 
condition and results of operations; 

• Statement of significant related party transactions 
(as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by 
management; 

• Management letters/letters of Internal control 
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weakness, if any, issued by the Statutory Auditors; 

, Internal audit repoIts relating to internal control 
weakness; and the appointment. removal and terms of 
remuneration of the Internal Auditor. 

Composition, Name of Members and Chairman and 
Attendance during the year 

The Members of Audit Committee of the Soard comprise of 
one Executive Director and two Non-Executive Independent 
Directors. 

Sh. Arvind Bali Kumar, Independent Director, was the 
Chairman of the Committee till May 11, 2023. Thereafter the 
Committee was reconstituted and Sh. Aditya Khemka. 
Independent Directer, was appointed as Chairman of the 

Committee w.e.f. May 24 2023. Sh. Aditva Khemka acted 
as Chairman of the Audit Committee Meetings held on May 
29, 2023, August 11 2023, November 06 2023, February 
14 2024 and March 30 2024 during the year under 
consideration. The time interval separating two successive 
meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days. 

Sh. Munish Kakra, CFO & Company Secretary has been 
appointed as Secretary of the Audit Committee in 
pursuance to provisions of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements! Regulations, 
2015. All the Members of the Audit Committee are 
"financially literate" as defined under Regulation 18 (1) (c) of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance at the meeting(s) held during the ye.ar are as under:-

Sr. No Name of the Committee Position Category No. of Meeting(s) Held 
Member (Attended) 

1. Sh. Aditya Khemka* Chainnan NID(I) 5(5) 
2. Sh. Piyush Dixit** Member NID(I) 5(3) 

3. Sh. Gautam Baid Member NIO(I) 5(3} 

4. Sh. Sunil Bansal Member ED 5(5) 
5. Sh. Munish Kakra Company Secretary Secretary 5(5) 

•Appointed as Chairman w.e.t. 24th May 2023 
.. Appointed as Member w.e.f 5th September, 2023 

Meetings held during the year 

During the financial year 2023-24, 5 (Five) Audit Committee 
meetings were held on May 29, 2023, August 11 2023, 
Ncvember 06 2023, Februa1y 14 2024 and March 30 2024. 
The gap between two committee meetings was not more 
than one hundred and twenty days. The Annual Audited 
Financial Results of the Company for the year ended 31 st 
March, 2024 were reviewed by the Audit Committee in its 
Meeting held on 29th May, 2024. Necessary Quorum was 
present in the Audit Committee Meetings. 

The Statutof'/ Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company 
were invariably invited to attend the Meetings and also to 
participate in the delibetaticn(s} en the crucial issues 
wherever required. 

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Company has a duly constituted Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee, which among others is 
responsible for identifying and recommending persons 
who are qualified to become Directors or appointed 

as KMPs of the Company and laying down 
remuneration policy for the Directors, KM f's and other 
employees of the Company. Further, the Company 
seeks the expertise of the outside consultants as and 
when needed for analyzing the policies of the Company 
in relation to ap,pointment and payment of 
remuneration to Senior Level Executive(s) and Staff. 
During the year under consideration. Sh. Alvind Bali 
Kumar, Independent Director, was the Chairman of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board 
till May 24 2023. Thereafter the Committee was 
reconstituted and Sh. Aditya Khemka, Independent 
Director, was appointed as Chairman of the Committee 
w.e.f. May 24 2023. The terms of reference of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee are stated 
as under and in lines with Regulation 19 (4) read with 
Schedule-II, Part-D of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 as amended: 

1) formulation of the criteria for determining 
qualificaticns, 



positive attributes and independence of a director and 
recommend to the Board of directors a policy relating to 
the remuneraticn cf the directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees; 

2) formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance 
of independent directors and the board of directors; 

3) devising a policy on diversity of Board of directors; 

4) identifying persons who are qualified to become 
directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid 
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down and recommend to the Board of Directors their 
appointment and removal; 

5) recommend that whether to extend or continue the 
term of appcintment of the independent director, en 
the basis of the report of pertormance evaluation 
of independent directors. 

6) recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever 
form, payable to senior management of the Company. 

Present Composition, Name of Members & 
Chairman and Attendance during the year 

The composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and attendance at the meeting(s) held during the 
year are as under:• 

Sr. No Name of the Position Category No. of Meating(s) 
Committee Member Held (Attended) 

1. Sh. Aditya Knemka* Chairman Independent 2(1 ) 

2. Dr. Sujata Member Independent 2(2) 
3. Sh. Gautam Said Member Independent 2(2) 

4. Sh. Munish Kakra Company Secretary Secretary 2(2) 

• ApJ)<linted as a Chairman w.e.f 24-th May 2023 

Meetings held during the year 

During the financial year 2023-24. the meetings of the 
members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
were held on August 11 , 2023 and March 30, 2024 

Performance Evaluation of Directors and Performance 
Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors 

The details of methodclcgy and criteria adopted for the 
evaluation of Board, Committees thereof, Individual 
Directors including Independent Directors have been 
provided in the Board's Report on page no. 27 

Nomination and Remuneration policy 

The Board of Directors, en the reccmmendaticn of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board. has 
approved and adopted a Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy for Directors, KMPs and other employees. The 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is 

. reviewed by Nomination and Remuneration 
/ ~ Committee of the Board as and when the need 

/ If..;;,, arises and the required changes are made 
therein. The Nomination and Remuneration 

Policy has been formulated by the Committee by taking into 
account the financial position of the Company, trend in the 
Footwear Industry, appointee's qualification & experience 
including past performance & remuneration paid to the 
appointee(s). The above said Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy is available en the website of the Company viz. 
www.libertyshoes.com and set out in Annexure I of the 
Directors Report and is forming part of this report. The brief 
terms of reference for appointment re-appointment, 
evaluation ot performance and fixation of remuneration 
of directors and KMPs are as under: 

i. The appointment of Directors and KMPs of the 
Company and remuneration of new Directors on Board, 
Key Managerial Personnel and other employees shall 
be made on the basis of core competency, expertise, 
experience. qualification etc. and/or subject to the 
approval of the approving authority, wherever 
applicable. 

ii. Evaluation of the performance of the Executive 
Directors shall be based on the parameters such as 
accomplishment of assigned goals, their professional 
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contributions towards the Company and the overall 
pe1formance. On the basis of the evaluation, the 
remuneration of the Executive Directors will be 
determined. 

iii. Evaluation of the overall pertormance of the Non 
executive& Independent Directors of the Company 
shall be determined by the terms of the policy. 

iv. Remuneration of the Senior Management employees 
and Key Managerial Personnel will be fixed annually 
considering performance of the Company as well as 
their individual performance and achievements 
corresponding to their goals set during the year 

Remuneration to Directors 

Criteria for payment to Non-Executive 

Directors INEDs} 

The Non-executive Directors receives remunera.tion by 
way of sitting fee for attending meetings of the Board 
and Audit Committee thereof. The sitting foe to Mon 
Executive Directors as determined by the Board is 
presently 25,000/- for attending each meeting of the 
Board and Audit Committee therof. 

The Board of Directors may review the amount of 
sitting fee and decide the same from time to time in 
terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and 
Listing Regulations. In terms of the provisions of 
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company 
may pay remuneration to its NEOs either by way of a 
monthly payment er at a specified percentage of the 
net profits of the Company or partly by cne way and 
partly by other to the maximum of 1 % or 3% of the net 
profits, as the case may be. 

Thus, the basis of payment to the NEDs is the net 
profrt of the Company. The Company is however not 
obligated to remunerate its NED. 

Pecuniary relationship or transactions of the 
Non Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company:-

Except as stated above, the Company has not carried 
out any transactions, whether material in nature or not. 
with the Non Executive Directors of the Company. 
Accordingly, no remuneration has been paid to 
Non Executive Directors during the year. 

Criteria for payment to Executive Directors (EDs) 
and all elements of remuneration package of 

individual Director: 

The remuneration paid to Execu1ive Directors are 
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the Board in the Board 
Meeting, subject to the subsequent approval by the 
shareholders at the General Meeting and such 
authori1ies, as the case may be. The remuneration 
is fixed considering the various factors such as 
qualification, experience, expertise, prevailing 
remuneration in the industry and financial position 
of the Company. All the Executive Directors have been 
paid byway otremunera1ion on the basis of Company's 
policy in respect of payment of remuneration which 
involves the following elements of remuneration 
package: 

Salary: 

Consolidated monthly remuneration of < 4,00,000/­
per month to Four Executive Directors each and 
? 3,50,000/- per month to Sh. Ashok Kumar as an 
Executive Director. 

Perquisites: 

In addition to the aforesaid salary, Executive Directors 
are also entitled to perquisites like furnished 
accommodation, gas, electricity, water and 
furnishings, medical reimbursement and leave travel 
concession for self in accordance with the rules of 
the Company. However, the monetary value of such 
perquisites being limited to the Monthly remuneration 
of < 4,00,000/- and , 3,50,000/- respectively. 

Perquisites are evaluated as per Income Tax Rules, 
1962 wherever applicable, and in the absence of any 
such rules, perquisites are evaluated at actual cost; 
And Use of chauffer driven car for official purpose and 
telephone/mobile at residence and use of car for 
private purpose are billed by the Company to the 
Executive Directors. 

Company's contribution to the provident ftmd and 
superannuation fund is in accordance with the rules 

of the Company. 

Accordingly, during the financial year 2023-24, the 
following remuneration was paid to 
the Executive Directors 
the Company: 
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S. No. Name of the Director Designation Salary Perquisites Others Sitting Fees 
(In fl (In ~) (In?) Paid (In ?) 

1. Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta* Ex-Executive Director 12,00,000 NIL NIL NIL 

2. Sh. Shammi Bansal Executive Director 48,00,000 NIL NIL NIL 

3 Sh. Sunil Bansal Executive Director 48,00,000 NIL NIL NIL 

4. Sh. Adish Kumar Gupta Executive Director 48,00,000 NIL NIL NIL 

5. Sh. Ashok Kumar E,xecutive Director 33,00,000 NIL NIL NIL 
•ceased 10 hold office of Director and Executive Director w.e.f. 30th September 2023 

Notes: 

• No incentives. whether fixed or pe1formance linked, 
were given to tile Executive Directors during the year 
under consideration. 

• The Company has so far not offered Equity Shares 
under stock option scheme to its Director(s)/ 
Employee. 

• None of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company 
holds any Equity Shares in the Company. 

• Service Contracts, Severance Fee and Notice 
period 

The appointment of the executive director is governed 
by the resolutions passed by tile Board and the 
shareholders of the Company which cover the terms 
and conditions of such appointment The Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee satisfies itself with 
regard to the experience, qualification, i;ast 
relationship/association of the Director with the 
Company etc. 

The Committee also ensures that the candidates 
identified for appointment as Directors are not 
disqualified for appointment under Section 164 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013. On the recommendaticn of Committee. the 
Board and shareholders approve the appointment of 
the Directors. At the time of appointment of Director, 
the Company executes a separate service 
agreement defining the remuneration, tenure, roles 
responsibilities. duties, functions, obligations and 
ether terms and conditions of service cf Directors. 

In case of appointment of Independent Director, 
the Nomination and Remuneration 

e.{I Committee and Board ensure the 
'· "'.~,. 

0
' below attributes/criteria, while 

6?'~~ 7~ ,d. 'l:, ' • (I 

recommending/appointing the Independent Directors: 

• Qualification, expertise and experience of the 
directors in their respective fields. 

• Personal. professional or business standing 

• Diversity otthe Board 

The Committee/Board, while recommending/appointing 
an Independent Director. also ensures the criteria and 
tenure for wflich the Independent Director may 
be appointed as stated in the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations including 
independent relationship of the Directors vis-~-vis 
the Company so as to enable the Board to 
discharge its functions and duties effectively. 
At the time cl appointment cf Independent Director. 
the Company issues letter of appointment to the 
Independent Directors incorporating their roles, duties. 
responsibilities etc. 

In case of re-appointment of the Directors, the 
Committee/Board, besides above. also takes in to 
consideration the performance evaluation of the 
directors and their engagement level. 

Each of our Executive Directors has signed seriice 
agreement containing the terms of their employment. 
There is nc separate provisicn fer paymeni of severance 
fee under the resolution and se1Vice agreement 
governing the appointment of Executive Directors. With 
respect to notice period of directors, besides the 
provisions of service agreement. the statutory 
provisions will also apply. 

The Service agreement may be terminated by either 
party after giving three months' notice in writing duly 
served en the other party. 

c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee had been 
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constituted by the Board cf Directors and was delegated 
with the powers to handle all the shares related issues 
including timely redressal of shareholders and investors' 
complaints like non receipt of balance sheet non-receipt 
of declared dividends etc. The Committee performs 
all its duties and discharges its responsibilities as per its 
charter fixed by the Beard, which includes review of the 
performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
of the Company and recommend measures to the 
Board for overall improvements in the quality of 
investors' services wherever required. 

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee is in lines with the provisions of Regulation 
20{4) read with Part-0 of the Schedule II of the SEBI 
(listing Regulations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 as amended and the brief of the 
same is as under: 

(1) Resolving the grievances cf the security holders 
of the listed entity including complaints related 

to transfer/transmissicn cf shares, ncn-receipt 
of annual report, non receipt of declared dividends, 
issue of new/duplicate certificates, general 
meetings etc. 

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of 
voting rights by shareholders. 

(3) Review of adherence to the seNice standards 
adcr,ted by the fisted entity in respect of various 
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent. 

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives 
taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum 
of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt 
of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory 
notices by the shareholders oft he company 

During the year, the Committee met Four times 
on times on 30th May 2023, 11th August 2023, 
6th November 2023 and 14th February, 2024. 

The composition of Stakeholder & Relationship Committee and attendance at the meeting(s) held during the year 
are as under:-

Sr. No Name of the Position Category No, of Meeting{s) 
Committee Member Held (Attended) 

1 Sh. Aditya Khemka Chairman MIO (I) 4(4) 

2 Sh. Sunil Bansal Member ED 4(4) 

3 Sh. Adish Kumar Gupta Member ED 4(4) 

4 Sh. Munish Kakra Company Secretary Secretary 4(4) 

Name and designation of Compliance Officer 

In accordance with the SEBI (LOOR) Regulations, 2015, 
Sh. MunishKakra, CFO & Company Secretary is the 
Compliance Officer of the Company and he acts as Secretary 
of the Committee. His contact details are as follows; 

Liberty Shoes Ltd. 

19th Aoor, Magnum Global Park, Tower-2, Golf Course 
Extension Road, Sector-58, Gurugram-122011, Haryana, 

Ph.: 91-0124-4616200, Fax: 91-0124-4616222, 

Email Id: munish@libertyshoes.com 
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Status of investor reference/complaints/requests received by the Company during the year ending 
31st March, 2024 stood as under: 

Nature of References/Requests No. of Grievan~ No. of Grievances/ No. of Grievances/ No.of 
Grievances/Complaints Requests/ 

Con1plaints 
Received 

IEPF Clainvl.Jnclaimed Dividend 
Issue of dupncate,t\.oss of Ceitificate 1 

Procedure for Issue of Duplicate Share 
Certificare 1 

Rece,1ed from r09ulatory bodies such 
as Ministry of Corporate Affairs, SEBI 
(SCOR,s) and Stock Exchanges etc. NIL 

Total 2 

All the references/complaints received from the 
shareholders or from regulatoIy bodies during the year 
under review were resolved to their entire 
satisfacticn. 

Apart from these queries/complaints, there is one 
pending case relating to dispute over title to shares in 
which the Company has been made a party. However. 
the aforesaid case is not material in nature. There 
are 7 (Seven) cases (involving 900 Equity 
Shares} concerning dispute over titles to Shares, are 
pending with the Company as on 31st March, 2024. 

(d} Management Committee 

The Company is having Management Committee for 

Ret1uests/ Requests/ Requests/Pending 
Complaints Complaints 
Resolved not resolved to the 

satisfaction of 
shareholders 

1 NIL NIL 

1 NIL NIL 

NIL NIL NIL 

2 NIL NIL 

facilitation of various urgent and day to day discussion 
relating to operational matters. It also assist to the 
Board of Directors for various strategic discussion 
and implementation thereof. 

Major risks that have been recognized by the 
companies and functions are systematically 
addressed by taking mitigation measures on a regular 
basis. In sessions of the Management Committee. 
several topics are covered. 

During the year, the Members of the Management 
Committee met 6 times on May 29 2023, June 16 
2023, August 04, 2023, November 01, 2023, 
February 07, 2024 and March 28, 2024. 

The composition of the Management Committee and attendance at the meeting(s) held during the year are as 
under:• 

Sr. No Name of the Position Category No of Meeting(s} 
Committee Member Held (Attended} 

I. Sh. Adesh Gupta~ Member ED 6(-) 
2 Sh. Adish Gupta Member ED 6(61 
3 Sh. Shammi Bansal Member ED 6(6) 
4 Sh. Raman Bansal Member coo 6(6) 
5 Sh. Anupam Bansal Member Head-Retail 6(6} 
6 Sh. Munish Kakra Company Secretary Secretary 6(6) 

. • Ceased to be Member w.e.f. 5th September 2023. 
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(e) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

Pursuant to the provisions of Secticn 135 cf the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was 
constituted by the Board of Directors in their meeting 
held on 29th May, 2014 which has been reconstituted 
from time to time as per the requirement. 

The Board has defined the terms of reference of the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as under: 

• formulating and recommending to the Board, 

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and the activities 
tc be undertaken by the Company as specified in 
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013: 

• recommending the amount of expenditure to be 
incurred on the activities undertaken; 

• reviewing the performance of the Company in the area 
of Corporate Social Responsibility; 

• monitoring Corporate Social Responsibility policy of the 
Company from time to time; 

• such other functions as the Board may deem frt. 

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and attendance at the meeting(s) held 
during the year are as under:-

Sr. No Name of the Position Category No of IVleeting(s) 
Committee Member Held (Attended) 

1. Sh. Shammi Bansal Chairman ED 1 (1) 

2 Sh. Adi sh Kumar Gupta Member ED 1 (1 ) 

3 Dr. Sujata IVlember NED(I) 1 (1) 

4 Sh. Munish Kakra Company Secretary Secretary 1 ('I) 

During the year 2023-24, one meeting of the Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee were held on 5th 
September 2023. 

CSR Policy 

The Board ofDirectors on the recommendation of the CSR 

Committee has approved the CSR policy of the Company 

during the financial year 2014-15 and the same was 

amended by Board of Directors from time to time as per 

the requirement. The CSR policy is available on the 

website of the Company viz. www.libertyshoes.com. 
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4. Governance through Management process 

Name of the policy Brief description Web link 

Code of Conduct The Board of Directors has adopted Code of Collduct for all the Board http-J/investor. libertvshoes. 
Members and designated members of Senior Management of the com/doc/Code_ of_ Cond 
Company. uct.pdf 

Code for prevention of The Company has adopted a code of conduct to regulate, monitor and http://investor.libertyshoes 
Insider Trading report trading by insiders under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) .com/doc/Code_ of_ 

Regulations, 2015. This code of conduct also includes code for practices Conduct.pd! 
and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive 
information and has been made available on 1he Company· s website. 

Whistlebtower Policy (Policy The Company has adopted the Whistle blower mechanism tor directors http://investor.libertyshoes 
on vigil mechanism) and employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or .c-0m/doc1Whistle _ Blower 

suspected fraud, or violation of the Company code of conduL~. _ Policy.pdf 

Nomination and This policy formulates tile criteria for detennining qualifications, http://investor.libertyshoes 
Remuneration Policy competencies, positr;e attributes and independence for the appointment .com/doc/NOMINATION_ A 

of a director (executive /non-executive Directorl and also the criteria for ND_ REMUNERATION -
dete1T11ining the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel POLICY.pd! 
and other employees. 

Corporate Social The policy outlines the Company's strategy to bring about a positive http-J/investor.libertyshoes 
Responsibility Policy impact on society through programs relating to hunger, povert)•, education. .com/doc/CSR _Policy .pdf 

health care and Emqronment. 

Related Panv Transactions The policy regulates all transactions between the Company and its http://investor.libertyshoes 
Policy related parties .com/doc/Related_pa,t_ 

transaction.pd! 

Policy on determination of The policy applies to disclosures material events affecting the http://investor.libertyshoes. 
materiality of events company, This policy is in addition to the Company's corporate policy com/doc/Liberty _Policy_ on 

statement on in investor relations. which deals with the dissemination Determination of 
of unpublished, price-sens~ive information. Materiality of ~,ents.pdf 

Website Archival Policy The PoUcy deals with the archival of Corporate records of the Company. http;/;investor.libertyshoes 
.com/doc/Liberty_Archival 

Policy.pd! 

Risk Management Policy This policy is approved by the Board to build and establish tile process and http://investor.libertyshoes. 
procedure for identifying, assessing. quantifying, minimizing, mttigating conv'doc/Risk _ 
and managing the associated risk. It aims to develop an approach to make 
assessment and management of risks in financial, operational and project 

Management_Policy.pdf 

based areas in timely manner. 

Policy for preser;ation of This policy obligates the Company or preservation of documents in order http://investor.libertyshoes 
Documents to prevent from being altered, damaged or destroyed .com/doc/Prser,ation _of_ T 

ransaction _ Policy.pd! 

Policy on Prevention. The Company always endeavors to create and provide an environment that http-J/ln.&stor.libertyshoes. 
Prohibition & Redressal of is free from discrimination and harassment including seKual harassment com/doc/Sexual 
Sexual Harassment of The Company always provide an equal employment opportunity to HairassementPolicy_ Liberty 
Women at woflcplace employees and is committed to provide a safe and conducive work Shoesltd.pdf 

environment that enables employees to work without fear of prejudice, 
gender bias and sexual harassment. 
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5. Subsidiary Monitoring Framework I. General Meeting 

As on date of this Repcrt, the company is not having 
any Subsidiary Company. 

a. Annual General Meeting 

6. General Body Meetings 
l ocation and time, where the last three Annual General 
Meetings were held as under: 

Meeting Year/Time Venue/Deemed Venue Day & Date 

37th Annual General Meeting 2023/11.00A.M. Registered Office• Saturday, 30th September, 2023 

36th Annual General Meeting 2022/11.00A.M. Registered Office* Friday, 30th September, 2022 

35th Annual General Meeting 2021/11 OOA.M. Registered Office• Tuesday, 28th September, 2021 

• Through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM 

b. Extraordinary general meeting: No e>.1raordinary general meeting of the members was held during the year 2023-24. 

ii. Special Resolutions/Special Businesses: Special Resolutions/Special '3usinesses transacted at the last three 
Annual General Meetings are as under: 

37th Annual General Meeting 
on 30th September. 2023 

No. of Special Business: 3 

1. Appointment of Sh. flyush Dixit (OIN:03514223) 
as an lndependoot llrect01 of ths Cof1l)af1V 
(Special Reso!Jtion) 

2. Appointmoot of Sh. Anand Das Mundhra 
(DIN:00167418 as an Independent Director 
of the Company. !Special Resolution! 

3. Removal of Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta 
as a Oirector/B<erutive Director of the 
Compan•1 IOrdina,y Resolution) 

36th Annual Gonoral Meeting 
on 30th September, 2022 

No. of Special Business: 1 

1. Appointment of Sh. Gautam Baid 
(DIN:00021400) as an Independent Director 
of the Company, !Special Resolution) 

35th Annual General Meeting 
on 28th September, 2021 

No. of Special Busi'ness: 8 

1. Re-appointment of Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta 
!DIN: 001431921 as CEO & Executive Director 
of the Company and fixation of his 
remuneration !Special Resolution) 

2. Re-appointment of Sh. Shammi Bansal 
(DIN: 00138792) as Executive Director of 
me Company and fixation of his remuneration 
(Special Re.~oltJtion) 

3. Re-appointment of Sh. Sunil Bansal 
!DIN: 00142121) as Executive Director of 
the Com pany and fixation of his 
remuneration (Special Resolution) 

4. Re,,appointrnent of Sh. Adish Kumar Gupta 
(DIN: 001376121 as executive Director of th& 
Ccmpany and fixation of his remuneration 
!Special Resolution! 

5. Re-appointment of Sh. Ashck Kumar 
(DIN: 06883514) as Executive D~ector 
of the Company and fixation of his 
remuneration (Special Resolution I 

6. Appointment of Sh. Sanjay Bhatia 
(DIN:0080533) as Independent Director or 
the Company (Ordinary Resolution) 

7. Apnolntment of Or. SUjata [OIN:09289128) 
as Independent Director of the Company 
(Ordinal'/ R&Solution) 

8. Appointment ofSmt. Nidhi I.al (OIN:01363845) 
as Independent Director of the Company 
(Ordinary Resolution) 



Sh. Sukesh Gupta of fVl/s Sukesh Gupta & Co .. Chartered 
Accountant (Firm Registration f\lo. 036441N). was 
appointed as scrutinizer by the Board and present at the 
above 37th, 36th and 35th Annual General Meetings for 
supervising and monitoring the voting through Remote E­
voting facilities on the above agenda items and to issue his 
report on the same. 

I. Detail of special resolution passed by the 
Company through postal ballot exercise, the 
persons who conducted the postal ballot 
exerci.se and detail of the voting pattern, detail of 
special resolution proposed to be conducted 
through postal ballot and procedure for postal 
ballot. 

During the year under review, no special resolution 
has been passed through the exercise of 
postal ballot. 

Further, none of the items to be transacted at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting is required to be 
passed by postal ballot exercise. 

ii. GroupAson31st March,2024: 

Arpan Gupta {Karta), Sh. Arr:,an Gupta, Sh. Adesh Kumar 
Gupta, Adesh Kumar Gupta (Karta), Sh. Adarsh Gupta, 
Sh. Anmol Gupta. Sh. Adish Kumar Gupta, Adish Kumar 
Gupta (Karta), Sh. Pranav Gupta, Sh. Ar.shat Gupta, 
Smt. Kamlavati, Sh. Sunil Bansal, Smt. Rehti Devi, 
Sh. Ayush Bansal, Sh. Shammi Bansal. Sh. Manan 
Bansal. Sh. Vaibhav Bansal, Sh. Raman Bansal. 
Sh. Ruchir 9ansal, Sh. Vivek Bansal. Sh. Pulkit Bansal, 
Sh. Anupam Bansal and Geofin Investments Pvt. Ltd. 

During the year under review, Sh. Arpan Gupta and 
Arpan Gupta Karta of Dinesh Kumar Gupta (HUF), 
belonging to promoter group, have submitted 
request{s) with the Company for re•classification from 
Promoter Group to Public under Regulation 3 lA cf SEBI 
(LODA), Regulations, 2015 (as amended). In compliance 
with the stated regulations, the Board of Directors has 
analyzed lhe above two request(s) and considering 
various grounds discussed in their meeting including 
incompleteness of information and facts in the 

application(s) formed its opinion that the above 
!/__~ promoters do not satisfy the requirements of the 

fi_:;;;v Board as well as the above regulations for re­
classifying them from Promoter group to Public. 
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7. Disclosures 

I) Disclosure on materially significant related party 
transactions 

The Company did not have any material significant 
related party transaction having a potential conflict 

with the interest of the Company at large. The 
Company has already in place policy on related party 
transactions to regulate the transactions of the 
Company with its related parties and ttie same being 
reviewed and amended as and when required. 

The policy has been uploaded on the website of the 
Company www.libertyshoes.com. As per the policy, 
all the related party transactions require prior approval 
of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the 

Company. Prior approval of the shareholders of the 
Company is also required for certain related party 
transacticns as prescribed under Companies Act. 2013 
and SEBI Listing Regulations. 

All related patty transactions that were entered in to 
during the financial year were on arm's length basis. 

There were no material individual transactions with 
related parties which may have a potential conflict with 
ttie interest of the Company at large. The transacticns 

that entered in to with the related parties during the 
year under review were in the normal course of 
business. All the details of related party transactions 
carried out by the Company during the year under 
review can be obser✓ed from the disclosures made 

in the Notes on Accounts to the financial statements 
for the year ended 31st March, 2024 as specified in 

Ind AS 24 of ttie Companies (Accounting Standards) 
Rules. 2015. 

ii) Detail of non• compliances, penalties, strictures 
by Stock Exchanges/SERI/Statutory Authorities 
on any matter related to Capital Markets during 
the last three years. 

The Company has complied with the requirements 

of Stock Exchange(sl. SEBI and other statutory 
Authorities during the preceding three financial year(s) 

on all matters related to Capital Market and no 
penalty/strictures have been impcsed on the Company 
in any matter during the Financial Year 2023-24: 
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iii) Disclosure on compliance with Corporate 
Governance Requirements specified in the 
Listing Regulations 

The Company has adhered to the stipulations 
outlined in sub-paragraphs (2) to (10) of Part C 
(corporate governance report) of Schedule V of the 
Listing Regulations. 

Furthermore. the Company has complied with the 
ccrporate gcvernance requirements specified in 
Regulation 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation 
(2) of Regulation 46, and Regulation 62 of the Listing 
Regulations, and the requisite disclosures have 
been induded in this corporate governance report. 

iv) lnter-se relationships between Directors and l<ey Managerial personnel of the Company: 
Directors: 

Sr. No. Name of Directors as on 31st March 2024 Relationship with other Directors /KMPs 
1. Sh. Shammi Bansal 
2 Sh. Sunil Bansal 
3 Sh. Adish Kumar Gupta 
4 Sh. Ashok Kumar 

5 Sh Piyush Dixh 

6 Dr. Suiata 
7 Sh. Aditva Khemka 

8 Sh. Anand Das Mundhra 

9 Sh. Gautam Baid 

Key Managerial Personnel: 

Sr. No. Name of Key Managerial Personnel 

1. Sh. Munish Kakra 

v) Detail of establishment of Vigil Mechanism and 
Whistle Blower Policy 

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy 
{Vigil Mechanism) and has established the necessary 
vigil mechanism fer employees and directcrs to report 
concerns about unethical behavior. No person has been 
denied access to the Chairman of the audit committee. 

The said policy has been also put up on the website 
of the Company at the link w,,vw.libertyshoes.com. No 
personnel in the Company have been denied access 
to the Audit Committee. 

Brother of Sh. Sunil 9ansal 
Brother of Sh. Shammi Bansal 

None 
None 
None 
None 
None 
None 
Ncne 

Relationship with other Directors/KMPs 

None 

vi) Compliance with Mandatory requirements 

As on 31st March. 2024 the Company has complied 
with all the mandatory corporate governance 
requirements under Listing Regulations. Specifically, 
your Company confirms compliance with corporate 
governance requirements specified in regulation 
17 to 27 and clauses {b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) 
of regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations. The 
Disclosures of the Compliance with Corporate 
Governance Requirements specified in Regulation 
17 to 27 and Regulation 46(2). 



Sr. Pal1iculars 
No. 

l Board of Directors 

2 A!Jdit Committee 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee 

Stalceholders 
Relationship 
Committee 

Risk Management 
Committee 

Vigi M&hanism 

Related Part'/ 
Transaction 

Subsidiaries of 
the Company 

Regulations 

17(11, 17(1AI, I 71 lBI 

17(21 

17(3) 

17(41 

17(5) 

17(61 

17(7) 

17(8) 

17(91 

17(101 

17(111 

17A 

18(1) 

18(2) 

18(3) 

19(11 & (2) 

19 (2Aj 

19(3) 

19 {3A) 

19(41 

20(11. (21. (2.-41 
&13) (3A) 

20(4) 

21(11.(2) & (3) (3A) 

21(4) 

22 

23(11. (lA). (5). 
(6),(71 &(8) 

23(21 & (3) 

23(4) 

23 (9) 

24(1) 

24(2), (3). (4). (5} 
& (6) 

Brief Descriptions of the Regulations 

Composition of Board 

Meeting of Board of Directors 

Review of Compliance Reports 

Plans ror ordeiti, succession for appointments 

Code of Conduct 

Fees/Compensation 

Minimum Information ro be placed before the Board 

Compliance Certificate 

Risk Assessment & Management 

Performance Evaluation 

Recommendation of Board 

Maximum number of Directorship 

Composition of Aucftt Committee & Ptesence ot the 
Chainnan of the Committee at the Annual General Meeting 

Meeting of Audit Committee 

Role of the Committee and Review of information by the 
Committee 

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Quorum of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
Meeting 

Presence of the Chairman of the Committee at the Annual 
General Meeting 

Meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Role of the Committee 

Composition & Meeting of Stakeholder Relatio~ip 
Committee 

Role of the Committee 

Composition & Meeting of Risk Management Committee 

Role of the Committee 

Formulation of Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employee 

Policy for Related Party Transaction 

Approval including omnibus approval of .<\udit Committee for 
all Related Pa1ty Transactions and review of transaction 
by me Committee 

Approval for Material Related Party Transactions. 

Disclosure of related party transactions on consolidated basis 

Composition of Board of Directors of Unlisted Material Subsidiruy 

Other Cc(J)Orate Govemence reQUirements with respect to 
Subsidiary including Material Subsidia,y of listed entity 

LIBERTY 

Compliance Status 
(YeS/No/N.A.) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes. as and when 
applicable 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

NA 

N.A 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

NA 

Yes 

NA 

MA 
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9 Annual Secretarial 24A ~nual Secretarial Compliance Report Yes 
Compliance Report 

10, Obligations with 2511) & 12} Maximum Direct01ship ~ Tenure Yes 
respect to 2513) Meeting or Independent Directors Yes 
Independent 25(4) Re\liew of P8rtormance by Iha Independent Directors Yes 
Oirecto,~ 25(7) Familiarisation of Independent Directors Ye-s 

25(8) & (9) Declaration from Independent Director Yes 
25(10) D&O Insurance f01 lnd61)eooent Director Yes 

11 Obligations with 26(1) & 121 Memberships & Chairmanship in Committees Yes 
respect to 26(3) ll.ffirmation 'Mth compliance to code of conduct from members Yes 
Directors and Senior of Board of OirectOIS and Senior Management Person,iel 
Management 26{4) Disclosure of Shareholdino bv No1r Executive Directors Yes 

26f5) Disclosures by Senior Management about potential conflicts Yes 
of lnteieS1 

12 Other COl!)Orate 27fl) Compliance of Discretional'{ Requirements Yes 
Governance 27f2) Filing of Quarterly Compfianca Report on Corporate Governance Yes 
Requirements 

13 Disclosures on 46(2) (b) Terms and conditions of appointmant of Independent Directo.rs Yes 
Website of 4612) \cl Composition of various commirtees of Board of Directors Yes 
the Company 46f2) fd) Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Seni01 Management Yes 

Pers1nnel 

46{2) \el Dell!ils of est.abtishment of Vigil Meohani<im/Whistle Blower policy Yes 
46(2) (f) Criteria of making P<l\'ll1ents to No11-Executive Directors Yes 
46(2) fg) Policy on deafing with Related Party Transactions Yes 
46(2) fh) Policy lot determining Material Subsidiaries Yes 
4612) fi) Details of familiarisation programmes imparted to Independent Yes 

Directors 

vii. Details of utilization of funds raised through 
preferential allotment or qualified institutions 
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7 A). 
Not Applicable 

recommendations of any of the Committees were not 
accepted by the Board. 

x. Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity 
and its subsidiaries. on a consolidated basis, to 
the statutory auditor and all entities in the 
network firm/network entity of which the 
statutory auditor is a part. 

viii. A certificate from a Company Secretary in 
practice that none of the directors on the board 
of the company have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or llOntinuing 
as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 
authority. 

The Certificate of Company Secretary in practice is 
annexed herewith as a paIt of the report at page 
no. 85 of this Annual Report. 

ix. Where the board had not accepted any 
recommendation of any committee of the board 
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant 
financial year. 

In terms of Listing Regulations, there have been no 
instances during the year under consideration when 

Details relating to fees paid to the Statutcry Auditors 
are given in Note no.31 (b) tothafinancial Statements. 

xi. List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity 
along with any revisions thereto during the 
relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of 
such entity or any fixed deposit programme or 
any scheme or proposal of the listed entity 
involving mobilization of funds. whether in India 
or abroad. Not Applicable 

xii. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Hara 
ssment of Women at Work place 
(Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013: 
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Particulars Status 

Number of complaints filed during the financial year NIL 

Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year NIL 

Number cf complaints pending as on the end cf during the financial year NIL 

xiii. Compliance Report on Non-mandatory 
requirements under Regulation 27 (1) of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

1. TheBoard 

As per para A of Part E of schedule II of the Listing 
Regulations, a non-executive Chairman of the Board 
may be entitled to maintain a Chairman's Office at the 
Company's expense and also allowed reimbursement 
of expenses incurred in pe1formance of his duties. 
Since there is no permanent Chairman in the Company, 
hence this provision is not applicable. 

2. Shareholding Rights 

Liberty displays its quarterly, half yearly and annually 
Financial results on its website www.libertyshces.com 
and also publish its results in widely circulated 
newspapers. We publish the voting results of 
shareholders' meetings / Postal Ballots and make it 
available on our website www.libertyshoes.com and 
report the same to Stock Exchanges in terms of 
regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations. Significant 
events are also posted on this website under "Investor 
Relations· section. Complete Annual Report is sent to 
every shareholder through e-mail whose E-mail ID has 
been updated with the depositories/ Company/RTA 
and also to those who make request for providing the 
same. Notice of General Meeting along voting 
instructions is sent to all the shareholders and also 
made available on the website of the Company under 
Section "Investor Relations• in addition to submission 
cf the same with Steck Exchanges. 

Shareholders' grievances/complaints/queries have 
been addressed and resolved at most priorities to the 
satisfaction of the shareholders. 

3. Modified opin.ion(s) in audit report 

It has always been the Company's endeavor to present 
financial statements with unmodified audit report. The 
Statutory Auditors have issued an unmodified opinion 
on the financial statements of the Company 

for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2024. ,..._..,._ 

~ -~ ;~ J e 

4. Reporting of Internal Auditor 

The Internal Auditor of the Company submits their 
repo11s directly to the Audit Committee and is a 
permanent invitee to all the Audit Committee 
Meetings. 

5. Means of Communication 

Financial Results: Pursuant tc Regulation 33 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015, the Company has regularly furnished 
Quarterly and half-yearly unaudited and annual audited 
results of the Company to both the Stock Exchanges 
i.e. BSE and NSE where the Equity Shares of the 
Company are listed. The above results are also 
published in leading English and vernacular 
newspapers viz. Financial Express English daily and in 
Janasatta, Hindi Daily. Additionally. the Company from 
time to time also furnished the required documents 
and information to both the stock exchange(s) NSE and 
BSE in terms of the applicable provisions of Listing 
Regulations. All our financial results, news releases 
and presentation made, if any, at investor conferences 
and to analysts are posted on the Company's website 
at www.libertyshoes.com 

Website 

Pursuant to Regulaticn 46 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the Company's website w1ivw.libe11yshoes.ccm 
contains a dedicated functional segment called 
"Investor Relations• where all the information needed 
by the shareholders is available including Results, Press 
Releases, Shareholding pattern, Management 
Information, Announcements & General Meeting's 
results & information etc. 

NSE Electronic Application Processing System 
(NEAPS) & BSE listing Centre 

The Company also files information through NEAPS-a 
web-based application provided by NSE & on BSE 
Listing Centre which facilitates online filing of 
Corporate Governance Report, Shareholding Pattern 
and other Reports and Statements etc. by Companies. 
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Extensive Business Reporting Language (XBRL) XBAL 
is a language for electronic communication of business 
and financial data. It offers major benefi1s to all those 
who have to create, transmit, use or analyze such 
information which aids better analysis and decision 
making. 

Ministry cf Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its circular 
No. 37/2011 dated June 7, 2011 had mandated 
certain companies to file their Annual Accounts vide 
this mode. 

The Company, in compliance, has filed its Annual 
Accounts on MCA through XBRL for the previous 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2023. 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 

The Company has pericdically filed all the necessary 
documents with the MCA. 

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) 

A centralized web-based complaints redress system 

8. General Shareholder Information: 
i. Annual General Meeting: 

which serves as a centralized database of all 
complaints received, enables uploading of Action 
Taken Reports (ATRs) byche concerned Companies and 
online viewing by the investors of action taken on 
the complaint and its current status. 

Annual Report 

The Annual Repo1t containing inter--0lia the Audited 
Accounts, Cash Flow Statement, Directors' Report, 
Auditors' Report and other important information is 
circulated to the investors. Pursuant to the green 
initiative launched by the MCA, the Company sends 
a-copies of the Annual Report to Members who have 
registered for the same. The Annual Reports are also 
available in the Investor Relations section on the 
Company's website www.libertyshoes.com. 

Reminder to Investors 

Periodical reminders for unclaimed shares and unpaid 
dividends are sent to shareholders as per records of the 
Company. These details are also uploaded on website 
of the Company at www.libertyshoes.com. 

Day, Date & Time 
Venue 

Friday, 27th September. 2024 at 11 ;00 A.M. 
Through Video Conference (VC)/Other Audio Video 

Books Closure Date 

Last date for receipt of Proxy Forms 

Means (OAVM), as per the General Circular dated 5th, May 2020, January 
13, 2021, May 5, 2022, December 28, 2022 and September 25, 2023 
issued by the MCA read with SEBl Circula.r dated 12th May 2020, 15th 
January 2021 , 13th May 2022, 5th Janua1y, 2023 and 7th October, 2023. 
The proceedings of the AGM were deemed to be conducted at the 
Registered Office of the Company which shall be deemed venue of 
the AGM. 
SaturdaY, 21st September, 2024 to Friday , 27th September, 
2024 (both days inclusive) 
In terms of the relaxaticns granted by the MCA, the facility fur appointment 
of proyjes by Members will not be available for the ensuing AGM 

ii. Financial Year & Financial Calendar (Tentative): 
Financial Results for the Quarter ended 30th June, 2024 
Financial Results for the Quarter ended 30th September, 2024 
Financial Results for the Quarter ended 31st December, 2024 
Financial Results for the Quarter ended 31st March, 2025 
Annual General Meeting for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

9th August, 2024 
By14th November, 2024* 
By 14th Februa1y, 2025 • 
By 30th May, 2025• 

By August/ Sept 2025* 

*or by such date(s) as may be prescribed by SEBI/MCA from time to time. The financial year of the Company starts 
on 1st day of April and ends on 31st day of March of next year. 
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Iii Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk The Board of Directors after considering financial 
and hedging activities and Disclosure: pertonnance and prevailing business environment 

Commodity Price Risk and hedging activities: The decided to reinvest the profits of the Company as 

Company does not have commodity price risk nor does growth capital into the business of the Company. 

the Company engage in hedging activities thereof. therefore did net recommend any dividend fer the 
financial year under review. 

Foreign Exchange Risk and hedging activities: 
ii. Listing on Stock Exchanges with their Trading 

The Company. during the financial year under Codes: 
consideration, has managed the foreign exchange risk 

At present the Equity Shares of the Company are listed with appropriate hedging activities in accordance with 
policies of the Company. The aim of the Company's on the following Stock Exchange(s): 

approach to manage currency risk is to leave the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., Exchange Plaza, 
Company with the no material residual risk. The Bandra Kurla Complex Bandra (East), Mumbai- 4n0 051 
Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge NSE: LIBERTSHOi:. 
against its foreign currency exposures relating to firm 
commitment. Foreign exchange transactions are fully BSE limited, PhirozeJeeJeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 

covered with strict limits placed on the amount of Mumbai-400 001 

uncovered exposure, if any, at any point of time. There BSE: 526596 
are no materially uncovered exchange rate risks in the 

ISIN of Equity Shares of the Company: 
conte>-i of the Company's imports and exports. The 
Company does not enter into any derivative INE55 7801019 

instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The Annual listing fee for the financial year 2024-25 

The details of foreign exchange exposures as on has been paid to both the Stock Exchange(s). 

31st Match, 2024 are disclosed in Notes to the iii. Stock Market Data: 
financial statements. 

The Comparison of the share price of the Company with 
I. Dividend Payment Date: the broad-based indices are provided herein under. 
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Performance in Comparison to S&P Nifty 

Index vs. Share Price Listed share price on NSE vs. NSE NIily 

S. No. YEAR S&P SHARE PRICE 500 
{2023-24) CNX NIFTY (INt ) - -

1 April-23 18089.15 300.90 400 - . - - - :~K 2 May-23 18662.45 261 .80 - -.. -
w ---3 June-23 19201.70 256.50 u -a: 300 - ,./ 

4 July-23 19991 .85 246.10 "' -w - - . 
August-23 19678.25 0:: 5 269.60 < 200 :,: 

6 September-23 20222.45 272.95 <I) 

7 October-23 19849.75 328.00 100 
8 November-23 20104.65 322.85 
9 Oecember-23 21801.45 303.00 0 T T T T T r 'l T 
10 January-24 22124.15 413.30 M "" M M M M M "" M .... ... ... 

~ ~ N ":' N N ":' N N N N N 

-= 'S b, 6.. ~ :!, .:, .!a .0 .,_ 
11 February-24 22249.40 373.00 ~~ 

,, 
-, ~ ., 0 a, "' ~ "' -, "' D z C, .., ::. 

12 March-24 22452.55 314.70 ~ SHARE PRICE l[n {) ~ S&P CNX NIFTY 

Performance in Comparison to Sensex 

Index vs. Share Price 

S. No. YEAR 
(2023-24) 

1 Aprtl-23 
2 May-23 
3 June-23 

BSE 
SENSEX 
61209.46 
63036.1 2 
64768.58 

SHARE PRICE 
(IN~) 

300.65 
262.00 
256.30 

Listed Share Price on BSE Vs BSE Sensex 

500 --------------- - - -- - - - -= - • 

25000 

20000 

15000 

10000 

5000 

0 

801)('.,0 

t z 
w 
"' 2 

~ 
<I) 

z 4 July-23 67619.17 245.50 
5 ugust-23 66658.12 269.60 

! : ~,..J-P<S~- 60000 

0:: 
40000 ~ 

6 Seprember-23 67927.23 272.70 
7 October-23 66592.16 327.75 
8 November-23 67069.89 322.85 
9 December-23 7Z484.34 302.95 
10 January-24 73427.59 413.05 
11 February-24 73413.93 373.00 
12 March-24 74245.17 314.00 

~ 200 ---------------.,, 
100 -------------- 20000 

0 -----~.--~.--~.--~,- 0 
c,, ~ ~ ~ 
~ ' 6 ~ 
~ g ~ ~ 

~ SHARE PRICE (int) ~ BSE SENSEX 

.... 
<I) 

"' 

The monthly high low quotations as well as the volume of shares traded at National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 
(NSE) and BSE Ltd. (BSE) for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 are as under: 
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KEY INDICATORS: 

Equity Share Price movement on NSE & BSE (April 2023-IVlarch 20241 

(Price in ~ 

High 

Year (2023-241 NSE BSE 

April-23 300.90 300.65 

May-23 26180 262.00 

June-23 256.50 256.30 

July-23 246.10 245.50 

August-23 269.60 269.60 

Septernber-23 272.95 272.70 

0ctober-23 328.00 327.75 

November-23 322.85 322.85 

Decernber-23 303.00 302.95 

January-24 413.30 41305 

February-24 373.00 373.00 

IVlarch-24 314.70 314.00 

Total 

vil. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent: 

Link lntime India Private Limited 

Noble Heights. 1st Aoor, Plot No. 

NH2. C-1 Block. Near SavitriMarket, 

Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 

Tel.: (91)-11-41410592-94 

Fax: (91)-11 -41410591 

E-mail: delhi@linktime.co.in 

vii.i. Share Transfer System and Redressal of Investor 
Grievances/complaints and queries: 

The Company has made arrangements with M/s Link 
lntime India Private Limited. Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent (RTA). After completion of preliminary 
fonnalities and verification of genuineness of the 
Shareholders. documents lodged by them and 
authentication of signatures othe documents with 
the specimen signatures available in their records. 
l~ RTA sends the documents along with Share 

fi_:;;;v Certificates to the Company for approvaV 
endorsement of transfers/transmissions. 

NSE 

192.05 

22335 

218.90 

227.65 

224.95 

242.90 

261.60 

278.25 

270.05 

27600 

279.15 

243.65 

Volume (In No. of Sharesl 

Low 

BSE NSE BSE 

193.00 7305539 511723 

221.00 2378947 252647 

220.00 4287966 384412 

216.90 1433723 156565 

225.20 5899345 4,18206 

242.90 4757350 588858 

261.85 10747139 1111013 

275.00 22804690 406022 

272.70 2072435 168606 

276.05 11484492 862061 

282.00 1204771 151226 

246.10 664500 80832 

6535641 5112171 

However, the objections/deficiencies in the documents 
lodged by shareholders are sent to them immediately 
within a reasonable time period. With a view to 
expedite the process of Share transfer/transmission 
etc. on fast-trad basis, the Board has empowered 
the CFO & Company Secretary of the Company for 
approvaVendorsement of the Share certificates etc. 

The details of the transfer/transmission of shares are 
placed before the Board and Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee periodically. Confirmations in respect of the 
requests for dematerialization of shares are being sent 
to the respective depositories i.e. NSDL & COSL 
expeditiously. 

The Company addresses all comf)laints, suggestions. 
grievances and other correspondence expeditiously 
and replies are sent to the Shareholders usually 
\'\'ithin 7-10 days except in case of legal impediments 
and non-availability cf dccuments. 

The Company endeavcrs to implement suggestions 
as and when received from the Shareholders. 

The Company/RTA takes adequate steps for 
expeditiously redress the investors' complaints/ 
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grievances/queries. In compliance with the provisions 
of listing Regulations, the Company has been 
registered on the SCORES platform and monitors and 
handles the investor complaints electronically. 

Pursuant to the Regulation 7 (3) of the Listing 
Regulations, Certificate(s} on half yearly basis have 
been issued by M/s JVS & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretary for due Compliance of Share 
Transfer formalities by the Company. As per SEBI 
(Depositories & Participants) Regulations, 1996. 
certificate(s} have ~een received from M/s JVS & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary for timely 
dematerialization of shares and in respect of 
Secretarial Audit on quarterly basis for reconciliation 
of the Share Capital of the Company. 

A statement giving number of investor complaints 
pending at the beginning of the quarter, those received 
during the quarter, disposed of during the quarter and 
those remaining unresolved at the end of the quarter 
have been filed on quarterly basis with the Stock 
Exchanges in compliance \'l'ith the Regulation 13 
of the Listing Regulations. These statements are 
also available on the website of the Company 
viz. wvi1w.libertyshoes.com. 

ix. Distribution of Shareholding 

Distribution Summar{ as on 31st March, 2024: 

Shareholding of Number of Shareholders Number of Shares A.mount 
nominal value of 

Number % of total Number % of total 
(in ~} 

Upto 500 24394 95.29 17451 19 10.24 17451190 

501-1000 616 2.41 488157 2.86 4881570 

1001-2000 281 1.1 0 428509 2.51 4285090 

2001-3000 91 0.36 234360 1.38 2343600 

3001-4000 27 0.11 95480 0.56 954800 

4001-5000 40 0.16 190511 1.12 1905110 

5001-1 0000 72 0.28 535796 3.14 5357960 

10001-50000 80 0.31 13322068 78.18 133220680 

Total 25601 100 17040000 100 170400000 

Category wise list of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2024 

Category No. of Shares held Voting Strength {%} 

Promoters Holding: 

A. Individual Promoters 54,95,829 32.25 

B. Bodies Corporate(s} 44,72,517 26.25 

Total promoters holding 99,68,346 58.50 

Public Holding 

A. Fll's, NRl's & Banks etc. 2,28,971 1 34 

B. Indian public including Private corporate bodies. 68,42,683 40.16 

Total Public Holding 70,71,654 41 .50 

Grand Total 1, 70,40,000 100 



x. Shares held in physical and dematerialized form 
and Liquidity: 

The Company's Shares are traded compulsorily in 
dematerialized form and are available for trading in 

S.No Mode of Equity Share Holding(s) 

1 Demat 

2 Physical 

Total 

LIBERTY 

depository system of both NSOL and COSL through 
their depository participants. As on 31st March, 2024. 
the status of Shares in physical and dematerialized 
form stood as under: 

Number of Shares Percentage of total capital 

1,68,99,026 99.17 

1,40,974 0.83 

1, 70,40,000 100 

The trading in the equity shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form. 

xi. The Company has complied with the requirements 
as laid down in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 in respect 
cf Corporate Gcvernance. 

A certificate to this effect obtained from M/s Pardeep 
Tayal & Co. Chartered Accountants, the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company, has been attached to 
this Annual Report. The Company's shares are among 
the liquid and actively traded shares on Indian Stock 
Exchanges. 

xii. Plant locations: 

The Compa.ny's plants are located at Gharaunda, 
Libertypuram and Kamal in Ha1yana, at Roor~.ee in 
Uttrakhand and at Paonta Sahib in Himachal Pradesh. 

xiii. Oulstanding Global deposits receipts or American 
depository receipts or warrants or any convertible 
instruments, conversion date and likely Impact on 
equity: 

The Company does not have outstanding Global 
deposits receipts or American depository receipts or 
warrants or any convertible instruments, therefore the 
above provisions are net applicable in our case. 

xiv. Policy for determination of a material subsidiary: 

There is no material subsidiar1 of the Company; therefore 
the Company has not adopted the Policy so far. 

xv. Policy on Related Party Transactions: 

The Company has in place policy on Related Party 
Transactions and the same may be accessed on the 
Company's website at www.libertyshoes.com. 

xvi. Disclosure with respect to demat suspense 
e.{I account/u,nclaimed suspense 

'. "'.~,. 0 ' account (unclalmed shares): 
6?'~~ 7~ ,d. 'l:, ' • (I 

Pursuant to Regulation 39 of the Listing Regulations. 
reminders letters have been sent to shareholders 
whose shares remain unclaimed from the Company. 

Based on response. such shares will be transferred 
to ··unclaimed suspense account" as per the provisions 
of schedule VI of the Listing Regulations. The disclosure 
as required under schedule V of the Listing Regulations 
is given below: 

(a) Aggregate number of shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the suspense account lying 
at the beginning of the year-Nil 

{b) Number of shareholders who approached listed 
eniity for transfer of shares from suspense account 
during the year-Nil 

(c) Number of shareholders to whom shares were 
transferred from suspense account during the 
year-Nil 

(d) Aggregate number of shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the suspense account lying 
at the end of the year-Nil 

{el Voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen 
till the rightful owner of such shares claims the 
shares-NA 

xvii. Compliance with Secretarial Standards 

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. a 
Statutory Body, has issued Secretarial Standards on 
varicus aspects of corporate law and practices. The 
Company has complied with the same. 

xviii.Code for prevention of Insider Trading 

As on date. the Company has also in place code based 
on SEBJ (Prohibttion of Insider Trading) Regulations. 2015. 

This code is applicable to all Promoters. Directors, 
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designated employees and other connected person. 

The code ensures prevention of dealing in shares by 
persons having access to unpublished price sensitive 
information. The Code has been circulated to all 
the Promoters, members of the Board, Senior 
Management and other connected persons and 
majority of them have affirmed compliance with the 
code. The code lays down guidelines, which advise 
them on procedures to be followed and disclosures 
to be made, while dealing with shares of Company 
and cautioning them of the consequences of violations. 
The code clearly specifies that the Promoters. 
Directors, designated employees and other connected 
parsons of the Company can trade in the shares of 
the Company only during the period when 'trading 
window' is open and when there is no unpublished 
price sensitive information is in possession of the 
above persons. The trading window, amongst others, 
is closed during the time of declaration of financial 
results and occurrence of any material events as 
per the code. The above Codes were also adopted 
by the Board of Directors of the Company and 
thereafter the same have been posted on Company's 
wet-site www.libertyshoes.com and also submitted 
with the Stock Exchanges for their records in 
compliance with the SEBI guidelines. 

xix. Transfer of unclaimed amount/Shares to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Investor Education 
and Protection nmd Authority (Accounting, Audrt, 
Transfer and Refund/ Rules, 2016 ("the Rules") nctified 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs effective 
September 7, 2016, as amended. all shares (eligible 
FY 2013-14 and FY 2014-2015 Final) in respect 
of which dividend has remained unpaid/unclaimed 
by the shareholders for seven consecutive years 
or more were transferred in the demat account 
of Investor Education and Protection Ftmd (IEPF) 
Authority. 

The Company had sent notices to the concerned 
shareholders whose dividend and shares are liable 
to be transferred to IEPF Authority/Suspense Account 
have also been uploaded on Company's website at 
WW>N.libertyshoes.ccm 

An option to claim from IEPF Authority, all unpaid/ 
unclaimed dividends or other amounts and the 
unclaimed shares transferred to IEPF, is available to 
members. Members may make their claim by following 

the due procedure for refund as prescribed under 
the said Rules. Details of refund process are also 
available on the website of the Company at 
WNW.libe11yshoes.ccm 

Details of dividends remaining unpaid/unclaimed have 
been duly uploaded on the website of the Company 
at wwv1.libertyshoes.com and at the website of IEPF 
Authority at www.iepf.gov.in. 

Investor Education and Protection fund claim 
Guidelines 

With effect from September 7, 2016, Investors/ 
depositors whose unpaid dividends and shares have 
been transferred to IEPF under Companies Act, 2013. 
can claim the amounts and shares from the IEPF 
Authority as per the prccedures/ guidelines stated 
below: 

(a) Create a login on the website of MCA 
(http://www.mca gov.in/). 

{b) Login to the MCA website with your login 
credentials. 

(c) Select Form IEPF-5 under MCA Services. 

(d) Fill the online form with required details and 
submit. Rule 7 of Investor Education and Protection 
Fund Authority {Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules. 2016 or FAQs from the website 
of IEPF Authority may also be referred for further 
clarification. 

(e) Take a printout of !he duly filled and submitted 
Form IEPF- 5 and the copy of the acknowledgement 
generated. 

(f) Following documents to be arranged after submission 
ofonlineform: 

I. Indemnity Bond (criginal) with claimant signature to be 
executed. 

Note: In case of refund of dividend amount of { 10.000 
or more and/or market value of shares. nonjudicial stamp 
paper of appropriate value as prescribed under Stamp 
Act according tc state is required. 

For claim of only amount of f 10,000 or less, indemnity 
bond can be executed on a plain paper. 

II. Original share certificate (in case of securities held in 
physical form) or copy of transaction statement in 
case of securities held in demat form. 

Ill. Self-attested copy of PAN and 
Aadhaar Card. 



IV. Proof of entitlement/original share certificate/dividend 
warrant (if any}. 

V. Original cancelled cheque leaf. 

VI. Copy of Passport, OCI and PIO card in case of foreigners 
and NRls. 

VII. Client Master List duly self-attested by the claimant. 

VIII. In case any joint holder is deceased. nctarised ccpy 
of death certificate is to be attached. In case of NRI. 
self-attested copy of Overseas Indian Card (DIC) issued 
by fVlHA or Copy ot Passport ot PIO card, apostille as 
per Hague Convention is to be pro,Jided. 

(g} Submit all the above and self-attested ccpy of a-form 
along with the other documents as mentioned in 
the Form IEPF-5. if any, to the Nodal Officer IEPFJ of 
the Company at its registered office in an envelope 
mared "Claim for refund from IEPF Authority. 

The Company had received applications frcm various 
claimants, both in physical as well as in electronic 
form during the year. 

The claims of only those claimants are considered 
to whom the entitlement letters are issued either 
by the Company er Link lntime India Private Limited. 

The Company has appointed Sh. fVlunishKakra. CFO & 
Company Secretary as Nodal Officer of the Company 
for the purpose of coordinating with IEPF Authority, 
ensuring verification of claims. 

x:x. Arbitration Mechanism 

SEBI issued Circular No. SEBVHO/MIRSO/MIRSD 
_ RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/76 on May 30, 2022, which 
outlines the Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for 

Liberty Shoes Ltd. 

19th Floor, Magnum Global Park, 
Tower -2, Golf Course Extension Road, 

Sector-58. Gurugram, 122011 , Haryana 
Tel: (91) 124-4616200 

Fax: (91) 124,4616222 

Email: investorcare@libertyshoes.com 
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dispute resolution under the Stock Exchange 
arbitration mechanism concerning disputes between a 
Listed Company and/or Registrars to an Issue and 
Share Transfer Agents \RTAs) and its Shareholder(s}/ 
lnvestor{s). 

For shareholders' information and reference. this 
information, along with the circular, is available on 
SEBl's website at www.sebi.gov.in 

xxi. Disclosure of certain types of agreements 
binding listed entities 

There are no agreements that are required to be 
disclosed in terms of Schedule V, Para G to the Listing 
Regulations. 

The Company has duly complied with the requirements 
of corporate governance report under sub-para (2) to 
( 10) of Para C of Schedule V to the listing Regulations. 
Other items which are not applicable to the Company 
have not been separately commented upon. 

xxii. CIN: L 19201 HR1986PLC033185 

xxiii.CEO/CFO certification 

In compliance with Regulations 17(8) of the SEBI 
(Listing Regulations and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2015, a certificate from Executive Director 
& Chief Financial Officer ofthe Company to the Board of 
Directors specified in Pait B of Schedule II of the said 
Regulations is annexed tc this report. 

><Xiv.Address for Correspondence: 

For any query related to Annual report, transfer/ 
demateriali:zation of shares, dividend, and any other 
matter related to shares, please contact at either of 
the following address: 

Link lntime India Pvt. Ltd. 
{Registrar and Share Transfer Agent) 
Noble Heighis, 1st Floor, Pict Ne. 
NH2, G-J Block, Near Savitri Market. 
Janakpuri, New Delhi-1 10058 
Tel:(910-11-41 410592-94 
Fax: (91)-11-41410591 
Email:delhi@linkintime.co.in 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
AS PER PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER IV OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) , REGULATIONS, 2015 

To, 

The Members of, 

Liberty Shoes Ltd. 

1. The accompanying Corporate Governance Report 
prepared by Liberty Shoes Ltd. (hereinafter the 
"Comi;any") contains details as required by the 
previsions cf Chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ("the 
Listing Regulations") ('Applicable criteria') with respect 
to Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 
2024. Thisrepo1t is required by the Company for annual 
submission to the Stock exchanges and to be sent 
to the Members ofthe Company. 

Management's Responsibility 

2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report 
is the responsibility of the Management of the 
Company including preparation and maintenance of 
all relevant supporting records and documents. This 
responsibility also includes the design, implementation 
and maintenance of internal control relevant tc the 
preparation and presentation of the Corporate 
Governance Report. 

3. The Management alcng with the Board of Directors are 
also responsible for ensuring that the Company 
complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance 
as stipulated in the Listing Regulations. issued by 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, 
our responsibility is to express a reasonable assurance 
in the form of an opinion whether the Company has 
complied with the specific re(luirements of the Listing 
Regulations referred to in paragraph 1 above, 

5. We conducted our examination of the Corporate 
Governance Report in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Reports or Ce11ificates for Specific Purposes 
and the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate 
Governance, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (''ICAl"J. The Guidance Note en 
Reports or Ce1tificates for Special Purposes requires 
that we comply with the ethical requirements of the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants uf India. 

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable 
requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 
1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and 
Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and 
Other Assurance and Related Seivices Engagements. 

7. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement. including the assessment of the risks 
associated in compliance of the Corporate Governance 
Report v,ith the applicable criteria. Summary of key 
procedures performed include: 

i. Reading and understanding of the information prepared 
by the Company and included in its Corporate 
Governance Report; 

ii. Obtained and verified that the composition of the Board 
of Directors w.r.t. executive and non- executive 
directors has been met throughout the reporting 
period; 

iii. Obtained and read the Directors Register as on March 
31, 2024 and verified that atleast one women director 
was on the Board during the year; 

iv. Obtained and read the Minutes of the following 
meetings held during the period from April 1, 2023 
to March 31, 2024: 

(a) Board ofDirectors; 

(b) Audit Committee; 

{c) Nomination and Remuneration Committee; 

(d) Stakeholders Relationship Committee; 

(e) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee; and 

{f) Management Committee; 

v. Obtained necessary 
representations and 
declarations from 



directors of the Company including directors; and 

vi. Performed necessaiy inquiries with the management 
and also obtained necessary specific representations 
from the management. The above-mentioned 
procedures include examining evidence supporting the 
particulars in the Corporate Governance Report on a 
test basis. Further, our scope ct wcrk under this report 
did not involve us performing audit tests for the 
purposes of expressing an opinion on the fairness or 
accuracy of any of the financial information or the 
financial statements of the Company taken as a whole. 

Opinion 

8. Based on the procedures performed by us as referred in 
paragraph 7 above and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that 
the Company has complied with the conditions of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing 
Regulations, as applicable as at March 31, 2024, 
referred to paragraph 1 above. 

Other matters and Restriction on Use 

9. This report is neither an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company ncr the efficiency or 
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effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

10. This report is addressed to and provided to the 
Members of the Company solely for the purpose 
of enabling it to comply with its obligations under 
l isting Regulations with reference to Corporate 
Governance Report accompanied with by a report 
thereon from the statutory audijors and should not be 
used by any other person or for any other purpose. 
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or 
any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other 
party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may 
come without our prior consent in writing. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for 
events and circumstances occurring after the date of 
this repolt . 

For Pardoop Tayal & Co. 
Firm Registration No. 002733N 

Chartered Accountams 

Sukesh Gupta 
Partner 

Place: Gurug1~m. Haryana Membership No. 514675 
Dated: Wednesday, 29th May. 2024 UDIN: 24514675BKCAZf5923 
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THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

To the Board ofDirectors 

Liberty Shoes Ltd. 

We, the undersigned, in the representative capacity of 
Executive Director and CFO & Company Secretary 
respectively, hereby certify to the best of our knowledge and 
belief that: 

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the 
cash flew statement fer the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2024 and that: 

I. these statements do not contain any materially 
untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

ii. these statements together present a true and 
lair view uf the Company's affairs and are in 
compliance with existing Accounting Standards, 
applicable laws and regulations, 

bl During the year ended 31st March, 2024, no 
transactions were entered into by the Company, which 
are fraudulent illegal or iolative of the Company's Code 
of Conduct. 

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining 
internal controls fur financial reporting and we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems 
of the Company pe1taining to financial reporting and we 
have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, 
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal 
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we 
have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies in the design er operation of such internal 
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps 
we have taken or pmpose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies. 

d} We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit 
Committee that: 

I. there have not been any significant changes in 
internal control ever financial repcrtingduring the 
financial year ended March 31, 2024; 

ii. there have not been any signifitant changes in 
accounting policies as disclosed in the financial 
statements of the Company during the financial 
year ended March 31, 2024; and 

iii. there are no instances of significant fraud of which 
we had become aware and the involvement 
therein, if any, of the management or an employee 
having a signmcant role in the Company's internal 
control system over financial reporting. 

Sunil Bansal 
Executive Director 
DIN-00142121 

Place: Gurugram, Haryana 
Dated: Wednesday, 29th May, 2024 

CS Munish Kakra 
CFO& 

Company Se<:retaiy 
M. No. ACS 6262 



CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION 
OF DIRECTORS OF LIBERTY SHOES LIMITED 

LIBERTY 

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Members of 

LIBERTY SHOES LIMITEO 

LibertyPuram, 13th Milestone, GT Kamal Road, 

Kutail, P.O. Bastara, Kamal, Haryana-1 32114 

We have examined the relevant registers, records. forms. returns and disclosures received from the Directms of 
LIBERTY SHOES LIMITED having CIN: L 19201 HR1986PLC033185 and having Registered Office at Libe1ty Puram, 
13th Milestone, GT Kamal Road, Kutail, PO-Bastara, Kamal. Haryana-1 32114, (hereinafter referred to as · the Company") 
produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read 
with Schedule V Para C Sub clause 10(1) of the Securi1ies and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best ot our information and according to the verification (including Directors Identification 
Number {DIN) status at the portal-www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the 
Company and its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below 
for the Financial Year ending 31 st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 
as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of 
India or any such Statutory Authority. 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in Company 

1 Mr. Sunil Bansal 00142121 28/09/1990 
2 Mr. Shammi Bansal 00138792 01/04/2010 

3 Mr. Adish Kumar Gupta 00137612 12/08/2011 

4 Mr. Ashck Kumar 06883514 23/01/2015 
5 Mr. Aditya Khemka 00514552 27/09/2019 

6 Ms. Sujata 09289128 29/09/2021 
7 Mr. Gautam Said 00021400 01/04/2022 

8 Mr. Anand Das Mundhra 00167418 11/08/2023 
9 Mr. Piyush Dixit 03514223 11/08/2023 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appcintment/contrnuity of ever{ Directer on the Board is the responsibility cf the management 
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

Oate: 29th May, 2024 
Place: New Oelhi 

For JVS & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Jyoti Sharma 
Proprietor 

Practicing Company Secretary 
FCS No. 8843; CP No.10196 

Rrm Registration No.: I201 IOt848300 
U0IN F008843f000477841 

PR No: 851 



lioorty Shoes ltd, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION 
AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

The discussion under this head covers the financial results 
for the year ended 31st March 2024 and other related 
developments concerning the business of the company. 

The Footwear Industry-Structure and Development 

Before presenting the important facts of the Indian footwear 
industry, let us first understand the vision of the Govt. cl 
India with regard to promising footwear industry. While 
confirming its significant contribution in terms of majo1 
foreign exchange earnings and formation of job 
opportunities( approx. 40% women). Govr. further envisage 
that footwear Industry in future has the potentialto become 
world's largest and best quality manufacturer. Indian 
Footwear industry is expected to take advantage of 
execution of Free Trade Agreements {FTA) by Govt. with 
various countries , explore Joint Ventures for manufacturing 
of non leather footwear to explore the emerging 
opportunities for increasing exports and development of 
domestic market with Indian Footwear. Going foiward, in 
future. the consumers will have the option of Indian size of 
footwear (presently of US & European) also which would 
help distinguishing Indian footwear around the globe and 
reduce dependence on foreign sizing trends. 

In the past. Indian footwear industry was confronted w~h 
the major challenge of sub standards imµorts and also wi1h 
the quality specifications. BIS (Bureau ot Indian Standards) 
recent mandatory compliance requirements are set to 
revolutionize the industry with encouragement to local 
manufacturing. Industry has few concerns regarding 
applicability of BIS particularly for the existing inventories. 
its costs etc but hopeful that in the near future these 
would be satisfactorily resolved. 

With all these developments together with the existing 
policies of PU. IDLS etc Indian Footwear industry is 
all balanced for exploiting the emerging oppo1tunities. 

Indian Footwear Market size was valued at USO 15.1 billion 
in 2022 and is poised to grow from USO 17 .05 billion in 2023 
to USO 45 billion by 2031, growing at a CAGR of approx, 
13%. The indicative trends for 2024 are in line with the 
projected numbers. 

India is the second largest global producer cf fcct\'vear after 
China. In 2024, the revenue generated in the Footwear 
market in India amounts to US$26.06bn. It is also expected 
that the market will grow annually by arcund 5% (CAGR 
2024-2028) .The Leather footwear segment is the largest 

segment in the market, with a martet volume of 
US$18.08bn in 2024.When compared globally, the highest 
revenue is generated in the United States. which is 
expected to generate US$91.51 bn in 2024. In relation to the 
total population figures. it is expected that per perst'n/ year 
revenues of US$18.20 will be generated in the Footwear 
market in India in 2024. The continuous trends in the Indian 
markets positively indicate increase in per capita footwear 
consumption which is very healthy sign for the overall 
development of the Indian footwear industry. 

The Indian foctwear market is broadly segmented based en 
its type of formal, casual, sales channel-offline or on line 
and demographics. 

Presently .Offline channels including stores at Malls, high 
street and various other markets account for most sales of 
footwear in the Indian market . The presence of well­
established retail infrastructure and preference cf consumer 
to test the product for fit and feel before purchase is all 
contributing to the dominance of offline sales channels in 
the Indian footwear marketplace. However, the contribution 
of online channels are expected to increase at a robust pace 
over the coming years. Emergence of young age consumers 
coupled with increasing penetration ot smart phones and 
internet in India has progressed to a boom in the e• 
commerce space of the country and its growing trends also 
projects a significant gro1A1h of this segment in the future. 
The increasing product availability through various 
distribution channels, such as e-commerce and footwear 
stores. has made purchasing Footwear products more 
convenient for consumers. Online marketplaces and brand 
websites offer a wide selection of footwear options. 
allowing consumers to compare prices and styles easily. 

Gecgraphically Sourh India is projected tc acccunt for a 
dominant share of the Indian footwear marketplace. The 
presence of key footwear production facilities in this region 
is what allows it tc held a dominant stance in the Indian 
footwear market. North India is esrimated to emerge as the 
fastest-growing region in the Indian footwear market over 
the coming years. Increasing population density and 
growing disposable income of people in this region are key 
factors driving market growth. Indian Footwear has a 
mounting presence in the global arena also and industry is 
aggressively working to improve its 
presence further in the growing global 
market by meeting the specific -3 " 
expectaticns. f}y;;-1 1 '' " q: - ---------------~~1t~~. e ·7f -
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Factors .influencing Indian footwear markets, such as the 
launch of seasonal shoe collections like school shoes, 
wedding collection etc, changing fashion trends/ colours 
and increasing popularity of stylish and trendy footwear, 
have driven the demand for dress shoes, casual sneakers, 
and sandals. Consumers are increasingly seeking 
comfortable and versatile footwear suitable for various 
occasions, from casual outings to work environments. The 
growing emphasis on health and fitness further boosts the 
athletic shoe market, as individuals prioritize comfort and 
performance during physical activities. . This segment 
gro\1~h is driven by factors, such as rising health 
consciousness, increasing participation in sports and 
fitness activities, and growing popularity of athleisure wear. 
In addition, endorsements from sportsmen, celebrities, and 
influencers have played a significant role in driving 
consumer interest and demand for specific athletic shoe 
brands and styles. 

The women's footwear market is highly diverse, offering 
many styles and designs to meet the multifaceted needs of 
women. Heels, flats, boots. sandals, and sneakers are 
among the most popular categories. The children's 
footwear industry focus on providing comfortable, durable, 
and age-appropriate footwear. Sneakers and athletic shoes 
are popular for boys and girls, pricritizing support and 
functicnality. Scheel shoes, sandals. and boots are also 
essential categories designed to meet the specific needs of 
different age groups and activities. Parents, tor their kids. 
have become more conscious of the importance of proper 
foot support and development, leading them to seek shoe 
brands having comfort and durability also. 

Moderns trends wherein Footwear brands ccllaborate with 
fashion designers, celebrities, and other brands to create 
limited-edition collections and offer altogether new range 
aiming for new market segments. Also, numerous brands 
are launching limited-edition shoes and premium and luxury 
footwear for consumers aiming to live aspirational 
lifestyles. Footwear Companies and consumers both use 
social media to launch/discover new trends and to 
popularise this new concept social media influencers are 
playing a very dominant role amongst footwear lovers. 

Opportunities, Risks, Threats and Challenges 

~ Moderns footwear market is characterized 
e.fl by a high degree of innovaticn, driven 
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by technolcgical advancements 
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and changing consumer preferences. Manufacturers 
continuously introduce new materials. designs, and 
technologies to meet evolving demands for comfort, style, 
and functionality. This innovation fuels market grov\~h and 
fosters com~etition among brands. The market also 
experiences significant levels of M&A activities as 
companies seek to expand their market share. gain access 
to new technologies. er consolidate their position in the 
industry. 

Rising disposable incomes, particularly in emerging 
economies. have increased spending on new fashionable 
footwear. Consumers prioritize comfort and functionality, 
leading to a surge in demand for athletic shoes. snea~ers, 
and casual foot\'vear. Rapid grcwth in the population. 
particularly in urban areas, has increased the demand for 
footwear, especially for daily use and fashionable and 
comfortable styles. Rapid Urbanization is a key trend that is 
estimated to bolster the demand for footwear in India over 
the coming years. As urbanization increases it also affects 
consumer preferences and purchasing power, which in 
turn, favors sales oftootwearproducts as well. The growing 
popularity of online shopping platforms and social media 
marketing have made it easier for consumers to access a 
wider variety of shoe options and brands, further boosting 
sales. Technological advancements, such as the use of 30 
printing and advanced materials. are creating new 
opportunities for innovation and customization in product 
design. Increasing disposable income and growing 
availability of different footwear products from world­
renowned brands are also slated to promote Indian 
footwear market gro,,vth in the future. Availability of cheap 
raw materials and labor also makes India a highly opportune 
space for footwear manufacturers. 

However, besides drivers of footwear market, there are 
certain restraints also for the footwear sector namely, stiff 
competition from domestic and International brands. Price 
Sensitivity, rapidly change in customer preferences, 
disrupting supply chain, non- availability of raw material, 
inflation, increasing interest rates and its impact on 
availability of retail space. rate of economic grov\~h. fiscal 
and monetary policies of governments, ion, consumer 
credit availability, unemployment trends, Geo political 
threats. , exchange rate fluctuation, availability and 
retention of talent, tackling counterfeit goods. impact of 
strategic and marketing initiatives. data security and other 
matters that influence consumer confidence and spending. 
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The abundance of imitation and counterfeit footwear The Company has in place a strong and independent 
products in India is a key constraint for the overall Indian Internal Audit Department which is responsible for 
footwear market growth as this damages the brand image assessing and improving the effectiveness of internal 
of established footwear companies and also spoils their financial control and governance. To further strengthen the 
sales. internal control system and their adequacy and evaluating 

Govt. regulations play a crucialrole in the footwear industry, them from time to time. the Company has appointed 
particularly regarding safety standards, environmental experienced firm of Chartered Accountants as Internal 
concerns. and labor practices. Compliance with these Auditors. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the 
regulations ensures product quality, protects consumers, Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman of the 
and minimizes environmental impact. Regulatory changes Audit Committee and also places its report in the audit 
can significantly impact market participants, requiring committee meetings. However. audit is a continuous 
them to adapt their production processes and strategies. process and the findings of the internal auditors, though not 

very significant have been resolved in consultation with 
Liberty is focusing on the development and launch of new department's heads and concerned Directors. During a 
products with better designs that are also affordable for the routine internal audit, a deviation in settlement of few 
Indian consumer base. It is also making experiment with specific vendors and also acquisition of vehiclet has been 
newer and modern marketing strategiss to improve its noted and the audit tea.m. in consultation with the 
sales and revenue generation potential in the future. Management Committee, has taken requisite and decisive 

Reccgnizing the importance of risk management in a action to prevent its recccurrence. 

competitive market. Liberty has implemented robust Liberty has an independent Audit committee which acts 
processes to identify, assess, and mitigate risks inherent in in accordance with the terms of reference specified in 
the business environment. The company's board actively writing by the Board including evaluation of internal 
reviews the risk policy, while the audit committee oversees financial controls and risk management system. 
the effectiveness of risk management systems. This 
proactive approach enables Liberty to navigate The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, assesses 
uncertainties and challenges effectively, ensuring the the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control 
sustained growth and success of the company in the system in detecting fraud, irregularities or infringement 
dynamic footvvear industry.. of laws. rules and regulations or material control failures 

on a regular basis by reviewing the work and findings 
Your Directors believes that the outcome of these cases of Internal Audit Department. 
is unlikely to cause a materially adverse effect on the 
Company's profitability or business performance. Your The Executive Director's/CFO certification provided 
Company has a Contingent liability of t 2021 _21 Lakh as elsewhere in the Annual Report confers the adequacy of 
on 31st March, 2024 as compared to the previous internal control systems and procedures followed by the 

year\ 2192.23 Lakh as on 31st March, 2023. Company. 
Discussion on Financial Performance Internal Control System and its Adequacy 

Liberty's has a well recognized and comprehensive internal The Company's current year operations and financial 
control structures across all functions to ensure that all pe1tormance has been satisfactory despite unforeseen 
assets are protected. to prevent and detect frauds and challenges faced at the year end due to major fire incident 
errors tc maintain accuracy and ccrnpleteness cf its happened at one of the blocks of Company's warehouse 
accounting records and to further enable it in timely at PanipaL The Company's performance improved to its 
preparation of reliable financial information. These controls highest level in terms of operational profit before 
have been integrated with the Company's risk management exceptional items & taxes and it remained at ~ 2,019.15 
policy to ensure that control measures for the effective Lakh during the financial year ended 31st March 
mitigation of risks identified are in place. During the year. 2024 as compared to < l ,Bl5.43 Lakh during Ii :----. 
such controls were tested and no reportable material previous year ended 31st March. 2023. Your ; 

Company's net profit ef' · 
weakness in the design or operation was observed. = - ---€!)-, - ----t~ 



remained at f 1,115.75 for the financial year ended 31st 
March 2024 as against net profit oft 1,291.13 Lakh 
during the previous year ended 31st March, 2023. The 
Earning per share (EPS-Basic & Diluted) of your Company 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 remained 
at f 6. 40 as compared to the EPS for the previous financial 
year ended 31st March, 2023 at ~ 7.88. 

The Company has been strengthening its working capital 
management with a target to reduce its short term 
borrowing by improving inventory turn, trade receivables 
collection and managing its trade payables with better 
terms. The cash flows and internal accruals were efficiently 
used for working capital and the working capital borrowings 
against availability cf higher drawing power remained 
at t 6,812.63 Lakh, during the financial year ended 31st 
March 2024 as compared tot 7,579.92 Lakh during the 
previous financial year ended 31st March 2022. During the 
year, the Company has repaid its long term loan availed as 
Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line 2.0 as per the Scheme 
of Government of India introduced to counter COVID impact 
before its maturity/end ottenure. The Company has availed 
some Longterm vehicles loans which remained at< 236.38 
Lakh (Including Current Maturities} during the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2024 as compared tot 1,124.37 Lakh 
during the financial year ended 31st March 2023. 

Your Company has not availed any pa1ticular/specific term 
loan for funding of its capital expenditure and the entire 
routine capital expenditure has been funded through 
internal accruals. The capital expenditure incurred for 
purchase of furniture &fixtures, new moulds, innovations & 
technclogy and supporting machinery at plants as well as 
towards other nc1mal capital expenditure in furtherance tc 
the business operations of the Company was < 1,520.38 
Lakh (Other than Leasehold rights) during the year under 
review as compared to< 2,349.16 Lakh in the previous year. 
In addition to the same, during the year in accordance to the 
lnd-AS-1 16, the Company has recognized its leasehold 
rights at present value aggregating to< 2,541.09 Lakhs on 
account of addition and adjusted t 94.51 Lakhs on account 
of termination of earlier recognized contracts and the same 
have been made part ofthe Intangible Assets. During the 
year the Company, in its exercise to physically verify and 
rationalize its gross block, has leveled out its fully 
depreciated Gross Block of Tangible Assets (Not under 

Lease) aggregating to < 4,606.95 Lakhs 
with corresponding accumulated 
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depreciation of the same amount. The non current 
investments and other Financial Assets were at t 0.45 Lakh 
and ~ 725.42 l akh during the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2024 as compared to< 0.45 Lakh and t 726.64 Lakh 
respectively during the previous financial year ended 
31st March 2023. 

The other highlights of the financial performance of the 
Company during the year ended 31st March, 2024 have 
been stated in the Directors' Report for the year ended 31st 
March, 2024, which appears separately in the Annual 
Report. 

Material developments in Human Resources/ 
Industrial Relations front and Number of people 
employed 

Liberty by its name known as about the people and people 
include not only customers and other stakeholders but its 
Human Resources als<:' who make this statement of the 
Company true wi1h their continuous efforts and suppo1t. 
Liberty's Human resource is blend of talent, skill, young & 
energetic coming from multiple areas/states. The Company 
has prime focus on seamless hiring with career plan & 
gro,,1,'th for job satisfaction with their regular engagement 
on the job. Through advanced technology and simplified 
process, Liberty is dedicated to enriching employees' 
career from beginning till retirement with rewarding 
experience at all stages of their employment with the 
Company. Liberty has prime fucus en team develcpment 
and training whereby it prioritized and invests in creating 
conducive environments for team development and 
training. The aim of training is towards improving customer 
centricity and overall experience in Company's retail stores, 
distribution business and to increase skills in our 
manufacturing plants. Through regular interaction with 
people working down the senior management people and 
also talent retention and development initiatives being 
undertaken from time to time, your Company is putting 
effort for improving knowledge and skills of employees 
necessary for a future role & responsibilities. 

Liberty is committed to provide a safe work environment, 
harassment free with prime focus on no tolerance policy 
for sexual harassment. Awareness session on the 
Prevention of Sexual Harassment were conducted at 
Workplace across Liberty Offices/plants and proudly 
declares that during the reviewed period, no cases were 
fifed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
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(Prevention. Prohibition. and Redressal) Act, 2013. Cordial 
industrial relations with staff and workers further 
strengthen the harmonious work atmosphere. 

Liberty understands that its emplcyees are key t<l its 
success. and by investing in their growth and well-being. 
the company aspires to retain its position as a preferred 
employer and an industry leader. Upholding ethical 
standa.rds and fostering an inclusive workplace, Liberty 
seeks to sustain the dedication and excellence of its 
workforce in achieving the organization's objectives. 

During the year under consideration. the management 
committee considering the strength of its work force and 
also increasing labour compliance rsquirements, has 
implemented HR audit through external Labour Law 

Sr. No, Particulars 

I Debtors to Sales (in Days) 

2 Inventory to Turnover (In Days} 

3 Interest Coverage Ratio 

4 Cun-ent Ratio 

5 Debt Equity Ratio 

6 Operating Profit Margin (%) 

7 Net Profit Margin !excluding exceptional ttems ](%) 

experts at its Gharaunda Plant and satisfy with the 
outcome of this audit precess agreed to cover other 
plants in future once in a year. 

As on 31st March, 2024, the total employees' strength 
of the Company stood at 2047 as compared to previous 
year's 2090. 

Details of significance changes in key financial 
ratios along with detailed explanations 

In compliance with the requirement of the Listing 
Regulations. the key financial ratios of the Company alcng 
with explanation for significant changes (i.e. 25% or more 
as compared to the immediately previous financial year will 
be termed as "significant changes"), has been provided 
hereunder: 

2023-24 2022-23 

53 51 

101 101 

2.19 2.77 

1.85 1.76 

0.34 0.44 

7.30% 6.64% 

2.48% 2.11% 

8 Return on Net Worth [excluding exceptional items) (%) 7.76% 7.09% 

Cautionary Statement: Statements in the Management&#39;s discussion and analysis, describing the Company 
&#39;s objectives. expectations and industrial outlook, may constitute forward looking statement within the meaning of 
applicable laws. The actual results might differ materially from those either expressed or implied. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT LIBERTY 

To 

The Members of 

Liberty Shoes Ltd. 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial 
statements of Libe1ty Shoes Limited ("the Company"}, 
which comprises the Balance Sheet as a.t March 31, 2024, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and 
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, 
and a summary of signijicant accounting policies and 
oltler explanatory information (hereinafter refen-ed to as 
"financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act") in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of 1tle 
Act read \lllith the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended. ("Ind AS") and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements 

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter 

(I) Trade Receivables-Outstanding for more than 
180 days 

in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 

tor the Audit of the Rnancial Statements section cf 
our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute ot Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
together with the independence requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the finanoial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
toprovideabasisforouraudit opinion on the financial 
statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current 
period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
We have determined the matters described below to 
be the key audit matters to be communicated in 
our report. 

Addressing the Key Audit IVlattersPrincipal 

Principal Audit Procedures followed: 

Our audit procedures based on which we arrived 
at the conclusion regarding reasonableness of 
trade receivables outstanding for more than 
180 days: 

• Obtained the detail of parties having outstanding 
for more than 180 days; 

• Evaluated the facts, terms & conditions, relevant 
correspondence, status of legal proceedings 
wherever initiated and management's rationale 
for the recoverability ot the outstanding dues; 

• Meeting with the management. 
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(II) Contingent Liabilities-relating to VAT, Service Tax. 
labour, Income Tax and TDS (Note 38 [(Ill) 
to (VII)) 

There are certain pending matters relating to 
VAT for the year financial year 2005-06, 2006-07, 
2007-08 & 2008-09 on account of classification 
of goods at different rate of tax, service tax on GTA 
services for the period from January 2005 to March 
2007, few labour matters pertaining to earlier years 
and demand on account of non-deduction of tax 
at source and disallowance of certain business 
expendirure. 

These are pending before various judicial forums and 
consequential and possible impact thereof and 
provisions/disclosure required have been based on 
the management's assessment of the probability of 
the occurrence of the liability. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements aod 
Aud.itor's Report Thereon 

Our audit procedures based on which we arrived at the 
conclusion regarding reasonableness of the related 
Contingent Liabilities include the following: 

• Obtained the status of the cases from the related 
department and theirviewonthe matter; 

• Evaluated the facts and terms and conditions 
and management's rationale for the adequacy of 
the provision so far made and the amount 
remaining unprovided against the demands 
made against the Company: 

• Meeting with management and reading/reviewing 
the correspondences Memos and Notes on related 
matters. 

• Reliance has been placed on the legal views and 
decisions on similar matters and probability of the 
liability arising there from pending final judgement/ 
decisions; 

• Reviewed the appropriateness and adequacy of 
the disclcsure by the management as required 
in terms of the requirement of IND AS 37 
"Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets". 

this other infonnatian, we are required to report that 
fact and we have nothing to report in this regard. 

When we read other information, if we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement therein, we 
are require1 to communicate the matter to those 
charged with governance and take appropriate 
actions, if required. 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible 
for the preparation of the other information. The 
ether information comprises the information 
included in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures 
to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder's lnformaticn, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor's report 
thereon. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements 

Our opinion on tha financial statements does not 
cover the ether information and we de not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with cur audit of the financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is material!'{ inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during me course of our audit or othelWise appears 
to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for 
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) with respect to 
the preparation and presentation of these Ind­
AS financial statements that give a tiue and fair view 
of the financial position, financial pe1formance 
including other comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind-AS) presc1ibed under Section 133 of the Act. 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standardsf Rules, 2015, as amended, and Ii ----. 
other accounting principles generally ; 
accepted in ef' · 



India. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

The Beard of Directors is responsible fer overseeing 
the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whethe1· due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repoIt that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the eccnomic 
decisions of users taken on the basis ot these 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
,?-:::::::--, Wealso: 
if~--:;; 

fi_:;;;-, • Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, 
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whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit e11idence that is sufficient and apprcpriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resuhing from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the overlide of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate. 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including 
the disclcsures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

• Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in 
the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user 
of the financial statements may be influenced. 
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We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in {i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results 
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identifi ed misstatements in the financial 
statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit 

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial 
statements of the financial year ended March 31, 2024 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure a.bout the matter 
er when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, 
based on our audit we report, to the extent 
applicable, that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to the 
best of our kno\l\1edge and belief were 
necessary for the purposeofour audit; 

b) In our opinion proper books of account as 
-~ required by law have been kept by the 

rtl"ii-11' ;;;~:tf' 0 , Company so far as it appears from our 
M~~~,J: · ,~,. •o examination of those books; ,, 

,, ~). ~ 

c) The Balanee Sheet. Statement of Profit and 
Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the Statement of Cash Aows dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement 'Nith the 
book.s of account 

d) In our opinion. the aforesaid financial 
statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act 

e) On the basis of written representations 
received. from the directors as on March 31, 
2024, and tal<.en on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on Ma.rch 31, 2024. from 
being appointed as a director in terms 
section 164 (21 of the Act 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in ·;t..nnexure A''.Our repoIt 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements cl section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended: 

In our opinion and to the best ofourinlormation 
and according to the explanations given to us. 
the remuneration paid by the Company tc its 
directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act 

h) With respect to the other matters to be 
included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors/ Rules, 201 4, as 
amended, in cur opinion and tc the best 
of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 
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1. The Company has disclosed the impact 
of pending litigaticns on its financial 
position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company has made provision. as 
required under the applicable law or Ind 
AS, for material foreseeable losses, if 
any, on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The management has rei;resented 
that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts. no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any other 
persons or entities, including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or othe1wise. that the Intermediary 
shall: 

• directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on beha~ of the Company 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries' ) or 

• provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behaK of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The management has represented, that to 
the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the 
accounts, no funds have been received by 
the Company from any persons or entities, 
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otheMise, that the Company shall: 

• directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other persons 
.~ or entities identified in any manner 

, ~tf' 0 , whatsoever by or on behalf 
Er."ilfJ.; ,..~,. • o of the Funding Party 
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("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 

• provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
~ehafofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(c) Based on such audit procedures as 
considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (iv) \a) and 
(iv) (b) contain any material mis statement. 

(v.) The Company has not declared or paid 
Dividend during the year. 

(vi.f Based on our examination, which included 
test checks, the Company has used 
accounting software for maintaining its 
books of account for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and 
the same has operated throughout the year 
for all relevant transactions recorded in 
the software. Further, during the course 
of our audit we did not come across any 
instance of the audit trail feature being 
tampered with. 

2. As required by the Companies (Audito~s Report) 
Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the CBntral 
Government of India in terms l)f sub secticn (11) 
of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
"Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

For Pardeep Tayal ft C-0. 
fiflll Registration No. 02733N 

Ch3rtered Accountants 

Sukesh Gupta 
Partner 

Place: Gurogram, Haryana Membership No. 514675 
Dated: Wednesday, May 29, 2024 U0IN: 24514675BKCAZP.i923 



Libe11Y Shoes Lld. ANNEXURE-A TO INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (I) under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements" of our report 
of even date on the Financial Statements of Liberty Shoes Ltd.) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub Section 3 
of Section 143 of the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Liberty Shoes Limited ("the Company") as of 
March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Ccmpany for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based onthe 
internal control over financial repo1ting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Cha1tered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
ccmpany's policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the 
preventicn and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Ove1· 
Financial Reporting {the •Guidance Note") and the 
Standards en Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, tc the extent applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and pertorm the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy cf the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgement. including the 
assessment of the risks of materi<1I misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due tc fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes these policies and procedures 
that (1} pe11ain to the maintenance of records that, 1n 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
preventicn or timely detection cf unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent 



limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility cf collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
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reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Cha1tered Accountants 
of India. 

Place: Gurugram, Haryana 
Dated: Wednesday, May 29, 2024 

For l'ardeep Tayal & Co. 
Firm Registration No. 02733N 

Chartered Accountants 

Sukesh Gupta 
Partner 

Membership No. 514675 
UDIN: 2451 4675BKCAZP.i923 



Libe11Y Shoes Lld. ANNEXURE-B TO INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading of 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report 
of even date) 

Reg.: Liberty Shces Limited {the Company) 

11 a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of Property. Plant & Equipment. 

bl All the Property, Plant & Equipment have not been 
physically verified by the management during the 
year but there exists a regular programme of 
verification of Property, Plant & Equipment which, 
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to 
the size of the Company and nature of its assets. 
No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

c) According to the information and explanaticn 
given by the management, the title deeds of the 
immovable properties included in the property, 
plant and equipmenVfixed assets are held in the 
name of the Company. 

d) According to the information and explanation 
given by the management, the Company has not 
revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment 
and/or intangible assets during the year. 

e) According to the information and explanation 
given by the management, the Company does 
not hold any benami property in accordance 
to the provisions of the Benami Transaction 
(Prohibi1ionJ Act, 1988 (45 ~, 1988) and rules 
made thereunder and no proceeding has been 
initiated against the Company under the said Act. 

2) a) The management has conducted the physical 
verification of inventciy at reasonable intervals 
during the year which, in our opinion, is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and no discrepancies of 10% or more in 
the aggregate for each class of inventory were 
noticed on such physical verification. 

b) During the ye,ir the Company oos been san~1ioned/ 
renewed the working capital limits in excess of 
? 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis 
of security of current assets and according to 
the information and explanation given by the 
management, the quarterly returns/statements 
filed by the Company with such bankers are in 
agreement with the unaudited becks of accounts 

€!» 

cf the Company of the respective months/quarters 
and no material discrepancies have been observed. 

3) According to information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not made any investment in nor 
have provided any guarantee or security or have 
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured, to the Companies, firms. 
limited liability partnerships or any other parties. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (f) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and 
hence not commented upon. 

4) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, there are no loans, 
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in 
respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 
of the Companies Act are applicable and hence 
not commented upon. 

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from 
the publir.or amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits v,~hin the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or 
any other relevant provisions of the Act. Hence 
repcrting under clause (v) of the paragraph 3 cf the 
Order is not applicable. 

6) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the 
Central Government has not specified the maintenance 
of Cost Reccrds under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of 
the Companies Act for the products of the Company. 

7) According to the information, explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of records of 
the Company in respect of statutoiy dues: 

a) The Company is regular in depositing the 
undisputed statutory dues including Goods & 
Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Senlice Tax, 
Duty of Customs, Value Added Tax, Cess and 
other statutory dues applicable to it with 
appropriate authorities. 

b) According to the records of the Company, the 
statutory dues referred to sub-clause (a) which 
have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute. are as follows: 



Nature of Statute 

Service Tax -'let 1994 

Service Tax ¾'l. 1994 

Punjab Value Added 
Tax, 2005 

Punjab Value . .!\dded 
Ta)(. 2005 

Uttarakhand Value 
Added Tax, 2005 

Income Tax 

Income Tax 

Nature of dues Amount (in 
f l akhs) 

Service Tax on 2.33 
GTA Services 

Service Tax on 2.95 
GTA Services 

Value Added Tax on 19.13 
ae<:ount of classification 

of goods at different 
rate of tax 

Value J\dded Tax on account 22.30 
of classification of goods 
at different rate of tax 

Value Added Tax on account 45.35 
of classification of goods al 

different rate of tax 
Oisallowance of certain 173.36 
expenditure on a/c of non-
deduction of tax at source 
which othe,wise are not liable 
for deduction in terms of 
applicable provisions of the 
law. Company's appeal filed 
against the alleged non-
deduction of ta~. which was 
the basic premise for the 
related disallowances, has 
been decided by the appellate 
authority in favour of the 
Company. 
Ftlrther the Company's appeal 
specifically tiled against the 
referred disallowance during 
the course of assessment 
proceedings is pending before 
the appellate autholity. 

Oisallowance of certain 
expenditure for the assessment 
year 2020-21 on ale of nof\­
allow-abllitv of certain 
e~dltures, cooside!ing some 
of expenditure as of enduring 
nature, grossly igllCfing the 
past a=ment histo,y of the 
Company for earlier years and 
other additions for which 
Company has preferred an 
appeal before appellate 
authcrity. The related demand 
has been reduced by ~113.29 
1.akhs vide order passed u/s 
154 dated 1 D/05/2023. 

~51.52 

Period to wh.ich the 
amount relates 

Janua1y 2005 to March 2007 

April 2005 to March 2007 

Financial Year 2006-07 

financial Vear 2007-08 

financial Year 2016-17 

financial Year 2016-17 
[Assessment year 2017-18) 
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Forum where the 
dispute is pending 
Customs, Excise and 

Tax Appellate 
Tnounal, Chandigarh 
Customs, Excise and 
s..irvice Tax Appellate 
Tribunal, Chandiaarh 
Remanded back by 

Deputy Commissioner 
(Appeals) to Assessing 

Autllority and is pending 
1or assessement. 

Deputy Commissioner 
(Appeals) 

Joint Commissioner 
(Appea(J, 

Goods & Service Tax 
Commissioner 

(Appeals) 

Financial Year 2019-20 Commissioner !Appeals) 
(Assessment year 2020-21) 
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Nature of Statute 

Income Tax 

Income Tax 

Income Tax 

Income Tax 

Nature of dues 

On account of short deduction 
of Tax at Somes in the case of 
erstwhile subsidiary company 
Ws liberty Retail Revolutions 
Limited for the assessment year 
2011 -12, 2012-13, 2013-14 
&2014-15, for which Company 
has filed appeals before t~,e 
appropriate autholity and are 
pending for adjudication. Out of 
the same matter relating to 
assessment year 2011 -12 
fOJ t 8.64 lakhs has been 
decided by the Hon'ble fTAT, 
Oi!lhi in favou1 of the Company 
and the related demand stands 
reduced to that extant. 

On account of shon deduction 
of Tax at Source for the 
assessment year 2018- 19 
wflich otheoNise are not fiable 
for deduction in terms of 
applicable provisions of the law 
and for which Company has 
filed appeals before the 
appropriate authority and are 
pending for adjudication. 

On account of arbitrary additions 
made for the assessment year 
2014-15 against which pa1tly 
relief ha$ already been granted 
by the appellate a1rtho1ity in 
favour cf the Company and the 
depa1tment as well as the 
Company are in appeal before 
the Hon'ble ITAT for the same 
and the depaitment as well as 
the C-Ompany's a:ppool before 
the Hon'ble ITAT for the same 
have been disposed off in a 
coosolidated order by remanding 
back the matter to CIT(A) and is 
yet pending for adjuo'ication. 

On account of reduction of 
deduction u/s BOIC of Income 
Tax Act, 1961 for the 
assessment year 2013-14 due 
to non-considering part of 
business income as industrial 
income. for which Company's 
appeal is pending before 
Hon'ble Punjab & Har,<ana High 
Court duly allowing the interim 
relief as regard 10 the related 
matter. 

Amount fin 
~ Lakhs) 

31.38 

9.76 

4B.84 

59.14 

Period to which the 
amount relates 

Financial Year 2010-11. 
201 1-12, 2012-13 & 2013-14 

(Assessment} 
year 201 1-12, 2012-13, 

2013-14 &2014-15) 

financial Year 201 7 -18 
(Assessment! 
Year 2018-19 

Financial Year 2013-14 
(Assessment) 
Year 2014-15 

Financial Year 201 2-13 
(Assessment) 
Year 2013-14 

Forum where the 
dispute is pending 

ITAT. New Delhi & CIT 
(Appeals), 

NFAC, Maw Delhi 

CIT(A), NFAC, 
NewOelhi 

ITAT, New Delhi 

Hon'ble Punjab & 
Haryana High Court 



8) According to the information and explanations given to 
us, during the year the Company has not surrendered or 
disclosed any transactions not recorded in the books of 
accounts as income in the tax assessments under the 
lncomeTaxAct, 1961 (43cf1961}. 

9) a) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in the repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to 
any lender. 

b) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not been declared as 
willful defaulter by the bank or financial institution 
orother lender. 

c) In cur opinion and according to the informaticn and 
explanations given to us, the term loans taken by 
the Company during the year have been applied 
for the purpose for which the loan was obtained. 

d) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the funds raised on short 
term basis have not been utilized by the Company 
for long term purposes. 

e) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not 
taken any funds from any entity or person on 
acccunt of or to meet the obligations of its 
sullsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

f) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us. the Company has not 
raised loans during the year on pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies. 

1 OJ a) According to the information and explanations 
given by the management, the Company during the 
year has not raised any money by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer {including debt 
instruments] and hence repcrting under clause (x) 
(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

b) Acc-0rding to the information and explanations 
l~ given by the management, the Company 

fi_:;;;v during the year has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or 
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convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally 
ccnvertible)and hence repcrting under clause 
(x) (b) of the Order isnot applicable to the Company. 

11) a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the 
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 
financial statements and according to the 
infom1ation and explanations given to us by the 
management, we report that no material fraud by 
the Company or on the Company has been noticed 
orrepcrted during the year. 

b) During the year no rep mt under sub-section (12) of 
section 143 of the Ccmpanies Act has been filed by 
the auditors in form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
with the Central Government. 

cJ According to the information and explanations 
given to us by the management. we report that the 
Company has not received any whistle blower 
complaint during the year. 

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) (a) to (c) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties 
are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of 
Companies Act wherever applicable and the details 
have been disclosed in the notes to the Financial 
Statements as required by the applicable Ind-AS. 

14) a) According to information and explanations given 
to us the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business and 

b) The reports of the internal auditcrs for the period 
under audit have duly been considered. 

15) According to the information and explanations given by 
the management, the Company has not entered into 
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with them and hence provisions of section 
192 of the Companies Act are not applicable. 

16) According to the information and explanaticns given to 
us, the Company is not required to be registered under 
section 45 IA of the Rese1ve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 
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of 1934} and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (>.-vi) 
(a) to (d) cf the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

17} In our opinion and according tc the infom1ation and 
explanations given by the management, the Company 
has not incurred any cash losses during 1he year and 
in the immediately preceding financial year. 

18} During the year there has been no resignation of the 
statutory auditors of the Company. 

19} In our opinion on the basis of financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates cf realization cf financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities. other information 
accompanying the financial statements, knowledge of 
Board of Directors and management plans, there exists 
no material uncertainty on the date of the audit report 
and the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they 
fall due within the period of one year from the balance 
sheet date.However, we state that this is not an 
assurance as to rhe future viability of the Company and 
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the 
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of 
cne year from the balance sheet date, will get 

discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

20) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given by the management. there are 
nc unspent amounts towards Ccrporate Sccial 
Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing and other than ongoing 
projects requiring transfer of funds to a fund specified in 
Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance 
to the second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 
and sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. 
Acccrdingly, the previsions of clause (xx} (a) & (b) cf 
tha Order have not been comment upon. 

21) Acccrding to the infurmation and explanaticns given by 
the management, the Company does not have any 
subsidiaries, joint venture or associate companies, so 
the provisions of clause {xxi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

For Pardeep Tayal & Co. 
Fimi Registration No. 02733N 

Chartered Accountants 

Sukesh Gupta 
Partner 

Place: Gurugram, Ha,vana Membership No. 514675 
Dated: Wednesday, May 29, 2024 UDIN: 2451 4675Bl(C.t.ZF5923 



BALANCE SHEET 

As at 31" March, 2024 
Particulars 
Assets 
Noo~current Assets 

P,operty, Plam & Eouipmeats 
Capital Wol1< in Pteg,ess 
Intangible Assets 
Right of U,re Assets 
Financial Ass.tts 

Non•<;urrem hwesmwnts 
Othe< finano!a! Assets 
Other Non-cunent Assets 

Total Non Current Asscls 

Cunent A$Sets 
Inventories 
Financia] Assets 

Trad& R&e&Arables 
Cash and Ca~~ EquivalanlS 
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivaleols 
Other Financial Assets 

OU,or Cun~m Asse1s 
Total Cunent A"et< 
Total An.ts 

~uity & Liabilities 

Equity 
Equlty Share Gal)ltal 
Other fquitv 

Total Equity 

liabilities 
Noo~cwreot liabilitie, 

Financial Uabfflties 
Borrowings 
lease liabif'rties 
Other Financial Uab1ities 

Pro\1sions 
Ollf&rrod Tax liabl:i\y !Net) 

Total Non~cu11ent Uabifitie:s 
Ctttrent Uabi6ties 

financlru liabii!ies 
Borrc-'A~ngs 

lease liabilities 
Traoe P8:VBb1es 

al Total outsta!lding 00$ of Micro and Sma.1 Enrarprises 
bl Total 01J1.standin9 due otw.1!\an M~ro and Smai Ent&-'Orises 

Othe< Financial liab'lities 
Other Current Uabl.1ias 
Prc\!iSiOOS 
Cur,ent Ta. liabilllle6 (Netl 

Total Current Uabilities 
Total Equitv and U-abilitics 
Sianificant Acocoorlnn Policies. 
Notes oo Floa,,cial Statements 

The accompanying notes are a., 1nt'egral part of the~e financial statements 

Si.gn&d in tenns of (!(ff Aua1t R&port of s-.•en <fat&. 
For Pa,<Jeip Tayal & Co. 
R<m Registration No.02733N 
Cflarte•ed Accountants 

Sukesh Gupta 
Pa<tner 

Mtmbtrship No. 514675 

Place: Gurugram. f!a,yana 
Dated: \<Vednesday, 29th May, 2024 

Sunil Bansal 
b:etutflie-Director 

OIN-00142121 

fur a11d on beha~ Qf lh& 8oaid 

Shammi Bansal 
Executive O~eclOC 
DIN . 00138792 

Note 

21a) 
21c) 
21b) 
Z{d) 

3 
4 
5 

6 

7 
8 
9 
10 
11 

12 
13 

14 
15 
16 
17 
18 

19 

20 

21 
22 
23 

I 
2to85 

As atll.03.2024 

8,734.43 
1.37 

38.62 
7,681.74 

0.45 
725.42 
24.48 

17,206.51 

15,841.13 

9,779.27 
262.86 
388.60 
98.23 

2,801.81 
29,171.90 
46,378.41 

1,704.00 
19,202.79 

20,906.79 

8806 
7,681.73 
1,829.90 

103.38 

9,703.06 

6,960.96 
-

2,2a4.23 
4,398.86 

-
1,833.76 
180.63 
110,12 

15,768.56 
46,378.41 

Piyush Dixit 
lr\d$J>$nd&nt Dir&etor 

OIN-0351•m 
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Asat31 .03.2023 

8.658.48 
1998 
40.44 

7,311.42 

0.4S 
72M3 

IS.39 
16,773.79 

19,427.53 

8,746.>4 
162.38 
199.57 
109.64 

1,649.93 
30,295.59 
47,069.38 

1,/04,00 
18, 112.93 

19,816.93 

742.23 
7,31 1.43 
1,889.69 

115.64 
-

10,05U9 

7,962.06 
-

1,347.>4 
6,208.06 

-
1.577.89 

97.91 
-

17,193.46 
47,069 .. 38 

Munish Kokrll 
CFO & 

Cc""-"'"'I Secreia,y 
M.No, ACS 6262 



Libe11Y Shoes Lld. STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS 

or t e vear en e arc , F h d d 31~M h 2024 
Pattieulors Note 

REVENUE 
Re\'snue from Operations 24 
Other lncurne 25 

Total Revenu& 

Expenses 

Cost of Raw Materials & Components Cons.,med 26 l•i &(b) 
I\Jrchase of Stock-b-trzde 26{c) 
Qlange in 1/ll'entartes ol Firished Goods, Gbods in Pruce.ss an<l Stocl(-in-Trad.• 27 
fffiplo\'ee Bene~t EJ<penses 28&50 
Finance Cost 29 
Depreciation & Amortisations 30 
Olher Expenses 31 

Total ExptMos 
Profit before excepti11nal items and tax 

Exceptional ltems 32 
Profit before Tax 

Income- lax Expense: 
Current tax 33 
Income Tax for Earner \'ears 

r.~rred Ta, Cha1ge.l(credn) 
Total Tax ExpenseJ 

Profit for tbe year 
Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that v.ill net ba reclassified m profit or f.o.ss in subiaquent perIDd 

Aemearo~ne/lt Gainsl(Lc,ses) M Oefined ~nefit Plan 50 
lncNTie Ta,.. effect on abt1ve 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, oet of income tax 

Total Comprobeosive Income for ttio year 

(C'1mprisin9 pmfit ar.d 1Jther c:,nprehensive !nc()meJ 

Eamings/llnsm) per ~v snare (nominal value ~ shale nt ~ 10/· Each 
Basie 
1Ji1uted 

SigniJicam ACC<lllJlting Policies 1 

Not&s on flnancial Statements 21085 
The accompanying nutes are an integral part of th~e finanola! 'Statements 

stg/\Od in tem,s of 00! Alldit Repon of .,,an dat&. for a",(j en behail of the Snard 
for Pa·deep Tayal & Co. 
Fim1 Registrawn No.02733N 
Cllarte,eil Accountams 

Sukesh Gupta 
Partner 

Membersrup No. S!467S 

Place: Guwgram, Haryana 
Daioo: We<inesday. 29th May, 2024 

Sunil Bansal 
E~:ocutive Dirac.tor 

OIN-001•2 121 

Shammi Bans.al 
E:-:ecutivs Director 
DIN · 00138792 

For th& year ended 
31st March, 2024 

63,685.92 
38,91 

63,724.83 

22,349.79 
6,670.52 
1,417.61 

10,908.16 
1,358.71 
3,375.58 

15,625,31 
61,705.68 
2,019.15 

489.78 
1,529.37 

431.16 
(17.54) 

413.SZ 

1,115.75 

(34.60) 
8.71 

(25.89) 
1,089.86 

6.40 
6.40 

Piyusb Dixlt 
Independent Director 

OIN-03514223 

(AmOllll In { l akh) 

f:or tho ye:n ended 
31st Maroh, 202.3 

65,432.70 
17.42 

65,450.12 

25,66 1.44 
9,532.64 

(2,721.09j 
10,396.11 

1,208.60 
3,168.62 

16,388.38 
63,634.70 
1,815.42 

29.95 
1,785.47 

471.93 
22.43 

. 

494.36 

1,291.11 

68.78 
(17.31) 
51.47 

1,342.58 

7.88 
7.88 

Muoish Kakra 
CfO & 

Company Secreta,y 
M.No. ACS 6262 



A) Equity Share Capital 
1) Current Reoortina Period 

Balance at the beginning 
Current reporting period 

1,704.00 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
LIBERTY SHOES LIMITED 

of the Changes in Equity Recasted balance at Ille Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to beginning of tbe current Share Capital 
prior period orron, reporting period during the 

current year 
. 1,704.00 . 

2 ) p rev1ous R eportJng p . d er10 

Balance at the beginning of the Changes in Equity Share Recasted balance at Ille Changes on Equity 
previous reporting period Capita.I due to prior begin.oing of the prtvious Share Capital 

period orrors reporting period during the 
previous year 

1,704.00 . 1,704.00 . 

8) Other Equity 
1) Current Reoortina Period 

Particulars Reser,es & Surplus 
Capital Securities General Retained Other 

LIBERTY 

(AmOlll! in ( lskh} 

Balance at the 
end of Ibo current 
reporting period 

1,704.00 

(Amomt in { lakh) 

Balance at the 
end of tile 

previous reporting 
period 

1,704.00 

(Amooot inf lakh) 

Total 

Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings Comprehensive 

Balance atthe beginning of the Current 
reporting period 
ChanQes in accounting oolicies/plfor period errors 
Recasted balance at the begi11J1ing of th• current 
repolting period 
Total Comarehensive Income for the cwrent vear 
Oivid&nds 
Transfer to Retained Earnlnns 
Balance at the end of current reporting period 

21 Previous ReDortina Period 
Particulars 

Balance at the beginning o·f the previous 
reporting period 
Chances in accountina oolicies/nrior oeriod errors 
Recasted balance at the hegir.1ing of the previous 
reponing period 
Total Comorehe.1sive Income for the orevious vear 
Dividends 
Transfer to Retained EarninGS 
Balance at the end of previous repomng period 

Signed in terms of (W.r.' Auait Aepoll of e\'en oate. 
Far P••doop Tayal & Co. 
Firm R,9isva1i<>n No.02733N 
Chartereo Aecountams 

Sukesh Gupta 
J>,rtner 

M<mb•,ship No. 51"675 

Place: Gumgram. Haryana 
Dated: Wednesday. 29th May, 2024 

Sunil Bansal 
Executive Oitecmr 

DIN-00142121 

Income 

4.00 1,127.21 12,270.09 4,711 .64 . 18,112, 93 

. . . . . . 
4.00 1,127.21 12,270.09 4,711.64 . 18,112.93 

. . . 1,089.86 . 1,089.86 
. - . . 

. . . . . . 
4.00 1,127.21 12,270.09 5,801.50 . 19,202.79 

(AmOWll int lakh) 

Reserves & Surplus Total 

Capital Sec-orities GeneHI 
Reserve Premium Reseroe 

4.00 1,127.21 12,270.09 

. . . 
4.00 1,127.21 12,270.09 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 
4.00 1,127.21 12,270.09 

for ar,d on beha~ of the 8oaid 

Shammi Bansal 
fxec,,tive Director 
DIN . 00138792 

~ 

Retlllned Other 
Earnings Comprehensive 

3,795.03 

. 
3,795.03 

1,342.60 
426.00 

. 
4,711.64 

Piyusb Oixit 
Independent Director 

DIJ,/.03514223 

Income 
. 
. 
. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

17,196.33 

. 
17,196.33 

1.342.60 
426.00 

. 
18,112.93 

l!Aunish Kakra 
CfO& 

Companf Seueta')' 
M.No. ACS 6262 



Libe11Y Shoes Lld. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

F h or t e vear en e h 2024 arc , (AmOllll In { l akh) 

Particulars For the year ended for the year ended 
31,t March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

A. CASH FLO'N FROM OPERATit-lG ACTIVITIES 
Ptofit Wore lnc,m,, Tax fr<m 

Cont:.,uing Operations 1,529.37 1.785.48 
Discontinued Operat;o. ... ,s . . 
Profit before Income Tax including discontinued operations 1,529.37 1,785.48 

Afll/Sl11>8ll1S for: 
Depreo'.alfon and amortisatl-00 ei<peflSe 3,375.58 3,168.62 
Los~flGain) on sa!e of Non,current Assets ()iclucfng gtL-<l\•"assats dcst~O rn fi'r&) 489.78 29.95 
Bank & Other !merest classified as investing cash flows {38.91) (17.42) 
finance Cost 1,358.71 1.208.60 
Unrealised foreign f.xchange Difference (48.04) (65,181 
Acturial Gaini(loss) on Oeffned Benelt Plan lne, of tax e~eC!I (25.89) 51.48 
Changes in operati{lg asssts and ltabi!ities 
(lncrease);Decrease in Tr.de Receivables (1,102.99) 901,33 
(!ncrease)Jtlecrease in ln\lentories 3,586.39 (2,6'32,04) 
lncrease/(Docroasel in Trade & Olhcr Payables 752.27 4,731.70 
(lncrea.~eiJDacrwe ID •)I.her non-wrreru ass8t.S 10.66 (20.8SI 
ilncrease);Decrease in l,,;,,s & Mvanees 1IA2 36.51 
(!ncrease},tt'lecrea:se in 01her rurrent assets (857.09) 847.02 
lncrease/(Oscrsase) in Provision for doubtfut debts 70.26 (39.40) 
lnc,ease,iiOec,ease) in o!her oonent liabilities . . 
Cash gelt-ereated from oper~oo5 9,111.52 9,985.80 
Direct Taxes Paid 294.79 586.97 

Nat cash Flew from Oocrolin.o Activities 8,816.73 9,398.83 
B CASH FLOW FROM IINESTING ACTMllES 

Paymems fo, Purcliase/Accural of Non-cur,enl Assets llndl.ding cap'.la1isatloncf Jeasohold 
llg'lts in acctrdaice to lndAS 116 • (ftefu1 to Note No. 2 (0) Q,1.3) (4,042.86) (6,060.39) 
Proceeds· from Sale of Non-CUJl'ent Assetc. (Net c1 ad)nttnems ® aic r.f g,o_ids/i$$ets (ie)ctrC'(ed ir, fire! (241l33) 466.9l 
(lncrease);Decrease in Fllted 0•?';si1s with Banf3 'or Margin Money •9"'1'1 LC518Gs (189.04) 8.14 
Bank and Olhe! Interest 38.91 17.42 

Net Cash outflow from Investing Activities 14.441.321 15,567.921 
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTMTIES 

Pa1<men1 of lease Liabilities 12,016.21) (1.~4.241 
Proceeds from brig term borrowings 172.23 
Rwayment of loog term br)rt0vllngs (887.99) (471.89) 
lntere,1 paid (1,358.71) (1,208.601 
Dividend oaid . 1426.001 

Net Cash inflow/outflow from Financing Activities: 14,322.971 13,868.501 
Not lncreaso/(Dcereaa.e) in CMh & Cash Equivalents 5.2.44 !37.59) 
Cash &: c .. h Equl .. Jents (Opening Balance) 167.66 140.06 
Unrealised foreiWI Exchanoe Difference 48.04 65,18 
Cash fl Cash t-ouivalents (Closino Balance) 268.14 167.66 
Compononts of Cash & Cash Equtvafonts 
Cash in hand including ftnprest 127.61 97.96 
Ba'ance with Scheduled Banks . . 

CUmnt Accounts 44,97 26.98 
Cheaues on haoo 95.56 42.72 

Total 268.14 167,66 
Notes: 1) Purchase of fi:.:edAssetsinc!ude movemints o1 capi1al work in progress between the ~ mg&at the end of theyaar and leasehold rightsm::ogruscd dunng the 
nnancial y&ar inaccordaocem lnd-AS-1 16 
2) The C'ash flow S1lrtement has been prepared underthe indirect method as set out in Ind-AS• 7 Statement of Cesh Rowsnolifulcf under Section 133 of 1he Companies Act, 
2013. read together with Paragraph 7 of lheCompanies (lndianAccoonlingStandards) Rules, 2015 fas amended). 

Signed in te'ms of our Audrt RSJ)'lrt of even date. 
for Pardeep Ta·1al & Co. 
Arm RegiSlration No.02733N 
Chartered .Accocota, ts 

Suko<h Gupta 
Partner 

Membership No. 514675 

Place: Gurugrem, Haryana 
Dateo: Wednesdav. 29th lvlay, 2024 

Sttnll 8a)1Scll 
f >:ecWl.1e Director 

DIN-00142121 

for a'ld on beha1f of the Board 

Sha_mml Bansal 
f.\:ettrtive Director 
DIN · 00138792 

Piyush Dool 
Independent Director 

OiN--03514223 

Munish K.i.kra 
CFO & 

COOll)ilny Sec,etarv 
MNo. At:.S 6262 



LIBERTY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Liberty Shoes Ltd is a public company domiciled in lnd.ia and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
1956 on 3rd September, 1986. The shares of the Company 
are listed on 111\fo stock exchanges in India i.e National Stock. 
Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE] The 
Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and 
trading of footwear. accessories and lifestyle products 
through its retail, e-commerce and wholesale network. The 
Registered Office of the Company is situated at 
Libertypuram, Kamal, Haryana. 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

The financial statements of the Company have 
been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
(as amended). 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied 
except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing Ind-AS 
requires a change in accounting policy hitherto in use. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a 
historical cost basis except financial assets and 
liabilities including derivative financial instruments and 
investments, defined benefit plans which are to be 
measured at fair value: 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current 
and non-current as per the Company's normal 
operating cycle and other criteria as set out in 
Schedule Ill to the Ccrnpanies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 
1 "Presentation of financial statements". 

b) Current versus non-current classification: 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the 
balance sheet based on current/non-current 
classttication. 

An asset is treated as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold 
or consumed in normal operating cycle; or 

• Held primarilyforthe purpose of trading; or 

• Expected to be realized within twelve months 
after the reporting period: or 

• Cash or cash equh1alent unless restricted from 
, . ~~ 0 , being exchanged or used to settle a 

6?'~~ ,·~ d. • ',. •o liability for at least twelve ,, 
,, ~). ~ 

months after the reporting period; or 

All other assets are classified as non-current 

A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating 
cycle;or 

• It is held primarily forthe purpose oftrading: or 

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after 
the reporting period; or 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as 
non-current 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non 
current assets and liabilities respectivel11. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition 
of assets for processing and their realization in cash and 
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve 
months as its operating cycle. 

c) Revenue Recognition 

• Sales revenue is recognized when the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership of goods have 
passed to the buyer on dispatch or delivery of 
goods. net of sales returns, trade discount and 
GST and do not include the cost of materials used 
for captive consumption. 

• Export Incentives are accounted on accrual basis 
and include the estimated value of incentives 
receivable under the Duty Drawback Scheme and 
the Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported 
Products (RoDTEP). Any difference at the time of 
actual receipt is accounted for in the year of 
receipt. The amcunt of export incent~ies has been 
adjusted with the cost of raw materials consumed. 
Gain/Loss, if any, on transfer of Duty Credit 
Entitlements received under the DEPB Scheme is 
accounted for in the year of transfer. 

, Other operating revenue include revenue arising 
from a Company's operating activ~ies, i.e., either 
its principal or ancillary revenue-generating 
activities, but which is not revenue arising from 
sale ot products er rendering of services. The other 
operating revenue of the company includes revenue 
from freight. exchange rate 1Iuctuations etc. 

• Interest income from a financial asset is recognised 



Libe11Y Shoes Lld. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

when it is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the Ccmpanyand the amcunt of inccme can 
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued 
on a time basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate 
applicable. 

d) Inventory Valuation 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. Cost of inventories, other than for 
manufactured finished goods and goods in 
process, is determined on Weighted Average Cost 
Method (net of CENVAT/lnput Tax credit availed) 
of stock accounting. Cost of manufactured finished 
goods and goods in process include cost of raw 
materials consumed on weighted average basis 
and appropriate portion of allocable overheads and 
Taxes. wherever applicable. Scrap, if any, at the 
year-end does not form part of the closing 
inventory. 

e) Evaluation of Trade Receivables, Loans & 
Advances and Provisioning 

Recoverability status of all the debtors and Loans & 
Advances are duly evaluated/reviewed and 
necessary provisioniwriting off is considered by the 
Company on annual basis. However, from the 
financial year 2020-21 onwards the Company has 
been consistently reviewing/evaluating the same 
on case to case basis in timely manner and going 
for the required writing off/provisioning as per the 
following depending upon the age of related 
debtors/advances: 

Outstanding for Policy 

> 3 years @ 100% irrespective of the status 
of legal proceeding initiated 

> 2 year < 3 years @30% 

> 1 year < 2 years @10% 

f) Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible 
Assets and Capital Work in Progress 

Property, Plant & Equipmentand Intangible Assets 
are stated at original cost (net of CENVAT/lnput Tax 
credit availed, wherever eligible) but including 
freight inward, duties, taxes and other incidental 
expenses relating to acquisition and installation 
thereof. Capital worlc in progress includes cost 
of property, plant & equipment under installation 

~ 

and other incidental expenses. Items of property, 
plant & equipment that have ceen retired from 
active use and are held for disposal are stated 
at the lower of their net book value and net 
realizable value and are shown separately in 
the financial statements. Any expected loss is 
recognized immediately in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains 
and losses arising from disposal of Property, Plant & 
Equipment which are carried at cost are recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

g) Depreciation 

The useful lives of the assets are based on 
technical estimates approved by the Management 
and lower than or the same as the useful lives 
prescribed under schedule II of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in order to reflect the period over 
which depreciable assets are expected to be 
used by the Company. Depreciation is provided 
on a pro rata basis on the Straight-Line 
Method (SLM) on the estimated useful lives 
of the assets as stated below: 

Assets individually costing less than t 5,000/- are 
fully depreciated in the year of acquisition. 

Assets Useful Life 

Factory Building 30 Years 

Plant & Equipment 15 Years 

Dies &Moulds 15 Years 

Electric Installation &Equipments 10 Years 

Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years 

Office Equipment 5 Years 

Computers 3 Years 

Servers & Networlcs 6 Years 

Motor Cars & Buses 8 Years 

Motor Cycles 10 Years 

h) Impairment of Assets 

Usually the Company reviews the carrying value of 
assets for any possible impairment at each balance 
sheet date. However, the assets that are Ii ---., 
subject of amortization are reviewed :. 
forimpairment 

I ef' · 
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whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount rnay not be 
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized 
when the canying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. In assessing the recoverable 
amount, higher of the assets' fair value less cost to 
sell and value in use is considered. 

i) Operating Lease 

The Company, as a lessee, recognizes leasehold 
rights and leasehold obligations for its leasing 
arrangements, if the contract conveys the right tt' 
control the use of an identified asset. 

The leasehold rights ate depreciated/amortized 
using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date over the shorter of lease 
tem1 or useful life of right to use. 

The Company measures the lease liability at 
the present value of the lease payments that are 
not paid at the commencement date of the lease. 
The lease payments are discounted using the 
interestrate implicit in the lease if that rate can be 
readilydetermined. If that rate cannot be readily 
determined. the Company uses incremental 
borrowing rate. For short-term and low value 
leases. the Companyrecognizes the lease 
payments as an operatingexpense on a straight­
line basis over the lease tenn. 

Modifications to a lease agreement beyond the 
original terms and conditions are generally 
accounted for as a remeasurement of the lease 
liability with a corresponding adjustment to the 
right-of-use asset. Any gain or loss on modification 
is recognised in the statemeni of profii and loss. 

j) Valuation of Investments 

Long term Investments are valued at cost and 
Short-Term Investments are valued at lower of cost 
and fair value, calculated individually for each 
investment. 

k) Financial Instruments 

.f Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
f:::_ ~ recognised when a Company becomes a party 

/ If..;;-, to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. 

~ 

Financial Assets 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair 
value plus. in the case of financial assets not 
recorded at fair value through profit or loss. 
transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial assets. These include 
trade receivables, cash & cash equivalents, bank 
balances other than cash & cash equivalents and 
other financial assets. 

Classification and Subsequent Measurement 

financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income or fair value through profit 
or loss depending on its business model for 
managing those financial assets and the asset 
contractual cash flow characteristics. 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at 
amortised cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to 
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

financial Assets at Fair Value through Other 
Comprehensive Income (MOCII 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair 
value through other cornprehensive income if it is 
held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. The company may make an 
irrevocable election to present subsequent 
changes in the fair value of equity investment not 
held for trading in other comprehensive income. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or 
Loss(MPLI 
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A financial asset which is not classified in any of 
the above categories is subsequently measured 
at fair value through profit or loss. 

Derecognition 

The Company derecognises a financial asset 
only when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the asset expires or it transfers 
the financial asset and substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another 
entity and does not retain control cf the asset 

lmpajono.nt of financial Assets 

Financial assets, other than those at fair value 
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators 
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. 
The Company recognises a loss allowance for 
expected credit losses on fi11ancial assets. In case 
of trade receivables, the Company follows the 
simpl~ied approach permitted by Ind AS 109 
"Financial Instruments" for recognition of 
impairment loss allowance. The application of 
simplified approach does not require the Company 
to track changes in credit risk. The Company 
calculates the expected credit losses on trade 
receivables using a provision matrix on the basis 
of its historical credit loss experience. 

Financial liabilities 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

f inancial liabilities include borrowings, lease 
liability, trade payables and other financial 
liabilities. All financial liabilities are recognised 
initially at fair value and in the case of borrowings 
and trade payables, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs. 

Classification and Subsequent Measurement 

The financial liabilities are classified as either 
'financial liabilities at fair value through profit 01' 
loss· or 'financial liabilities at amo1t ised cost'. 
Financial liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or 
Loss f inancial liabilities are classified at fair value 
through profit or loss when the financial liability is 
held for trading or are designated upon initial 
recognition as fair value through profit or loss. It 

includes derivative financial instruments entered 
into by the Company that are not designated as 
hedging instruments in hedge relationships. All 
changes in the lair value of such liability are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial liabilities at Amortised Cost 

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and 
trade payables etc.) are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using effective interest method. 

Derecogni!ion 

A financial liability is derecognised when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition is included in the statement of 
profit and loss when the liabilitv is derecognised. 

Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net am cunt presented in the balance sheet 
when, and only when, the Ccmpanycurrently has a 
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts 
and it intends either to settle them on a nee basis 
or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

Effective lnterestMethod !EIRl 

Financial assets and liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculated 
by taking into account any discount er premium 
on acquisition and fees er costs that are an integral 
part of the Elfl. 

Derivative Financial Instruments 

The Company uses derivative financial 
instruments, such as forward contracts to hedge 
its foreign currency. Such derivative financial 
instruments are initially recognised at fair value 
on the date on which a derivative contract is 
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at 
fair value. 

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the 
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities 
when the fair value is negative. 
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Any gains or losses arising from changes in the 
fair value of derivatives are taken to statement of 
profit and loss. 

Financial Liabiliti&S and Equity Instruments 

Classification as Debt or Equity Debt and equity 
instruments issued by the Company are classified 
as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangements and the definition of a financial 
liabilities and an equity instrument. 

Equity lnstTUments 

An Equity instrument is any contract that 
evidences a residual intere-st in the assets of an 
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments issued by Company are recognised 
at the proceeds received. li·ansaction costs related 
to issue of equity instruments is reduced from 
equity. Dividerv.l µaid on equity instruments is 
directly reduced from equity. 

I) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets 

The Company recognizes a provision where there 
is a present obligation as a result of past event 
that probably requires an outflow of resources and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation and accordingly all known 
liabilities wherever material are provided for. These 
estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made 
when there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation that may, but probably will not, require 
an outflow of resourceshowever the existence 
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more unoertain 
future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company. 

A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow 
of economic benefits is probable. Contingent 
assets are not recognised in financial statements 
since this may result in the recognition of income 

-~ that will never be realised. However, when 
, e.{t, o , the realisation of income is 

of~~ ,·~ ,,1. • .. • o virtual! certain, ,, 
,., ~ ). 

then the related asset is not a contingent asset 
and is recognised. 

m) Employee Benefits 

{i) Employee benefits like salaries, wages etc. 
payable wholly within twelve months cf 
rendering the seJVice are classified as short• 
term employee benefits. A liability is 
recognised for the amount expected to be paid 
when there is a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of 
past seNice provided by the employee and 
the obligation can he estimated reliably. 

{iiJ Contribution towaros provident fund and 
employee state insurance is made to the 
regulatory authorities, where the Company 
has no further obligations. Such benefits are 
classified as defined contribution plans as the 
Company does not carry any further 
obligations, apart from the contlibutions made 
on a mcnthly basis. Such contributions are 
charged to the statement of profit and loss 
for the period of service rendered by the 
employees. 

{iii) Short-term employee benefits are recognized 
as an expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss 
of the year in which the related selVice is 
rendered. 

Gratuity liability is defined oenefit obligation 
and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial 
valuation on projected method made at the 
end of the financial year. The Company has 
created a trust under the Group Gratuity 
Scheme with the Life Insurance Corporation cf 
India (UC) and amount paidipayable in respect 
of the present value of liability for past se1vices 
is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss 
every year. The difference, if any, between the 
actuarial valuation of the gratuity of 
employees at the year end and the balance 
cf funds with UC is provided for as liability in 
the books. 

n) Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs that are anributable to the 
acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are 
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capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. All 
other borrowing costs are charged to revenue in 
the period in which they are incurred. 

o) Foreign Exchange Transactions 

(i) Assets and liabilities relating to foreign 
currency transactions remaining unsettled at 
the year-end are converted into Indian rupees 
at closing rates and any gain or loss arisen is 
adjusted in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(ii) Gains/losses arising out of fluctuations in 
foreign exchange rates between the 
transaction date and settlement date are 
recognized in the Statement of Profi1 and Loss 
under the head "Exchange Rate Fluctuation". 

(iii) The difference between the forward rate and 
the exchange rate on date of inception of a 
fo1ward contract in respect of forward 
con1racts with underlying assets or liabilities 
is recognized as income or expense and is 
amortized over the lif-e of the contract. 

(iv) Forward exchange contracts entered to hedge 
the foreign currency risk are marked to market 
as at the year end and the resultant exchange 
gain or less is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit & Loss. 

(v) Non-monetary foreign currency items are 
carried at cost and accordingly the investment 
in foreign subsidiary is expressed in Indian 
Currency at the exchange rate prevailing at 
the date of the transaction. 

p) Asses-sment of risks 

The Company follows the process of assessing the 
financial risks relating to its business activities. Its 
principal financial liabilities comprising borrowings, 
trade and other payables etc. are part of its working 
capital for the purpose cf its business operations 
and for the purpose offunding its principal financial 
assets including cash and cash equivalents, trade 
receivables and security deposits directly derived 
from its operations. The Ccmpany is er.posed 
to credit risk. liquidity risk and market risk 
summarised as under: 

Credit Risk: 

Credit risk may arise on not meeting of its financial 

obligations by other party, primarily relating to trade 
receivables and may lead to financial loss to the 
Company. Company during the course of its 
business operations to reduce the risk with trade 
receivables, follows the mechanism of setting 
credit limits to respective parties and reviews their 
outstanding on time to time basis to access the 
likely impairment. 

Liquidity Risk: 

Liquidity risk may result in not meeting Company's 
financial obligations and to mitigate the same and 
meet its financial obligations in timely manner the 
Company reviews i1s Trdde Payables and other long 
term and short-term financial liabilities on time to 
time basis and manages the resources availability 
of cash and cash equivalents and credit lines and 
borrowing facilities from banks. 

Mar1<et Risk 

Mar1<et risk may be the risk of fair value of 
Company's assets and liabilities on account of 
change in foreign exchange rates and applicable 
rate of interest on borro1"1ings having variable 
interest terms. Exposure of the Company to foreign 
exchange risk majorly relates to its operating 
activities to the extent denominated in foreign 
currency and the Company goes for forward 
exchange contracts to mitigate the risk. Similarly to 
get de-risked to maximum extent from changes in 
variable rate of interest, depending upon its funds 
utilization plan on time to time basis the Company 
further gets the part of related facilities converted 
into fixed rate for specific period. 

!:rice Bisk: 

Key raw materials used in the manufacturing cf 
footwear are EVA, PU material etc. are subject to 
price volatility depending upon the fluctuation in 
the price of crude oil and it's derivatives. Tc 
mitigate the pricerisk the Company takes several 
measures including ccntinucus monitorina the 
price trend of key materials, value engineering cf 
goods and passing of the cost en the product 
wherever required in timely manner. 

q) Fair Value Measurement 

The fair value of the assets and liabilities 
are assessed at balance 
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sheet date considering normal circumstances 
as perthe followirtg: 

a) Cash and cash equivalents, ban~ balances 
other than cash and cash equivalents, trade 
receivables. trade payables, borrowings and 
other financial assets and liabilities at their 
carrying amount due to their short-tern, 
nature. 

b) Financial assets and liabilities with fixed and 
variable interest rates are evaluated by the 
Company based on parameters such as 
interest rates and individual credit worthiness 
of the ccunterparty. 

c) Assessment by the Management about the 
carrying value of financial assets including 
leasehold rights and obligations due to be 
amortised. 

d) Forward exchange contracts using exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. 

r) Provision for Taxation 

Provision for taxation is made taking into 
consideration the provisions of Income Tax Act, 
1961. Adjustment, if any, arising out of the 
assessment is made in the year the assessment is 
completed. Current tax assets and liabilities are 
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to 
set-off the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle the asset and the liability on a 
net basis 

Income tax expense represents the sum of current 
and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss except to the ex1ent 
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity 
or other comprehensive income, in such case the 
tax expense is also recognised directly in equity or 
in other comprehensive income. 

Any subsequent change in income tax on 
items initially recognised in equity or other 
comprehensive income is also recognised in equity 
or other comprehensive income. such change 
could be for change in tax rate. 

s) Provision for Deferred Taxation 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary timing differences 
betweenthe carrying 

amount of assets and liabilities in the balance 
sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in 
the computation of taxable profit and are 
accounted for using the balance sheet appmach. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 
temporary timing differences and deferred tax 
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary 
timing differences. cany forward tax losses and 
allowances to the extent it is probable that furure 
taxable profits will be available against which those 
deductible temporary differences, carry forward 
tax lesses and allowances can be utilised. 

Deferred tax asset and liabilities are measured at 
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 
when the asset is realised or liability is settled, 
based en tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting 
date. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset, if any, is 
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profits will be available against which the 
temporarI differences can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when 
there is legally enforceable right to set-off current 
tax assets and liabilities and when 1he deferred tax 
balances relate to the same taxation authority and 
no deferred tax asset is recognized as on the date 
of reporting. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

2(a) Property, plant and equipment 

Partitt1lars freehold Buildings Plant & Furniture & Vehicles Office Moulds Total 
Land Equipments Fixture Eouipments 

Gross carrying amount 
As at 31st March 2022 1,226.76 2,637.04 8,854.11 3,901.59 2,306,54 2,0'12.45 4,007.18 24,945.68 
Additions . 142.10 85899 478.31 354.85 204.16 299.40 2,337.81 
Disposals/A<fJUstments 357.48 452.96 59.14 93.10 . 962.68 
As at 3·1 st March 2023 1,226.76 2,779.14 9,355.62 3,926.94 2.,602.25 2,123.52 4,306.58 26,320.81 
Additions . 71.53 522.63 397.88 15066 157.23 206.19 1,506.12 
Disposals/Adjustments . 6.53 2,840.94 466.99 483.38 469.46 691 .35 4,958.65 
As at 31st March 2024 1,226.76 2,844.14 7,037.31 3,857.83 2,269.53 1,811.29 3,821.42 22,868.28 
Accumulated Oepre<:1ation 
As at 31st March 2022 . 1,317.92 7,278.12 2,640.46 1,566.53 1,693.64 2,857.47 17,354.15 
Depreciation Charge for the year . 88.88 280.62 284.11 190.57 127.85 239.71 1,211.74 
DisposalsiAdjustments . . 350.94 403.26 57.95 91.43 . 903.57 
As at 31st March 2023 . 1,406.80 7,207.80 2,521.32 1,699.15 1.730.07 3,097.18 17,662.32 
Depreciation Charge tor the year 93.33 243.21 267.98 176.51 114.02 388.19 1,283.24 
Disposals/Adjustments . . 2,815.59 365.85 474.55 464.38 691 .33 4,811.70 
As at 31st March 2024 . 1,500.13 4,635.42 2.423.45 1,401.11 1,379.71 2,794.04 14,133.86 
Net carrying amount 
As at 31st March 2023 1,226.76 1,372.34 2,147.82 1,405.62 903.10 393.45 1,209.40 8,658.49 
As at 31st March 2024 1,226.76 1,344.01 2,401.89 1,434.38 868.42 431.58 1,027.38 8,734.42 

2(b) Intangible Assets 
Particulars Patents Softwares Total 

Gross Carrying Amount 
As at 31st March 2022 0.16 364.35 364.51 
Additions . 11.35 11 .35 
Disposals/Adjustments - 26.71 26.71 
As at 31st March 2023 0.16 348.99 349.15 
Additions . 14.26 1426 
Disposals/Adjustments - 0.14 0.14 
As at 31st March 2024 0.16 363.11 363.27 
Accumulated Depreciation 
As at 31st March 2022 0.04 312.75 312.79 
Amortisation Charge for the year . 22.63 22.63 
Disposals/Adjustments . 26.71 26.71 
As at 31st March 2023 0.04 308.67 308.71 
Amortisation Charge for the year 0.01 16.07 16.08 
Disposals/Adjustments . 0.14 0.14 
As at 31st March 2024 0.05 324.60 324.65 
N81 carrying amount 
As at 31st March 2023 0.12 40.32 40.44 
As at 31st March 2024 0.11 38.51 38.62 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

2{c) Capital work in progress {Amount in ( uthl 

Particulars Building Under Assets under Total 
C·onstmction Installation 

Gross carrying amount 

As at 31st March 2022 0.59 1.39 1.98 

l\dditions 18.00 . 18.00 

Capitalised . . . 
As at 31st March 2023 18.59 1.39 19.98 

Addiiions 1.37 . 1.37 

Capitalised 18.59 1.39 19.98 

As at 31st March 2024 1.37 . 1.37 

Ageing of CWIP {Amount in t L,l;hl 

As at 31st March 2024 Amount in CWIP for a period of Total 

Less lhan 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 
3 years 

Building under construction 137 . . 1.37 

l\ssets under Installation . . . . . 

Total 1.37 . . . 1.37 

As at 31st March 2023 Amount in CWIP for a period of Total 

Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 
3 years 3 years 

Building under construction 18.00 0.59 . . 18.59 

Assets under Installation . . . 1.39 1.39 

Total 18.00 0.59 . 1.39 19.98 

2{d) Right -of-use Assets {Amount in f Ldchl 

Right- of-use Assets IROU Assets) As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

Buildings 

Opening Balance 7,311.42 5,990.21 

Additions for the new leases 2,541.09 3,633.21 

Depreciation Expenses for the year (2.076.26) 11,93424) 

Deletions for terminated leases (94.51) (43776) 

Closing Balance 7,681.74 7,311.42 

Refer no\e no. 43 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

As at 3 t st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 

3 Non-current lnvesbnents (Non-Trade) 

Investment• in Government Securities {Valued at Cost) 
(6 Years Nati011aJ Saving Certifi<:ates VIII Issue ) 0.45 0.45 

Total Non--<:urrent Investments 0.45 0.45 
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments . . 
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 0.45 0.45 
Aggregate Market Va'ue of Quoted Investments . . 

4 Other Financial Assets.Non Current 
tUnsecwed and considered good unless srarad othenvise) 

Security Deposits 
to Relat&d Pai1ies 60.00 60.00 
to Others 662.51 690.41 

Bank Deposits having maturity for more than 12 months 32.69 6.01 
755.20 756.42 

Less: Provision for doubtful secu1ity deposits to otllers 29.78 29.78 
Total Other Financial Assets- Non Current 725.42 726.64 

5 Od1or Non-current Assets 
[Unsecured and cc;nsidered good unless srarad othe,wise) 

Capital Advance 24.48 16.39 
Total Otllor Non-eurroot Assets 24.48 16.39 

6 Inventories (As valued and certified by the Management) 
Raw Materials 3,856.87 4,191.44 
Goods in Process 1,887.19 2,207.38 
fini$hed Goods 

Manufactured 8,270.80 10,803.29 
Traded 1,093.62 1A-05.16 

Packing Materials 315.12 342.31 
Stores & Spares 392.10 450.12 
Oil & Lubli<:ants 25.43 27.82 

Total Inventories 15,841.13 19,427.52 

7 Trade Recei,ables 
Trade Receivables, Unsecured 

Trade recei112.bles-Conside1ed Good 9,253.60 8,346.02 
Trade receivables-from Related Parties-Considered Good 525.67 400.53 
Creer~ Impaired 413.76 343.49 

10,193.03 9,090.04 
less: Allowance for Doubtful Trade Receivables (Expected 
Credil Loss Allowance I 413.76 343.49 

Total Trade Receivables 9,779.27 8,746.55 - . 
8 Cash and Cash Equi,alents 

Balances with banks: 
In Current Accounts 39.69 21.70 
Cheques on hand 95.56 42.72 

Cash in hand including imprest 127.61 97 96 
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 262.86 162.38 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

As at 3 t st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 

9 Bank Balances other than Cash and C·ash Equivalents 
Earmarl:ed balances with Banks-Unpaid Dividend .-.Ccounts 5.28 5.28 
Dsposits with Banks with original maturity of mor& than 3 months and having 
remaining maturity up to 12 months• 383.32 194.29 

Total Bank Balances oci1er than Cash and Cash Equivalents 388.60 199.57 
• includes depos~ held as lien with banks for bank guarantee off 383.32 lakh 
(Previous year, 194.29 l akh) 

10 Other financial Assets-Current 
(Unsecured and conside,~d good unless stated othe,wise) 

Security Deposit for less than 12 Months 
to Related Parties . . 
to Others 16.78 5.5D 

loans and advancss to employees 81.45 104.14 

Total Other Financial Mscts-Current 98.23 109.64 

11 Other Current Assets 
(Unsecured and considered good unless stated otherwise) 

Advances recoverable in cash or in \ind or for the value to be 1ecer,ed 
(Refer to note 41) 

Considered good 721.30 700.79 
Considered doubtful (Credit lmparred) 23.36 23.36 

Balances with Statutol)' or Government Authorities lineluding GST. VAT 1,807.51 691.83 
recoverable and taxes paid under protestl 
Prepaid Expenses 273.00 257.30 

2,825.17 1,673.28 
less: AllowaJ1ce for Doubtful Advances (Expected Credit loss Allowancel 23.36 2336 
(Refer to Note 39) 

Tote! Otl.1er Current Assets 2,801.81 ~ 49.9L_ . 
Equity 

12 Equity Share Capital 

Authorised Shar& Capital 

63500000 (Previous year 63500000 Equity Shares) of { 10 each 6,350.00 6,350.00 

. . 

Issued, Subscl'ibed & Fully Paid Up Capital . . 
17040000 (Previous year 17040000) Equity Shares of { 1 O each tully paid up. 1,704.00 1,704.00 

1,704.00 1,704.00 

12(a) Reconciliation of Number of Shares 

ftiuity Shares 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
17040000 (Previous year 17040000) equity Shares oH IO each fully paid up. 1,704.00 1,704.00 
Add: Shares issued during the year . . 

Balance at the end of the year 1,704.00 1,704.00 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

12 (bl Tenns/Rights attached to Equity Shares: The Company has ooo class ot equity shares having a par 11alue of, 10/-each. each shareholder 
is elfg!bk! for one vote pee share held in the Company. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors of the Compafl'/, ~ any, is subject 
to approvill of the members in the ensuing general meeting, except in Ille case of interim lfividend, if declared. In the event of liquidati-On of 
the Compnay, equity shareholders shaft be entitled to receive the remaining assets, after the distribution to preferred shareholders. it any, 
in proportionate of theiJ shareholding. 

12 (c) Detail of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company 

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 

% of shareholding No. of Shares % of shareholding No. of Shares 

Equity Shares 

Ge-0fin Investments Private Limited 4472517 26.25 4472517 26.25 
Total 4472517 26.25 4472517 26.25 

12 (d) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued and shares issued for consideration other than cash during the five years 
immediately preceding the reporting date preceding the reporting 

Equity Shares Nil Nil 

12 (e) Shareholdingof PromO'ters 

Sr. Namo of Promoter Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the o/o chan_gein 
No. tho year 01 .04.2023 year 31.03 .. 2024 the 

No. of Shares % of total % of Shares No. of Sharos % of total % of Shares shareholding 

Shares of the Pledged/ Shores of tho Plodgod/ during the 
Company encumbered Company encuinbered year 

to totil to total 
sba.res shares 

1 desh Kumar Gupta (Karta) 680000 3.99 . 680000 3.99 -
2 Adeesh Kumar Gupta (Kana) 660000 3.87 . 660000 3.87 . . 
3 Atpan Guuta Karta of 

Oinesh Kumai Gupta IHUF) 366012 2.15 . 366012 2.15 - -
4 Sh. Arpan G~pta 509250 2.99 . 509250 2.99 0.15 -
5 Sh. Anupam Barisal 492885 289 . 492885 289 - -
6 Sh. Ayush Bansal 300000 1.76 - 300000 1.76 - -
7 Sh. Pulkit Bansal 300000 1.76 . 300000 1.76 . . 

8 Smt Auchir Bansal 300000 1.76 . 300000 1.76 . -
9 Sh. Shammi Bansal 25964-0 1.52 . 259640 1.52 - . 

10 Sh. Akshat Gupta 241660 1.42 - 24'1660 1.42 - . 

11 Sh. Vivek Bansal 233640 1.37 - 233640 1.37 . . 

12 Sh. Raman Bansal 232640 1.37 - 232640 1.37 . . 

13 Sh. Sunil Bansal 232640 1.37 - 232640 1.37 - . 

14 Sh. Adish Kumar Gupta 189360 '1.11 - 189360 1.11 -
15 Sh. Manan Bansal 150000 0.88 . 150000 0.88 . . 

16 Sh. Vaibhav Bansal 150000 0.88 . 150000 0.88 . -
17 Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta 95000 0.56 . 95000 0.56 . . 
18 Sm!. Aehti Devi 8331lil 049 . 83360 0.49 . . 
19 Smt. Kamlawati 13600 0.08 . 13600 008 . . 
20 Sh. Adarsh lltJpta . . . 10 0.00 . 0.00 

21 Sh. Anmol Gupta 6132 0.04 . 6132 0.04 . . 
22 M/s ~ ofin lnveSlmoots 

Private Limited 447251 7 26.25 - 4472517 26.25 - . 

Total 9968336 58.50 . 9968346 58.50 0.15 0.00 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 
!Amount int l•hl 

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 

Other Equity 

13 Reserves Ir Surplus 

a) Capital Roservo 4.00 4.00 

b) Securities Plemium Accoullt 
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,127.21 1,127.21 
Add:Additions/(Utilisations) during the year . . 
Balance at the end of die year 1,127.21 1,127.21 

c) General Reserve* 
Ba!lln<:e at the beginnil>g o1 the year 12,270.09 12.27009 
Add:Tra.nsferfrom SU/plus in the Statement of Profit & Loss . . 
Balance at the end of the year 12,270.09 12,270.09 

d) Re1ained Eamlngs .. 
Ba!en<:e at the beginning of the year 4,711.63 3,795.03 
Add:Prol~ for the year 1,089.86 1,342.60 

5,801.49 5,137.63 

Less:Transfer to General Reserve . 

Interim Dividend on Equity Shares !Dividend per share NIL . 426.00 
(P1e>,10us year r 2 .50/-) 
Balance at the end of the year 5,801.49 4,711.63 
Total Reserves Ir Surplus 19,202.79 18,112.9·3 

•Toe general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profit from retained earnings for apportion purposes. As tlle general rese,ve 
is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of otller comprehensive income. items included 
in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss. Further. under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, general rese,ve 
was created through an annual transfer of net profit at a specified percentage in accordan<:e with applicable regulations. Consequent to 
the introduction of the Act 2013, tlle requirement to mandatory transfer a specified percentage of net profit lo general reserve has been 
withdrawn. Hence, no amount has been transferred to general reserve while declaring and paying the interim dividend during ihe year: 

••The portion of profits not distributed among the shareholders are te011ed as retained earnings. The Company may utilize the retained earnings 
for making investments for future growth and expansion plans, for the purpose of generating higher returns for the shareholders or for any other 
specific purpose. as approved by ihe Board of Directors oi the Company. 

\Amount in ~ Lakhl 
Long Term Borrowings As at 31st Marcll, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 

14 Secu:red measured at amortised cost Non Current Current Maturities Non Current Current Maturities 

Tenn Loans 
Rup~ Term loans from Banks 88.05 148.33 742.24 382.14 
less: Amount disclosed un<ler Borrowings 
(R~1 oote 19) . 148.33 . 382." 
Net Long Term Borrowings 88.05 . 742.24 . 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 
!Amount in t l•hl 

Particulars of loan Detail of Securily Outstanding Repayment Terms 
Balance as at 
31.03.2024 

From Ba·nks 

Guaranteed Emergency Credlt line 2.0 from Slate Extension of charge 82.95 3 Mmrthly installments 
Bank of India !2nd chaige) over the off 24.79 !Jikhseach for 

existing Primary Apr 2024 to Jun& 2024 and 
securities created in r 8.58 l.akhs for July 2024. 
favour of the Bank on 

paf\.passu basis. 

Vehicle Loans from HDFC Bank Hl'!)othecation of 'khicles 153.43 43% in Monthly Installment 
dtJJing Apr-24 to Mar-25 

24% in Monthly Installment 
dUJing Apr-25 to Mar-26 

23% in Monthly Installment 
dtJJing Apr-26 to Mar-27 

and 10% in Monthly lnstatlmenr 
during Apr-27 10 Mar-27 

Total 236.38 

!Amount in ( -) 

Al; at31stMarch, 2024 As al 31 st Marcb, 2023 

15 lease Liabilities 
Lease Rental Obligations (refer to Note 431 7,681.73 7,311.43 
Total lease liabilities 7,681.73 7,311.43 

16 Other Finaodal Liabilities 
Security Deposits 1,829.90 1,889.69 
Total Other Financial liabilities 1,829.90 1,889.69 

17 Provisions-Non Current 
Provision lo, Gra.tulty 103.38 115.64 
Total Provisions-Non Current 103.38 115.64 

18 Delfered Tax Liability (Nerj 
Balance at the beginning of the year . 
Add:for the year . . 
Balance at the end of the year . . 

19 Borrowings-Current 

Secured 
loans repayable on demand* 

Fmm Banks 6,812.63 7,579.92 
Current Maturitie$ of Long Term Debts (refer Note 141 

from Banks 148.33 382.14 

Total Borrowings-Current 6,960.96 7,962.06 
·secured against hypothecation of Company's entire stock of raw materials, stock in process, finished goods, consumables, stores and spares, 
finished goods in stores, in transit and wi1h shippers at port awaiting shipment tor exports, receivables, cheques, bank drafts and all other corrent 
assets and 2nd patipassu charge on Plant & Machinery. 
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20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
(a) 

(b) 

25 

Trade Payables 
Trade Payables for goods & seNices 
(Includes sundry creditors) 
a) Total outstanomg due of Micro and Smal enterprises 
b) Total outstanding due other than Micro and Small Enterprises 

Total Trade Payables 
For ageing of trade pa1'<lble and details of MSME disclosure. refer to note 44 & 45 

other Current Liabillties 
other Payables 

Advances from Customers 

Expenses Payable 
Other Liabilities 

Total Other Current liabilities 

Provisions•CUrrent 

Provision for Gratuity 
Provision for third party liability on a/c of tire 

Total Provisions-Current 

Current Tax Liabilities 
Provision for taxation (Net of Advance Tax, Tax Deducted at Source and 

Tax Collected at Source) 
Total Current Tax Liabilitles 

Revenue from Operations 
Sale of Products 

Footwear & 01her Products. Accessories etc 
Total 

other Operating Income 
Freight 
Miscellaneous Income 
Gain on Exchange Rate Ructuatio11S 
Ba.d Debts Recovered 

Total 
Total Revenue from Operations 

Other Income 
Bank and Other Interest (Tax deducted at Source ~ 1.12 lakhs 
[Previous Year~ 1.16 l.akhs[) 

Total Other lncomo 

!Amount in t Lalhl 

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 

2,284.23 
4,398.86 
6,683.09 

384.18 
1,008.79 

440.79 
1,833.76 

115.63 
65.0-0 

180.63 

110.12 

110.12 

For tl1a year ended 
31st March, 2024 

63,577.14 
63,577.14 

9.35 
80.45 
t8.48 
0.50 

108.78 
63,685.92 

38.91 

38.91 

1,347.54 
6,208.06 
7,555.60 

357.33 
878.69 
341.88 

1,577.90 

97.91 

97.91 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 

65,149.05 
65,149.05 

48.42 
100.61 
86.26 
48.37 

283.66 
65,432.71 

17.41 

17.41 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 
!Amount int Lalhl 

For the year ended Forthe year ended 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

26 C-Ost of Materials consumed and Finished Goods Purchased 
a) Raw Materials (Refer to Note 46 & 47) 

Stock at the beginning of the year 4,191.44 4,339.17 
Add: Purchases 19,681.91 22,996.82 

23,873.35 27,335.99 
less: Stock at the end ol the year 3,856.87 4,191.44 
Raw Materials Consumed 20,016.48 23,144.55 

b) Packing Materials (Refer to Note 47) 

Stock at the beginning of the year 342.30 317.96 
Add: Purchases 2,306.1 2 2,541.23 

2,648.42 2,859.19 

less: Stock at the end of the year 315.11 342.31 
Packing Materials Consumed 2,333.31 2,516.88 

c) Finished Goods Purchased {Refer to Note 47) 6,670.52 9,532.64 
Total Cost of Materials consumed and Finished Goods 29,020.31 35,194.07 
Purchased (a+b+c) 

27 Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, Goods in Process and 
Stock~n-Trade 

a) Inventories at the end of the year 
Finished Goods/Stock-in-Trade 9,364.42 12,208.45 
Goods in Process 1,887.1 9 2,207.38 
Total 11,251.61 14,415.83 

b) Inventories at the be9inning of the year 
Finished Goods/Stock~n-Trade 12,208.45 9,873.90 
Goods in Process 2,207.38 1,820.84 
Total 14,415.83 11,694.74 

(lncrease)/Decrease in Inventories (b - a) 3,164.22 (2,721.09) 

Breakup of (lncreaso)/Decrease in Inventories 
on a/c of business operations 1,417.61 {2,721.09/ 
on a/c of fire (Refer to Note No. 57) 1,746.61 

Total (lncrease)/Decrease in lnven1ori&S 3,164.22 !2.721 .091 

28 Employee Benefi1s Expense 
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 10,119.93 9,559.16 
Directors' Remuneration 187.62 223.62 
Contnllution to Provident and Other flmds (Refer to Note 50) 505.72 409.51 
Remeasurement Gains/(losses) on Defined Benefit Plan {34.60) 68.78 
Staff We~are Expenses 129.50 135.04 

Total Employee Benefrts Expense 10,908.16 10,396.11 

29 f inance Cost 
Interest Expense 
l1l Banks 645.46 563.95 
to others 612.57 481 .67 
Bank Charges 100.68 162.98 

Total Finance Cost 1,358.71 
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For the year ended Forthe year ended 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

30 Depreciation and Amotfaaton Exponsos 
Depreciation on Prope1ty, Plant & Equipments- Refer to note 2la) 1,283.24 1,211.74 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets-Refer to note 2 [b) 16.08 22.63 
Depreciation on Right-of- use Assets - Refer to note 2(d) 2,076.26 1,934.24 
Total Depreciotlon and Amortisation Expenses 3,375.58 3.168.62 

31 Other Expenses 
a) Manufacturing Expenses 

freight Inwards 233.77 254.68 
Upper Production Charges 1,243.58 1,351.02 
Oil & Lubricants !09.39 132.03 
i:lectricity Charges 839.00 817.27 
Repairs to Machinery 571 .80 526.31 
Land Lease Rent 4 27 3.88 
franchise Fee 125.00 125.00 
Total 3,126.81 3,210.19 

bl Administration, Selling and Other Expenses 
Printitlg & Stationery 47.25 54.08 
Claims 663.11 699.56 
Tour. Travelling and Conveyance 830.67 892.00 
Insurance Charges 162.14 182.29 
Fees and Taxes 471.98 138.16 
Postage, Telegram. Telephone and Telex 114.72 115.18 
Subscriptions 18.51 17.28 
Advertisements 1,214.36 2.588.59 
Rent (refer to Note 431 (1 86.19) (120.46) 
Donations 40.82 32.69 
Export CIF Expenses 202.60 208.68 
freight Outwdrd 1.515.79 1,313.20 
Samples 5.10 0.79 
Aud~orS' Remuneration: 
Statutory Audit Fee 10.25 10.25 
GST & Ta, .6.udit Fee 6.00 6.00 
Ce1tification Fee 1.00 1.00 
Cost .t..udit Fee . . 
M\scellaneous Expenses 386.32 361.13 
Royalty 2,324.08 2,039.00 
Entertainment E.'fleoses 55.95 53.92 
Commission 2,502.31 2,561 .41 
Sales Promotion Expenses 844.82 799.83 
Newspapers & Periodicals 0.89 1.17 
Debts written off (Refer to Nots 40) 5.83 85.55 
Allowance for Doubfut Trade Receivables & Advances (refer to Note 39) 70.27 (39AO) 
CoflSIJltancy & Professional Charges 733.09 638.20 
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses-Buading 65.04 262.11 
Repairs & Mailll&nance Expenses-Others 391.79 275.99 
Total 12,498.50 13,178.20 

Total Other Expenses (a + b) 15,625.31 16,388.39 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

For the year ended Forthe year ended 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

32 Exceptional Items: 
a) Profll/Loss on sale/scrapping of Fl),ed Assets: 

Prof~ on sale of Fixed Assets 143.41) 122.01) 
Loss on sale/scrapping of Fixed Assets 63.05 51.96 
Total ta' 19.64 29.95 

b) Loss oo a/c of lire (net of claim receivable}• (Refer to Nore 57) 
Value of Stock deslloyed in Fim 1,764.35 . 
Insurance Claim receivab!e against Stocks (1.425.00) . 

Loss on scrapping of Fixed Assets destroyed in Fire 65.79 . 
LtlSS of Third Party ca•pital Go()ds destroyed in Fire 65.00 . 

Total 1>' 470.14 . 
Total Exceptional !toms (a + b) 489.78 29.95 

33 Income Tax Expenses 
Current Tax 431.16 471 .93 
Deferred Tax . . 
Ta.x for earli81' yeais 07.54) 22.43 
Total Income Tax Expenses 413.62 494.36 

Reconciliation of Tax Expenses 
Profit before Tax 1,494,n 1,854.25 

Domestic Tax Rate 25.168% 25.168% 
Tax using the Compafl\"s domestic tax rate 376.20 41IB.68 
lnc-rease/reductlon in ta.xe.s on account o·f 
Oeductionsiexemptions in taxable income/oth&1 non deductible expensoo (net) 54.96 5.25 
Tax for earner years (17.54) 22.43 
Income tax expenses charged to statement of profit and loss 413.62 494.36 
effective tax ,ate 27.67% 26.66% 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

34 D 'I fM . IR eta1 so anaaena emuneratton: !Amount In t lakhl 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31 .03.2023 

Payment and provision for remuneration tc: 
, Executive Director(s) 247.62 223.62 

Computation of Net Profit in accord·ance with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, for calculation 
f d/ o commission pai /payable to directors: !Amount in t Lel<hl 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 1,494.77 1,854.26 

Add: 

Directors' Remuneration 247.62 223.62 

(Profit)/loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net} [Refer to Note 32 (a)] 19.64 29.95 

Directors' Sitting Fees 7.75 7.50 

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Investments . . 

Net Profit as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 1,769.78 2,115.33 

Commission paid/payable to Directors . . 
During the year under consideration, no remuneration has been paid to Non-Executive Directors except sitting fees 
of t 7. 75 Lakh (Previous year t 7.50 Lakh) to Independent Directors. 

35. In the opinion of the Board and to the best of its 
knowledge, the value of realization of current assets, 
loans and advances in the ordinary course of business 
would not be less than the amount at which they have 
been stated in the Balance Sheet. 

36. During the course of its business the Company usually 
extends credit terms for more than six months to some 
cf its customers more particularly to overseas and 
institutional customers and during the year ended 31st 
March, 2024 the outstanding for more than six months 
from customers has increased to ~ 1,884.61 Lakhs as 
against t 1,005.28 lakhs as on 31st March, 2023. 

37. Against the arbitraiy deductions/claims done by the 
appropriate authority, on account of shortages, late 
deliveries etc., while releasing the payments in the 
financial y~r 2022-23 aggregating to'( 2,246.32 Lakhs 
as fllll & final payment against one of the government 
tender supplies made by the Company in the financial 

year 2019-20 for ( 2,682.88 Lakhs Company's petition 
before the Hon'ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh for 
appointment of an Arbitrator has been allowed by the 
Hon'ble High Court and the Company has alsc filed its 
claim statement against the said arbitrary deduction 
for ( 436.56 Lakhs and interest accrued thereon for 
the period of delay before the Learned Arbitrator by 
explaining all the arbitraiy deductions made and 
the matter is presently sub-judice before the Learned 
Arbitrator. 

As informed earlier also, the arbitraiy deduction for 
~ 436.56 lakh had been written off after adjusting the 
outstanding amount of 'i' 268.82 Lakh towards related 
vendors in the year of receipt of payment i.e. in the 
financial year 2022-23 and there is no impact of the 
same on the profit and loss statement for the year 
under consideration. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

38. Ageing schedule of Trade Receivables: Disclosure en ageing schedule cl trade receivables in pursuant 
to Division II-Ind AS Schedule Ill to the Companies Act. 2013 is as under: 

!Amount in , Leich) 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from date of Invoice/due date Total 

< 6 Months > 6 Months > 1 Year >2 Years < 3 Years 
< 1 Year < 2 Years < 3 Years 

As at March 31 , 2024 

(I) Undisputed Trade 
recer,ables-considered good 8,308.42 977.30 477.78 15.76 . 9,779.26 

(ii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables-which have 
significant increase in credit risk . . . . . -

(iii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables-credit impaired . . 5309 676 353.91 413.76 

(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables-considered good . . . . . . 

(v) Disputed Trade 
Receivables-which have 
significa.nt increase in credit risk . . . . . . 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables-
credit impaired . . . . . . 

Tota.I 8,308.42 977.30 530.87 22.52 353.91 10,193.02 

As at March 31 , 2023 

(I) Undisputed Trade 
receivables-considered good 8,084.76 431.71 20461 2526 020 8,746.54 

(ii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables-which have 
significant increase in credit risk . . . . . . 

(iii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables-credit impaired . . 22.74 1082 309.93 343.49 

(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables-considered good . . . . . . 

(v) Disputed Trade 
Receivables-which have 
significant increase in credit risl . . . . . . 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables-
credit impaired . . . . . . 

Total 8,084.76 431.71 227.35 36.08 310.13 9,090.03 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

39. Provision for doubtful debts: 

During the year out of overdue outstanding towards 
customers and advances to vendors, the Company has 
considered debts/advances for , 437.12 Lakh (Previous 
year ~ 366.85 Lakh) as doubtful debts/advanceS/ 
securities and also has withdrawn? Nil Lakh (Previous 
year~ 22.96 Lakh) out of the provisions made in the 

Statement of Profrt & Loss 

Particulars 

Provision for the year 

l ess: Provision made for doubtful debts in earlier years 

Net debited/(credited} to Statement of Profit & Loss 

Balance Sheet 
Particulars 

Opening Balance 

Add/(less}: Provision for the year 

Total 

less: Amount 'Nithdrawn during the year 

Closing balance 

Trade Receivables (Refer to Note No. 7/ 

Other Current Assets (Refer to Note No. 11) 

Security Deposi1s to Others (Refer to Note No. 4/ 

40. In accordance to its policy as regards to evaluation 
of its 1rade receivables, considering the non­
recoverability of some of the debts/advances, the 

earlier years for the same and has written off as bad 
debts< Nil l akh (Previous year< 33.92 lakh). Further 
the difference of the provision made and amount 
withdrawn during the year, detailed as under, has been 
charged to Statement of Profit & Loss for the. year and 
the balance has been carried in the balance sheet. 

2023-24 2022-23 

466.90 396.63 

396.63 436.03 

70.27 (39.40} 

!Amount in ~ t.111 

2023-24 I 2022-23 

396.63 43603 

70.27 (16.44} 

466.90 419.59 

- 22.96 

466.90 396.63 

413.76 343.49 

23.36 23.36 

29.78 29.78 

Company has written off the debts/advances amount 
to , 5.83 Lakh(Previous year t 51 .64 Lakh). 
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41. Ageing Schedule of Other Current Assets: 
!Amount in { lalhi 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from date of payment Total 

< 6 Months > 6 Months > 1 Year I >2 Years I < 3 Years 
< 1 Year < 2 Years < 3 Years 

As at March 31, 2024 

(I) Undisputed Advances-
considered good 604.64 17.86 23.96 62.90 11 .85 721 .21 

(ii) Undisputed Advances-which 
have significant increase 
in credit risk - - . . - . 

(iii)Undisputed Advances-credit 
impaired - - - - 23.36 23.36 

(iv)Disputed Advances-
considered good . . . . . . 

(v) Disputed Advances-
which have significant 
increase in credit risk . . . . . . 

(vi)Disputed Advances-credit 
impaired . . . . . . 

Total 604.64 17.86 23.96 62.90 35.21 744.57 

As at March 31, 2023 

(I) Undisputed Advances-
considered good 639.77 . 61.02 . . 700.79 

(ii) Undisputed Advances-which 
have significant increase 
in credit risk . . . . - . 

(iii)Undisputed Advances-credit 
impaired . . . . 23.36 23.36 

(iv)Disputed Advances-
considered good . . . . . . 

(v) Disputed Advances• 
which have significant 
increase in credit risk . . . . . . 

(vi)Disputed Advances-credit 
impaired . . . . . . 

Total 639.77 . 61.02 . 23.36 724.16 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

42. The Company has taken various retail stores and 
warehouses under operating lease arrangements. The 
lease agreements generally have an escalation clause 
and there are no subleases. These leases are generally 
not non-cancellable and are renewable by mutual 
consent on mutually agreed terms. There are no 
restrictions imposed by lease agreements. 

The leasehold rights are depreciated/amcrtii ed using 
the straight line me-lhod from the ccmmencement date 
over the sho1ter oflease term or useful life ofright to use. 

43. The Company implemented the lnd-AS-116 with effect 
from 1 stApril, 2019 and accordingly is considering all the 
persisting leasehold rights having maturity for more than 
12 months including entered during the year 2023-24 
at its present value as Intangible Rights in Schedule of 

Fixed Assets and is amortizing the leasehold rights on 
year on year basis. During the year 2023-24 the 
Company has capitalized/(adjusted)tbe present value of 
leasehold rights entered during the year (net of 
terminated) for f 2,446.58 LakJ'ls (Previcus year 
~ 3,255.46 Lakhs) and has amortized the leasehold 
rights (net of terminated) fort 2,076.26 Lakhs (Previous 
year f 1,934.24 Lakhs). 

Further while amortizing the leasehold rights for the year. 
decrease in leasehold obligations agreed with the some 
of the landlords has not been factored being temporary 
in nature and the said decrease in leasehold obligations 
aggregating to ~ 186.39 Lakl'is (Previous year ~ 120.46 
lakhs) has been passed on through Profit & Loss 
account for the year. 

44. Ageing schedule of Trade Payables: Disclosure on ageing schedule of trade payables in pursuant to Division 
II-Ind AS Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 is as under: 

(Aml>lrlt int Lakh] 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 2024 

Undisputed dues: 

Micro and Small Enterprises 

Others 

ii) Disputed Dues: 

Micro and Small Enterprises 

Others 

Total 

As at March 31, 2023 

Undisputed dues: 

Micro and Small Enterprises 

Others 

ii) Disputed Dues: 

Micro and Small Enterprises 

Others 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total 

Not Due Within 1 year Between Between More than 
(31/03/23) 1 and 2 year 2 and 3 years 3 years 

2,28413 

3,426.02 

5,710.25 

1,347.54 

4,591.74 

728.51 

124.61 

853.12 

1,410.24 

5,939.28 1.410.24 

(31/03/22) (31/03/21) 

2,284.23 

3.82 2.21 113.69 4,274.25 

124.61 

3.82 2.21 113.69 6,683.09 

1,347.54 

49,17 82.37 74.54 6,208.06 

49,17 82.37 74.54 7,555.60 



Libe11Y Shoes Lld. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

45 The Company has maintained separate record of 
its suppliers as micro & small on the basis of 
memorandum (as required to be filed by the 
suppliers with the notified authority under the 
Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise Development 

Particulars 

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 
unpaid to any supplier at the end ct accounting year 

Principal Amount 

lnterestDue 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, 
of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment 
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006. 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 
of accounting year. 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 
as abcve are actually paid tc the small enterprise for the purpose 
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of 
the MSMED Act, 2006 

Act, 2006) claiming their status as on 31st March. 
2024as Micro or Small Enterprise. Disclosure is hereby 
given in pursuant to requirement of section 22 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
(MSMED) Act, 2006: 

!Amount il t Lakh} 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

2,284.23 1,347.54 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

The above information has been determined to the extent such pa1ties have been identified on the basis of information 
availa~le with the Company. 

46. Detail of Raw Materials consumed Refer to Note 26 a (Amollll inf lakh) 

Description 2023-24 2022-23 
PVC Compound 655.24 1,027.12 
Laminated Leather Fabric 2,203.32 2,778.09 
PU Chemicals 2,1 19.17 2,562.86 
Leather 1,801.37 2,461 51 
PU Soles 2,409.27 2,623.53 
FNA Resin 601.42 729.39 
Shoe Uppers/Components 4,553.43 4,540.51 
Others 5,850.28 6,573.40 
Total 20,193.50 23,296.41 
Less: Amount of: 
Export Incentives 177.02 151.85 
Net Consumption 20,016.48 
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47. Consumption/Purchase of Imported and Indigenous Materials and percentage thereof: 

Description 2023-24 

Amount % 

Raw Materials Consumed [Note 26 (a) ) 

Imported 1,028.72 5.14 

Indigenous 18,987.76 94.86 

Total 20,016.48 100.00 

Packing Materials Consumed [Note 26 (b)I 

lmpcrted . . 

Indigenous 2,333.31 100.00 

Total 2,333.31 100.00 

Finished Goods Purchased [Note 26 {c)] 

Imported 93.29 1.40 

Indigenous 6,577.23 98.60 

Total 6,670.52 100.00 

Consumable Stores & Spares [Ncte 31 (al] 

Imported 82.09 14.36 

Indigenous 489.71 85.64 

Total 571 .80 100.00 

LIBERTY 

!Amount in { Lalli! 

2022-23 

Amount % 

887.95 3.84 

22,256.60 96.16 

23,144.55 100.00 

13.29 0.53 

2,503.59 99.47 

2,516.88 100.00 

1,196.29 12.55 

8,336.35 87.45 

9,532.64 100.00 

62.55 11.89 

463.76 88.1'1 

526.31 100.00 

48. Derivative Instruments and Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure, which are not intended for Trading 
or Speculation Purpose: 

Forward Contracts outstanding as at Balance Sheet date: 
!Amount in f lal<hl 

Particularsof Forward Currency March 2024 March 2023 Purpose 
Contracts 
Purchase USO . 5416687.17 To hedge the Trade Payables and 

Snort Term Bank Bcrrcwings 

Sales USO 75000 50000.00 To hedge the Trade Receivables 
GBP 40000 . 
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Particulars of Unhadged Foreign Currency Exposure as at the Balance Sheet date: 

Particulars of Unhedged Amount in Foreign Currency Amount in Indian Currency (< in Lakhsl 
Foreign Currency Exposure 

Currency March 2024 

Trade Payables USO 50200.00 

EURO 422.70 

Advance for Import Purchases USO 7500.00 

EURO -

Advance from Customers USO 40472.87 

EURO 1078.99 

GBP 2000.00 

Trade Receivables USO 1326036.32 

EURO 38961.91 

GBP 83539.32 

49. Expenditure & Earnings in Foreign Currency: 

Description 

al CIF Value of Imports 

Raw Materials & Others 

Capital Goods 

Stores & Spares 

b) Expenditure in Foreign Currency 

Travelling Expenses 

Expert Commission 

Customer Claims 

AdvertisemenVBusiness Promotion 

Legal & Professional Charges 

c} FOB Value of Exports of 

Finished Goods 

50. Detail of Employee Benefits-Gratuity 

The Company has a defined gratuity plan (Defined 
Ben~fit) . Every employee, on completion of continuous 
se1vice of five years or morn with the Company, is 
entitled to get the gratuity of15 days salary, on the 
basis of last drawn salary, for each completed year of 
se1vice. The scheme is funded with life Insurance 

March 2023 March 2024 March 2023 

445634.54 41.84 365.92 

19521.92 0.38 17 43 

18363.45 6.25 15.08 

- - -

54033.17 33.73 44.37 

19217.02 0.97 17.15 

13255.50 2.10 13.46 

1216259 08 1105.25 998.70 

51641.43 35.10 52.45 

29873.81 87.91 26.67 

IAmoum inf Lakhl 

2023-24 2022-23 

1,272.20 2,214.18 

281.92 594.62 

52.21 43.21 

0.28 3.18 

186.95 197.46 

- 0.44 

29.39 15.92 

12.32 -

3,619.25 3,802.30 

Cor~oration of India ILIC) in the form of qualifying 
insurance policy. The following table summarizes the 
component of net benefit expense recognized in the 
Statement of Profit & loss and the funded 
status and amount recognized in the Balance 
Sheet for the respective plans: /i :----. 

' £~ -· 
0 
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Statement of Profit & loss: 
a) Net Employee Benefit Expense (recognized in Employee Cost): !Amount i, t lakhl 

Sr. No. Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
1. Current Service Cost 61.78 103.04 

2. Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation 53.36 60.20 

3. Expected return on Plan Assets (50.04) 146.32) 

4. Actuarial Loss/ lGain) 34.60 (68.79) 
< J , Net Benefit Expenses 99.70 48.1 4 

Balance Sheet 
b) Details of Provision for Gratuity 

Sr. No. Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 

31 .03.2024 31.03.2023 

1. Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 903.43 870.74 

2. Fair value of Plan Assets 726.99 693.86 

3. Surplus/(Deficitl (176.44) (176.88) 

4. Net AsseV(liability) (176.44) (176.88) 

c) Changes in Present Value of tile Defined Benefit Obligation are as follows: 

Sr. No. Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
1. Defined 3enefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 870.74 849.56 

2. Current Service Cost 61.78 103.04 

3. Interest Cost 53.36 60.20 

4. Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation• 34.60 {68.78) 
< J , Benefits paid (117.05) (73.28) 

6. Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of year 903.43 870.74 

•recognized in other comprehensive income!(expense/ 

d) Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets are as follows: 

Sr. No. Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
1. Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets 693.86 627.88 

2. Expected Return 50.04 46.32 

3. C-0nt1ibution by employer 100.14 92.94 

4. Benefits paid (117 05) (73.28) 

5. Actuarial (Gain)/Loss - . 

6. Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 726.99 693.86 
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e) The principle assumptions used in determining GratuityObUgations are as follows: 

Sr. No. Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 

31 .03.2024 31.03.2023 

1. Discount Rate 7.25% 7.25% 

2. Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.00% 7.00% 

3. Salary escalation rate 800% 8.00% 

4, Attrition Rate 1 % to 3% depending 1 % to 3% depending 
upon age upon age 

f) Amount for current and previous periods are as follows: 
!Amount ii { Lal<hl 

Sr. No. Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

1. Defined Benefit Obligation (90343) (870.74) 

2. Plan Assets 726.99 693.86 

3. Surplu~(Deficit) (176 44) (176.88) 

4. Experience adjustments on Plan Liabilities (17644) (176.88) 

5. Experience adjustments on Plan Assets . -

51. Basic and Diluted Earnings per share: The basic and diluted earnings per share of the Company is as under: 

(~ in lakh except EPS and nominal value of Share) 

Description 2023-24 2022-23 

Basic & Diluted 

Profit after Taxation (A) 1,089.86 1,342.60 

Weighted average number of Equity Shares (B) 1, 70,40,000 1,70,40,000 

Nominal Value per Equity Share 10.00 10.00 

Basic & Diluted Earnings per share (A/8) 6.40 7.88 

52. In light of Section 135 of the Companies Act. 2013, the Company has incurred expenses on Corporate Social ResponsibilitY 
(CSR) aggregating tot 32.25 Lakh (Previous yeart 26.38 Lakh) for CSR activities: 

Particulars 

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company 
during the year 

b) Amount spent during the year on following in cash: 

(I) Construction/acquisition of any asset 

(ii) On purpose other than \I) above 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

21.06 

Nil 

32.25 

!Amount ii t Laklll 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

18 10 

Nil 

2638 
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53. Contemplating the long-term benefits for unlocking 
the shareholders' value thrcugh acquisiticn of the 
tangible and intangible assets including business rights 
of two partnership firms. in which few Directors of the 
Company are interested as partners, namely l iberty 
Enterprises (LE) & Liberty Group Marketing Division 
(lGMD), the Company had entered into a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOUi on March 31, 
2015. with these two Partnership Firms for acquisition 
of their respective business of footwear. Since then, 
due to certain tachnical reasons. this MOU and the 
subsequent MOU for the related matter have not been 
materialized to the envisaged extent. The Company, 
keeping in view the protection of its shareholders 
interest and also to ensure long term continuance 
of the arrangements with these partnership firms till 
materialization of the acquisition of their respective 
business of footwear has extended the validity of 
earlier executed. agreements and is assessing the 
business rights of the two firms with its availability till 
March 2028. 

During the year in terms of above referred 
arrangements. the Company has paid/provided for 
franchise fee of~ 115 l akh (Previous year~ 115 Lakh) 
to LE and ::' 746.03 l akh (Previous year ~ 786 Lakh) 
to LGMD and in terms of the renewed agreement 
dated April 3, 2013 of the Company with liberty 
Fcctwear Co. (LFC), ancther Partnership Firm of the 
group and owner of trademarks "LIBERlY", for granting 
exclusive rights of usage of the trademark "LIBERTY" 
for a period of fifteen years from April 1. 2013 onwards, 
the Ccmpany has paid/provided for trademark 
license fee of t 1,377.43 Lakh \Previous year ~ 1,263 
Lakh) to LFC. 

As informed earlier also that during the year 2022-23, 
few of the partners of LE. LGMD and LFC had served 
notices to the Company for termination of the ongoing 
franchise/trade mark license arrangements w.e.f. 
Oli04i2023 onwards which had been suitably replied 
by the Company duly reemr,hasizing its right of usage 
of tangible and intangible assets of these firms till 
March 2028 by virtue of the abcve referred agreements 
besides invoking the arbitration clause of the 
respective agreements with lFC & lGMD and has filed 

petition under Section 9 of The Arbitration 
e.{I and Conciliation Act. 1996 before the 

'. "'.~,. 0 ' appropriate cou1t at Kamal against 
6?'~~ 7~ ,,!. 'l:, ' • (I 

these partnership firms and keeping in view the 
submission. the Hon'ble Cou,t vide its order dated 
16/03/2023 and 20/07/2023 respectively has directed 
both the parties to maintain status-quotill further 
orders. The Company has also filed applications under 
Section 11 of The A.rbitration and Conciliation 
Aci, 1996 before the Hon'ble High Court of Punjab & 
Haryana for appointment of the arbitrators and till 
the date of signing of the financial statement the 
company's applications are pending for adjudication. 

The Board of Directors of the Company while approving 
the financial statement for the year under consideration 
have also considered for seeking extensicn cf its 
existing arrangements of Franchise/Royalty beyond 
31st March 2028 subject to mutual understanding 
and the related legal compliance. 

54. During the year, Sh. Ade sh Kumar Gupta, the erstwhile 
CEO & Executive Director (the Petitioner) along with 
few other shareholders (the Petitioners), had filed 
a Petition No. CA No. 179/2023 and CP No. 89/ 
Chd/Hry/202 before the Hon'ble National Company 
La•H Tribunal (NCLTI at Chandigarh u/s 241 & 242 
of the Companies Act, 2013 against his removal 
initiated in accordance to the provisions of Section 169 
of the Companies Act 2013 also alleging certain acts 
of oppression and mismanagement on the part of 
the Company and its management. 

The Company contested the same by rebutting all his 
allegations duly leveling counter allegations against him. 

The above referred petitions filed by the erstv,ihile CED 
& Executive Director were dismissed by the Hon'ble 
Bench vide its order dated 20/11/2023 on the rechnical 
ground of maintainability being not having adequate 
shareholding for filing the petition and the Petitioners 
have preferred their appeal before the Hon'ble National 
Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT) against the 
order passed by the NCLT. Chandigarh and is pending 
for adjudication as on the date of signing of this 
balance sheet. 

The Company, in consultation with its legal experts, is 
appositely contesting this appeal at NClAT. New Delhi. 

55. During the year owing to some reservations emerged 
subsequently with the supplies viz. -a.-viz. billed by few 
of the Company's vendors, payments against their 
supplies were put on hold fer the want of few mere 
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details/supporting required for releasing the payments. 
In the meanwhile, due to earlier availability of multi 
authorisation with the authorised signatories the part 
payment against the disputed supplies was released to 
the vendors by one of the signatory igncring the beard 
mandate of the joint signatures for release of payment 
through bank. The cheques issued were not as per the 
authorisation matrix approved by the board and also 
not as per the bank mandate due to which itgot 
dishonoured by the bank. 

Against such dishonoring the concerned vendors have 
filed criminal complaints under Section 138 cf the 
Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881 against three of the 
Executive Directors and the Company as well before 
the Judicial Magistrate at Panipat (Haryana). 

The Company is taking appropriate legal remedies in 
this regard in due consultation with the legal counsels 
of the Company. Besides this show cause notice has 
also been ser11ed upon the erstwhile signatory 
questioning the issuance of cheques in disobedience 
to the board authorisation. 

56. During the year under consideration, few Cheques, 
amounting to Rs 15.39 lakh issued by erstwhile CEO 
and Execu1ive Director Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta for 
unapproved expenses, remained pending for 
consideration in the books of account of the Company. 
The Company has considered this amount as 
recoverable frcm him by debiting to his account and 
accordingly shown in Note no. 11 of financial 
statements. Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta in his suit for 
defamation filed against Sh. Sunil Bansal & Sh. Adish 
Gupta, Executive Directors at Delhi High Court has 

Particulars 

Plant & Machinery 
Furniture & Fixture 
Vehicle 
Office Equipment 
Moulds 
Total 

referred the expenses against these cheques which 
were vehemently objected by the Company. 

57. During the year, there had been a fire incident in one of 
the block of Company's Central Warehouse (CWH) 
situated in rented premises in Panipat {Haryana) en 
February 07, 2024 due to electric short-circuit which 
had resulted in complete damage of stocks of finished 
goods and packing materials stored there for the value 
aggregating to t 1,763.92 Lakhs. In addition there had 
been a complete loss of rented building of particular 
block including additions made by the Company on 
the superstructure and plant & machinery (including 
petty & office equipment) having tentative value of 
~ 150.79 Lakhs including third party claim fer loss 
of property estimating to { 65Lakhs (net of salvage). 
Against the reported loss, the Company in terms of its 
insurance policy had filed its claim with the insurance 
company and as per management's estimates based 
upon documents/cover note available, the total 
insurance claim recoverable is expected to be for 
, 1.425 Lakhs only. Accordingly with reference to the 
Note No. 32 (b)the differential of loss occurred and 
claim estimated amounting to, 470.14 Lakhs has been 
charged to Profit & Loss account for the year under 
Exceptional ltems. 

58. During the year the Company, in its exercise to 
physically verify and rationalize its gross block, has 
leveled out its fully depreciated Gross Block of Tangible 
Assets (Mot under Lease) aggregating to '< 4,606.95 
lakhs, detailed hereunder; and the Sale/Adj. during 
the year aggregating to ~ 4,958.65 Lakhs in Note 
No. 2-Fixed Assets includes the same: 

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation 

31.03.2024 31 .03.2023 

2,794.32 2,794.32 
208.86 208.86 
462.44 462.44 
451.34 451.34 
689.99 689.99 

4,606.95 4,606.95 
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59. Contingent Liabilities 
Particulars 

I. Bank Guaranteas issued on behalf of the Company submitted with various 
institutional customers in terms of their orders. 

IL Letter of Credits ILCs) issued in favour of the Domestic and Overseas vendors for 
supply of materials/goods are for ? Nil Lakh (Previous year? 227 .40 l akh) out of 
which liabilities for t Nil l akh(Previous year f 137.95 l akh) have been part of 
li·ade Payables as on 31st March, 2024 

Ill. Value Added Tax' for the financial year 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 & 2008-09 on 
acccunt of classification cf goods at different rate of tax. 

IV. Value Added Tax' for the financial year 2016-17 on account of classification 
of goods at different rate of tax. 

V. Service Tax on GTA Services for the period from January 2005 to March 2007 

VI. On accwnt of few labour matters pertaining to earlier years which are pending 
before Hon'ble Labour Commissioner, Chandigarh and have been challenged by 
the Company being time barred. 

VII. Disallowance of certain expend~ure on a/c of non-deduction of tax at source' 
which otherwise are not liable for deduction in terms of applicable provisions of the 
law and for which Company is under appeal. Company has also preferred an appeal 
against the same before the appropriate authority and is pending for adjudication. 

VIII. Disallowance of certain expenditure for the assessment year 2020-21 on ale ot 
non-allow-ability and terming some as of enduring nature, grossly ignoring the 
past assessment history of the Company for earlier years, for which Company is 
under appeal (refer to Note No. 63 & 64). The related demand stands reduced by 
t 113.32 Lakhs vide order passed u/s 154 dated 10/05/2023. 

IX. On account of litigation initiated by some of the vendors and third parties for 
disputed claims before respective authorities 

X. On account of short deduction of Tax at Source' in the case of erstwhile 
subsidiary company M/s Liberty Retail Revolutions Limited for the assessment 
year 201 1-12, 2012-13, 2013-1 4 & 2014-15, for which Company has filed appeals 
before the appropriate authority and are pending for adjudication. Out of the same 
matter relating to assessment year 2011-12 fort 8.64 l akhs has been decided by 
the Hon'ble ITAT. Delhi in favour of the Comi;any and the related demand stands 
reduced to that extent. 

XI. On account of short deduction of Tax at Source for the assessment year 2018-19 
which otherwise are not liable for deduction in terms of applicable provisions of 
the law and for which Company has filed appeals before the approp1iate authority 
and are oendinq for adiudication. 

XII. On account of arbitrary additions made for the assessment year 201 4-15 against 
which partly relief has already been granted by the appellate authority in favour 
of the Company and the depa1tment as well as the Company's appeal before the 
Hon'ble ITAT for the same have been disposed off in a consolidated order by 
remanding back the matter to CIT(A) and is yet pending for adjudication hr.waver 
is having neutralized impact due to the tax paid for the year under MAT regime in 
accordance to the provisions of section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

XIII. On account of reduction of deduction u/s 80IC of Income Tax Act, 1961 lor the 
assessment year 2013-14 due to non-ccnsidering part of business income as 
industrial income, for which Company's appeal is pending before Hon'ble Punjab & 
Haryana High Court duly allowing the interim relief as regard to the related matter. • --~~~ ~~~r~ ~-. ® - . -

LIBERTY 

!Amoont In Hakhf 

2023-24 2022-23 

229.71 214.87 

- 89.45 

55.70 55.70 

45 35 45.35 

5.29 5.29 
210.00 210.00 

173.36 172.88 

851.52 9G4.84 

350.00 75.00 

31.38 40.03 

9.76 27.51 

. 161.24 

59.14 59.14 
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(Amount in ' l.al<h) 

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 

XIV. On account of disallowance made in accordance to the provisions of section 14A . 70.93 
of the Income Tax Act. 1961 and disallowance of certain legitimate expenses of 
business for the assessment year 2012-13, which has been decided by the 
appellate authority in favour of the Company against which the department 
preferred further appeal before the Hon'ble ITAT, Delhi which has also been 
dismissed vide order dated 19/07/2023. 

'Including amount deposited under protest~ 13.82 lakh (Previous year~ 13.82 Lakh) 
'Appeal Fee paid, 7.10 Lakh (Previous year, 7.1 0 Lakh) 
'Amount deposited under protest" 21 .25 lakh (Previous year~ 21.25 Lakh) 
'Amount deposited under protest, 2.32 Lakh (Previous year , 2.32 Lakh) 

60. The assessment of the Company in respect of Income 
Tax is completed up to the Assessment Year 2023-24 
under summary assessment in accordance to the 
provisions of section 143{1) of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 vide order dated 26/12/2023. 

61. The assessment of the Company in respect of lnccme 
Tax for the Assessment Year 2020-21 was completed 
under scrutiny assessment by National Faceless 
Assessment Unit (NFAC) vide order dated 27.03.2023 
with an assessed income for t 4038.41 Lakhs as 
against returned income for ~ 201 4.05 Lakhs on 
account of arbitrary disallowances and additions 
majorly due to terming the legitimate revenue 
expenses on account of trademark license fee, being 
paid/payable on year on year basis in accordance to 
the terms of the respective agreementsfor the 
arrangements in existence since 2003, on prevailing 
terms since 2013 onwards as expenses of enduring 
nature completely misinterpreting the respective 
agreements, grossly ignoring the provisions of the law, 
submissions made during the course of assessment 
proceedings as well as virtual hearing and also the past 
assessment history of the Company for last 16 years. 
The Company has preferred an appeal before the 
appropriate authoritiesagainst these arbitrary 
disallowances/additions and as per the opinion and 
precedents available will succeed in its contentions. 

In addition against the above referred high-pitched and 
unreasonable assessment framed for the Assessment 
Year 2020-21 by the NFAU, during the year the 
Ccrnpany also raised its grievance before the 
Jurisdictional Grievance Committee, ccnstituted by the 
CBDT as an altemate administrative remedyfor such 
type of high-pitched/unreasonable assessments 

framed under faceless mechanism and non-faceless 
assessment regime, which was disposed off by it in a 
cryptic and mechanical manner without considering 
the grievance petition in its bue intent & spirit that too 
without granting an opportunity of hearing. Being 
aggrieved with the functioning of Jurisdictional Local 
Committee the Company preferred a Civil Writ Petition 
(CWP) before the Hon'ble High Court of Punjab & 
Haryana vide CWP-6536-2024 which has been 
dismissed by the Hcn'ble Bench leaving it open to raise 
all the arguments before the appellate authority duly 
dismissing the review petition bearing RA-CW-136-
2024 as well. Against the same the Company is 
contemplating to prefer a Special l eave Petition (SLP) 
before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India. 

Further the proceedings initiated by the Assessing 
Officer vide order dated 05.04.2023 passed u/s 148A 
(d) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 .alleging escaped 
income aggregating to ~ 1,557.99 Lakhs for the 
Assessment Year 2016-17 and seeking certain 
clarifications as regards to salaries fort 64.07 Lakhs, 
receipts of foreign remittances for , 1454.43 l akhs 
and shipping bills for exr,orts fur ~ 39.lla Lakhs on the 
basisofinformaticn uploaded en Insight Systems cf the 
Income Tax Department. have been stayed by the 
Hon'ble High Court of Punjab & Haryana in CWP-1 3252-
2023 filed by the Company and next date of hearing is 
fixed for 09.07.2024. 

62. For the current year, Deferred Tax Liability has been 
calculated after considering the cumulative timing 
differences of~ Nil (Previous y · · 
on account of depreciation. 

63. The assessmenVaudit of 
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the Company's Manufacwring Plants. situated in the 
State of Haryana, Himachal Pradesh and Uttarakhand 
under respective GSTINs. in accordance to the 
provisions of GST Law has been completed up to 
financial year 2018-19. 

64. During the year. the Company has capitalized the 
borrowing cost of < Nil (Previous year < Nil) as part of 
the cost of the qualifying assets. 

65. Capital commitments not provided for are estimated 
at , 50 Lakh (Previous year , 25 lakh). 

66. The Board of Directors of the Company presently 
considers and maintains "Footwear" as the main 
business segment of the Company. Further the 
Company's lifestyle division has also formally 
commenced its operations w.e.f. October 17, 2018. 
however the same has not been considered 

Name 

Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta 

Sh. Adish Kumar Gupta 

Sh. Sunil Bansal 

Sh. Shammi Bansal 

(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP): 

Name 

Sh. Ashok Kumar 

Sh. Munish Kakra 

as separate business segment because of its 
insignificant contribution to revenue during the 
financial year 2023-24 on account of Sales and Net 
Prcfits for < 570.93 Lakhs and < 68.10 l akhs 
rsspectively (Previous year, 471 .82 Lakhs and, 34. 79 
Lakhs respectively) 

67. Related Party Transactions: 

The Company has made the following transactions 
with related parties as defined under the provisions 
of lnd-AS-24: 

A) Name cf Related Parties and descripticn cf 
relationship: 

!i) Individuals owning directly or indirectly. an 
interest in the voting power of the Company 
that gives them significant influence ever the 
Company and Key Management Personnel 
(KMP): 

(Amoum in f l.aij1) 

Designation 

ErsrNhile CED & Executive Director 

Executive Director 

Executive Director 

Executive Director 

Designation 

Executive Director 

CFO & Company Secretary 

(iii) Entities where Individuals and Key Management Personnel (KMP) as defined in (i) above exercise 
significant influence: 

Liberty Enterprises 

Libe1iy Footwear Co. 

Liberty Group Mar1<eting Division 

Anything Skoal Limited (formerly known as Liberty Innovative Outfits Limited) 

Little World Constructions Private Limited 

LFO 

A.P. Packaging 

Total Print & Packing 



Libe11Y Shoes Lld. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

(iv) Relatives of Individuals owning directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of theCompany that gives 
them significant influence over the Company and Relatives of KeyManagement Personnel (KMP): 

Name 

Sh. Harish Kumar Gupta 

Sh. Raman Bansal 

Sh. Vivek Bansal 

Sh. Anupam Bansal 

Sh. Ayush Bansal 

Sh. Manan Bansal 

Sh. Akshat Gupta 

M Independent Directors 
Sh. Aditya Khemka 

Sh. Arvind Bali Kumar 

Sh. Sanjay Bhatia 

Dr. Sujata 

Sh. Gautam Baid 
Sh. Piyush Dixit 

Sh. Anand Oas Mundhra 

Designation 

Brother cf Executive Director 

Brother of Executive Directors 

Brother of Executive Directors 

Brother ot Executive Directors 

Son of Executive Director 

Sen of Executive Director 

Son of Executive Director 

B) Related Party Transactions 
The Following table provides the total amount of 
transactions that have been entered in to with 
relatedparties 

C) Disclosure cf significant transactions with related parties: 

Sr. No. Nature of Transaction Related Party For the year ended for ttie year ended 
31st March, 2024 31st Marob, 2023 

(i) Rent Little World Constructions Private limited 5.39 4.79 
liberty footwear Co. 0.71 0.71 
Sanjeev Bansal Charitable Trust 5.31 5.31 
Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta 091 0.83 
Sh. Sunil Bansal 1.20 1.20 
Sh. Harish Kumar Gupta 3.35 3.05 
Total 16.87 15.88 

(iii Purchase of Goods & Business LfO 609.07 678.19 
Promotional Materials (inclusive Total Print & Packing 555.04 584.12 
of GST} 

A.P. Packaging . 6.06 
Total 1,164.11 1,368.36 

(iii) Sales of Goods marufacb.red and dealt AnvthinQ Skoal Limited 1,515.93 2.107.76 
in by the Company f,rrt,:i,e ot GST) Total 1,515.93 2,107.76 

(ivl Franchise/License Fee (including Liberty Enterprises 135.70 135.70 
GSTI' liberty Group Marketing Division 890.47 927.48 

Libert'{ Footwear Co. 1863.74 1,490.34 
Total 2,889.91 2,553.52 
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Sr. No. Nature of Transaction Related Party As at 31st March As at 31st March 
2024 2023 

(v) Remuneration to Directors and Sh. Ade.sh Kumar Gupta' 12.00 48.00 
Other Key Managerial Personnel Sh. Sunil Bansal 48.00 48.00 
(KMP)2)' 

Sh. Shammi Bansal 48.00 48.00 

Sh. Adish Kumar Gupta 48.00 48.00 

Sh. Ashol< Kumar 31.62 31.62 

Sh. Munish Kak:ra 45.07 47.86 

Total 232.69 271.48 

(vi) Remuneration to Relatives of Sh. Raman Bansal 30.00 30.00 
KMP Sh. Vivek Bansal 30.00 30.00 

Sh. Anupam Bansal 30.00 30.00 

Sh Ayush Bansal 2.10 2.10 

Sh. Manan Bansal 2.10 2.10 

Total 94.20 94.20 

(vii) Commission (including GST) to Sh. Akshat Gupta 29.50 29.50 
relative of KMP Total 29.50 29.50 

(viii) Directors' Sitting Fee' Sh. Aditya Khemka 2.50 0.75 

Sh. Arvind Kumar Bali - 2.25 

Sh. Sanjay Bhatia . 2.25 

Dr. Sujata 0.75 1.25 

Sh. Gautam Baid 1.75 1.00 

Sh. Anand Das Mundra 1.00 -
Sh. Piyush Dixit 

Total 

'Taking ncte cf the cngoing dispute amcng the partners of 
related partnership firms as regards to its business 
operations, on the request of majority of the paItners 
besides making the statutoiy payments of the related 
partnership firms on time to time basis, the Company, in 
accordance to the tenns of respective agreements, 
had been discharging its contractual liability towards 
respective partnership finns till September 2022 by making 
the payment to respective partners in accordance to the 
details provided by majority cf partners. However thereafter 
due to serving of notices for termination of these 
arrangements with respective finns by few of the partners, 
the Company has, based upon the legal opinion available, 

!/__~ stopped following the same practice fur want of 
f::✓ fresh mandate of majortty of the partnersand 

I I>" accordingly has now been discharging its 
contractual liability on timely basis 

1.75 

7.75 7.50 

in the name of respective firms only net of statutory and 
other payments made on behalf of the respective 
partnership firms and also adjusting cf the expenditure 
incurred by the Company in defending the false and frivolous 
litigations initiated by one of the partners of M/s Liberty 
Footwear Co. 

'As the liabilities for provident fund, gratuity and 
compensated absences are provided on an actuarial basis 
for the Company as a whole, the amounts pertaining to 
the Directors and KMP are not included above 

'Paid for the period from April-23 to June-23. 

'As per the section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Independent Directors are not considered as "Key 
Managerial Person", however tc comply with the disclosure 
requirements of Ind AS-24 on "Related party transactions" 
they have been disclosed as "Key Managerial Person". 
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Balance Outstanding at the end of the year 

Sr. No. Nature of Ba.lan.ces Related Party As at 31 st March As at 31st March 
2024 2023 

(ii Trade Receivables Anything Skool Limited 525.67 400.53 

Total 525.67 400.53 

(fl) long Term l oans & Advances Liberty Enterprises 10.00 10.00 

Liberiy Group Marketing Division 50.00 50.00 

Total 60.00 60.00 

(uil Short Term l oans and 4dvances Liberiy Enterprises 31.87 . 

Total 31 .87 . 

(iv) Trade Payables liberty Footwear Co. 101.62 0.62 

liberty Group Marketing Division 1.80 3.17 

Liberty Enterprises . 2.57 

LFO 106.06 155.37 

Total Print & Packing 85.34 125 78 

Little Wortd Constructions Ptivate Limited 0.48 0.50 

Total 295.30 288.00 

M Expenses l'ai•able-Current Liabillties Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta 3.80 2.89 

Sh. Harish Kumar Gupta 0.25 0.23 

Sh. Adish Kumar Gupta 0.18 . 
Sh. Akshat Gupta . 5.94 

Tota.I 4.23 9.06 
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68. There are no dues payable to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31st March, 2024. 

69. Financial Ratios: 

Sr. Description 2023-24 2022-23 Variation Reason for change 
No. by more than 25% in 

comparison to 
previous year 

a) Current Ratio 1.85 1.76 5% 

b) Debt-Equity Ratio 0.34 0.44 {23%) 

c) Debt Se1vice Coverage Ratio 5.85 4.57 28% 1 

d) Return on Equity Ratio 11 .00% 14.21% {23%) 

e) Inventory Turnover Ratio 3.61 3.60 . 

f) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 6.86 7.10 \3%) 

g) Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 7.51 780 14%) 

h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio 4.75 4.97 \4%) 

i) Net Profit Ratio {excluding Exceptional lte rnsl 248% 2.11% 18% 

ii Return on Capital Employed 9.38% 8.37% 12% 

k) Return on Investment NA NA 

' Due to better working capital management resulting in a reduction in overall debt during the year. 

Formulas for computation of above ratios are as follows: 

Sr. Particulars Unit of Formula 
No. Measurement 

a) Current Ratio nmes Current Assets/Current Liabil~ies 

b} Debt-Equity Ratio nmes Total Oebt;Total Equ~ 

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio nmes Earnings before Interest, Tax and Exceptional Items/Interest 
Expense + Principal Repayments made during the year for 
long term loans 

d) Return on Equity Ratio O! ,o Profit After Tax/ Average Net Worth 

e) Inventory Turnover Ratio nmes Cost of Goods Sold {Cost of Material Consumed + Purchases 
+Changes in Inventory + Manufacturing Expenses)/Average 
Inventories of f inished Goods. Stock-in-Process and Stock-in-Trade 

f) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio nmes Value of Sales & Services/Average Trade Receivables 

g) Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Times (Cost of Materials Purchased + Other Expenses}/Average 
Trade Payables 

h} Net Capital Turnover Ratio nmes Met SalewVl/oilcing Capital (Current Assets -Current Liabil~ies) 

i] Net Profit Ratio % (Profit After Tax + Exceptional items)/Net Sales 

j) Return on Capital Employed % (Net Profit After Tax + finance Cost -"- Exceptional Items} 
Average Capital Employed (Total Assets-Total Current liabllities} 

k) Return on Investment % NA 
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70. As per Company's assessment about recoverability 
and canying values of its assets comprising of 
receivables, inventories, plant and equipment, 
intangible assets, it expects to recover the carrying 
amount of these assets. 

71. The current year and previous year figures have been 
rounded off to the nearest lakh of rupee upto two 
decimal places unlsss stated otherv,ise. 

72. The Company does not hold any benami property and 
no proceedings have been initiated or pending against 
the Company for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and 
the rules made thereunder. 

73. The Company has duly filed Quarterly returns or 
statements, Unaudited and Audited as the case may 
be of its current assets with the banks and are in 

' 
agreement with its books of accounts. 

74. The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any 
bank in accordance with the guidelines en wilful 
defaulters issued by the RBI. 

75. The Company has not entered into any transactions 
with companies struck off under section 248 of the 
Comr,anies Act, 2013. This is determined to the extent 
of such parties have been ident'rtied on the basis of 
information available with the Company. 

76. The Company has duly registered all the charges or 
satisfaction thereof with Registrar of Companies {ROC) 
within the staMory period. 

77. The number of layers prescribed under clause (87) 
section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Rastriction on number of Layers) Rules, 
2017 is not applicable to the Company 

78. During the year, no scheme of arrangements has 
been approved by the competent authority in terms 
of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act. 2013. 

79. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested 
funds to any other persons (intermediaries) with the 
understanding that the inte1mediary shall directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or provide any 
guarantee in any manner whatsoever on behalf of the 
Company [ultimate beneficiary). The Company has alsc 
not received any fund from any persons with the 
understanding that the Company shall directly lend er 

invest or provide any guarantee to any other persons 
on behalf of the funding party. 

80. The Company does not have any transactions which are 
not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in 
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

81 . During the year, the Company has not traded or invested 
in crypto currency or virtual currency. 

82. The Company has not revalued its property, plant and 
equipment er intangible assets er both during the 
current er previous year. 

83- Fa.ir Value Measurements 

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities is normally 
determined by references to the transaction price or 
market price and in case of non-reliably determinable, 
the Company determines the same using valuation 
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and for which sufficient data are available, maximising 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 
the use of unobservable inputs as per the following: 

a. Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued 
using market observable inputs such as foreign 
exchange spot rates and forward rates at t'ne end 
of the reporting period. 

b. Unquoted equity instruments where most recent 
infcrmat icn to measure fair value is not 
determinable, cost has been considered as best 
estimate of fair value. 

c. The canying amount of other financial assets and 
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
in the financial statements are a reasonable 
approximation of their fair values since the 
Company does not anticipate any significant 
difference that the canying amcunts would be 
significantly different from the values that vvould 
eventually be received or settled. 

Fair Value Hierarchy 

To provide an Indication about the reliability of the 
inputs used in dete1mining fair value. the Company has 
classified its financial instruments into the three 
levels prescribed as per Ind-AS 113 "Fair Value 1i·· :----. 
Measurement": ; 

£~ -· 
0 
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Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets tor identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at 
the measurement date. 

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

The below table provides comparison by class of canying amount and fair value of the Company's financial instruments 
along with fair value hierarchy: 

(Amount il ~ l.al:h) 

Particulars Note As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 
No. 

Carrying Fair Value Fair Value Carrying Fair Value Fair Value 
Amount Hierarchy Amount Hierarchy 

Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost 

Non-Current Assets 

Financial Assets 

Ncn-Current Investments 3 0.45 0.45 Level 2 0.45 0.45 Level 2 

Other Rnancial Assets 4 

Security Deposits 704.01 733.79 Level3 720.63 750.41 Level 3 

Bank deposits having 32.69 32.69 Level 2 6.01 6.01 Level 2 
maturity for more than 
12 months 

Current Assets 
Trade Receivables 7 9,779.27 9.77927 Level3 8,746.54 8,746.54 Level3 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 262.86 262.86 Level 1 162.38 162.38 Level 1 

Bank Balances other than 9 388.60 388.60 Level 2 199.57 199.57 Level 2 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Security Deposits 10 5.50 550 Level 3 5.50 5.50 Level3 

Loans and advances to 81.44 8144 Level3 104.14 104.14 Level 3 
Employees 

Total 11,254.82 11,284.60 9,945.22 9,945.22 
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Particulars Note As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 
No. 

Carrying Fair Value Fair Value Carrying Fair Value Fair Value 
Amount Hierarchy Amount Hierarchy 

Hnam;ial Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost 
Non,.Current Liabilities 

Lease Liabilities 15 7,681.73 7,681.73 Level3 7,311.42 7,311.42 Level 3 
Other Financial Liabilities 16 

Security Deposits 1,829.90 1,829.90 Level3 1,889.69 1,889.69 Level 3 

Current Liabilities 

Borrowings 19 6,960 96 6,960.96 Level 2 7.962.0G 7,962.06 Level 2 
Trade Payables 

Micro and Small 20 2,284.23 2,284.23 Level3 1,347.54 1,347.54 Level 3 
Enterprises 

Other than Micro and 4,398.86 4,398.86 Level 3 6,20806 6,208.06 Level 3 
Small Enterprises 

Other Financial Liabilities 21 0 0 0 0 0 
Advance frcm 384.19 384.19 Level 3 357.33 357.33 Level 3 
Customer 
Expenses Payable 988.79 988.79 Level3 878.68 878.68 Level 3 

Other Liabilities 440.79 44-0.79 Level3 34188 341.88 Level 3 

Total 24,969.45 24,969.45 26,296.66 26,296.66 

84. Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers· 
Reconciliation of revenue (footwear) as per contract price and as recognized in statement of profit and loss: 

(Amount In Hakh) 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Revenue as per Contract Price 64,881.25 66,263.93 

Less: 

Rebate, Discounts and Incentives 1,304.1 1 1,114.89 

Revenue as per Statement of Profit and loss 63,577.14 65,149.04 

85. Sensitivity Analysis 

a. Foreign Currency Sensitivity 

The following table demonstrate the sensitivity analysis on profit before tax due to change in USO exchange rate. 
with all other variables held constant The impact on the Company's profit before tax due to changes in the fair 
value cf unhedged monetary assets and liabilities is given below: 

(AfTlOIJmaHakh) 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Impact on Profit Before Tax due to change in USD rate"' 

Increase by 2% 23.10 15.99 

Decrease by 2% \23.10) 
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b. Interest Rate sensitivity 

LIBERTY 

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on exposure to interest rate for both Term Loans & Working 
Capital loans.The following table demonstrates the sensitivity in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings 
which are not hedged, with all othervariables held constant. the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact 
en floating rate bcrrcwings, as fcllcws: 

Particulars 

Impact on Profit Before Tax due to change in interest rate" 

Increase by 0.50% 

Decrease by 0.50% 
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